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H/ "

by Joanne Pang
Mixed media on cotton
140 x 150 cm

Ms Pang's painting, “/”, is the design inspiration for this year's Annual Report. The artist is a lecturer at LASALLE College of the
Arts in Singapore and her painting received the Gold award in the Established Artist category in the 2018 UOB Painting of the
Year (Singapore) Competition.

The painting title is also meant to be read as “either... or” and represents a strike in motion. It reflects the artist’s movements
between action and inaction during the painting process as well as captures the concept of time passing and stopping.
Through technique and medium, her painting strokes express the impact of force, dynamism and transformation.

The essence of the painting captures UOB's approach to banking where due consideration is given before timely decisions
are made for optimal impact. UOB's support of art is a natural extension of our commitment to our stakeholders in the
communities in which we operate. The UOB Painting of the Year competition, in its 37* year in 2018, is the Bank’s flagship art
programme held across four Southeast Asian countries.
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About United Overseas Bank (China)
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited
(UOB), a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) is headquartered
in Shanghai and was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have
grown our network to 16 branches in major Chinese cities by
the end of 2018.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006,
UOB was the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to
settle capital accounts in Shanghai. We received a retail
RMB licence and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading
membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, we were
awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion
trading on the SGE interbank platform.

UOB (China) is one of the first foreign banks to obtain a
local mutual fund licence in China, in 2013. The following
year, we established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free Trade
Zone, and obtained a trial market maker licence for inter-
bank gold bilateral transactions and a market maker licence
for direct trading between RMB and the Singapore dollar in
the interbank foreign exchange market. We also obtained the
gold import and export licence in 2015. In 2018, UOB (China)
became one the first market makers do execute direct
trading between the RMB and the Thai Baht. UOB (China) has
also successfully priced its three-year onshore RMB financial
bond through the China Interbank Market (CIBM) and the
Bond Connect scheme (BCS), which is the first onshore
financial bond issued by a Southeast Asian bank through
the BCS. These achievements have enabled us to widen our
product and service offering to our customers operating in
China.

As we continue to grow our business, we remain committed
to sharing our successes with the community. Since 2012,
we have held the annual UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk to raise
funds for underprivileged children and to support various
education initiatives in China.

In 2015, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB
(China) by RMB2.5 billion to RMB5.5 billion.

UOB (China) is rated ‘A+" with stable outlook by Fitch Ratings.
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About United Overseas Bank Limited
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Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office
in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam, as well as branches and
offices across the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the
Great Depression, UOB opened its doors to provide banking
services for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a
series of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among
the world’s top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s and ‘AA-" by both
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB
employees have carried through the entrepreneurial spirit,
the focus on long-term value creation and an unwavering
commitment to doing what is right for our stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in the
communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated
to helping our customers manage their finances wisely and
grow their businesses, we are steadfast in our support of
social development, particularly in the areas of art, children
and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through our three core business segments — Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Global Markets. Our offering
includes personal financial services, private banking, business
banking, commercial and corporate banking, transaction
banking, investment banking, corporate finance, capital
market activities, treasury services, brokerage and clearing
services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide asset
management, venture capital management and insurance
services.
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Where We Operate
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Financial Highl

ights

o e
ZERR Operating result ARMFIT RMB000 %
BB NEIT Total operating income 1,229,470 172,439 49
ElER Total operating expenses 1,009,475 884,752 141
5 BERERE Impairment charges 53,211 134,178 (603)
FLETHE Profit before tax 168,992 143,700 17.6
BrEfE Balance sheet ARMFIT RMB00O %
BFERT Total assets 74,206,681 63,499,056 16.9
W &HEHR Financial indicators % % %
BARFEREE Return on equity 22 2.0 0.2
RFEFEE Return on average total assets 02 02 B}
FRASHINLE Expenses/income ratio 811 745 6.6
F I BT AN L SN mig:s: and commission income/total operating 106 98 08
FHE (AR ) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 85.8 764 94
mEEBEE Liquidity coverage ratio 162.5 2439 (81.4)
A= Leverage ratio 74 8.5 (1)
TEEIHE Non-performing loan ratio 07 0.8 (o1
WEBEX Non-performing loan coverage 288.5 258.8 297
RATE R EIGHR Capital adequacy ratio
Bb—RERTRE Core Tier 1 CAR 131 16.5 (34)
—RERTRE Tier 1 CAR 131 16.5 (34)
BEFTRER Total CAR 14.0 173 (33)
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Chairman’s Statement
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The painting on the cover of this year’s Annual Report is
a reminder to us all that we must consider carefully the
environment in which we operate and the forces at play
before striking (/) at the right moment. It resonates with
UOB’s stance of staying disciplined, focused and nimble,
as we seek and implement innovative solutions amid an
increasingly digital and disrupted world. We consider the
risks and rewards of any given opportunity. We also balance
innovation and growth with stability in building our franchise
sustainably.

Our discipline is derived from our time-tested values of
Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment. They are the
foundation on which we have built UOB over eight decades
and have been guiding the decisions we make and the
actions we take. They underpin our unwavering focus on the
fundamentals in our business: always putting our customers
at the centre, building on our regional infrastructure,
harnessing technology and digital solutions to make banking
simpler, smarter and safer and making strategic investments
for the future. Core to our approach is maintaining a strong
balance sheet so that we can support our customers through
economic cycles.

2018 Financial Performance

In 2018, we achieved operating income of RMB1,229.5 million,
an increase of 4.9 per cent from last year, mainly driven by
double-digit growth of net interest income. Our net interest
income rose up 21.5 per cent from a year ago to RMB979.2
million. Meanwhile, net fee and commission income rose up
13.3 per cent from a year ago to RMB 130.3 million. Operating
expenses grew by 14.1 per cent to RMB997.0 million, largely
driven by higher staff costs and business—related expenses as
we invested in talent and product capabilities to improve our
customer experience. This reflects our continued commitment
to the long-term investment and growth in China. Impairment
charges decreased by 60.3 per cent to RMB53.2 million. We
registered net profit after tax of RMB150.5 million, an increase of
10.7 per cent from 2017.
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Our asset quality remained stable. The non-performing loans
(NPL) ratio declined slightly to 0.7 per cent from 0.8 per
cent a year ago and NPL coverage ratio rose from 258.8 per
cent a year ago to 288.5 per cent. We monitor our portfolio
vigilantly and are confident of the resilience of our asset
quality and adequacy of our provisions.

Loans grew by 213 per cent to RMB32.9 billion in 2018. We
also continued to improve our funding base by issuing
RMB2.7 billion securities and increasing deposits by 23.1 per
cent to RMB37.3 billion. Our liquidity position remained
healthy with our liquidity coverage ratio standing at 162.5 per
cent, well above the regulatory minimum requirement of 100
per cent.

As at 31 December 2018, our Common Equity Tier 1 and
Total Capital Adequacy Ratios stood at 13.1 per cent and
14.0 per cent respectively, well above the regulatory minimum
requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China Chengxin
International Credit Rating both giving a stable outlook.

Deepening our Local Presence

Despite macro headwinds in the near term, we continue to
see the long-term potential of Asia.

China’s economy shows strong resilience as the country
recorded 6.6 per cent GDP growth in 2018 despite downward
pressure. China's foreign trade reached an historic high of
RMB30.5 trillion which is expected to grow as the country
continues to tap connectivity initiatives such as Belt and
Road Initiative (BRI) and the Greater Bay Area (GBA) scheme.
On the consumer front, China’s growing mass affluent class is
driving demand for more wealth management services.

In anticipating our customers’ needs and aspirations, we
have been making long-term investments in our regional
infrastructure and connectivity capabilities. In China,
we have been patiently and prudently deepening our
presence for more than three decades since we set up
the first representative office in Beijing. 2018 marked the
tenth anniversary of UOB (China). As part of reaffirming
our commitment to China, we opened the Bank’s new
headquarters. We are the first foreign bank in China to have
a Grade-A office building in Shanghai’s Lujiazui Financial
District.

Our regional scale and local market expertise in China and
Southeast Asia give us a competitive edge and serve as a
robust foundation for sustainable growth. We can tap the
region’s growth drivers, manage risks, and deliver a seamless
customer experience at scale and with speed to market.
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Connecting Businesses to Regional Opportunities

Beyond deepening our physical presence, we enhanced our
own capabilities to help our clients capitalise on regional
growth opportunities.

We have been at the forefront of offering customised cross-
border banking services to businesses through our regional
network and the expertise of our Foreign Direct Investment
(FDI) Advisory Unit. Since its set up in 2011 to help our clients
navigate the complexities of expanding into and across Asia,
the FDI Advisory Unit has provided one-stop advisory and
financial solutions to more than 2,100 clients, 30 per cent
of which are Chinese companies that invested in Southeast
Asia.

In 2018, we broadened our network of enterprises,
government agency partners, business associations and
professional service providers. We signed Memoranda of
Understanding (MOUs) with Ascendas-Singbridge Group,
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, LiuGong Machinery
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Free Trade Zone Lujiazui Administrative
Bureau, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Shanghai
Qilu Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd, the Suzhou Industrial
Park Administrative Committee and Xuzhou Construction
Machinery Group. By signing these MOUs, we were able to
connect more companies to regional opportunities and to
offer stronger support through our partnership ecosystem.

In recognition of our efforts in increasing connectivity across
the region, UOB was awarded Best Regional Bank of the Year
for the BRI in Southeast Asia at Asiamoney’s New Silk Road
Finance Awards and was named the Financial Institution
of the Year for the BRI by Yicai Media Group at the China
Financial Value Ranking 2018 awards ceremony.

To entrench our deep relationships with our clients, we
enhanced our capabilities in platforms and products,
particularly in cash management and trade. Knowing that
certain industry sectors with cross-border connectivity
needs are vital for the growth of economies across the
region, we set up a dedicated team of industry specialists to
provide customised solutions for clients’ end-to-end needs,
covering sectors ranging from consumer goods to building
and construction.
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Supporting Affluent Consumers

Throughout the year, we continued to make banking
simpler, safer and smarter for our retail banking customers
by harnessing data insights, advances in technology and
ecosystem partnerships. Our omni-channel approach to
offering products and services enables our customers to
choose how and when they bank with us.

To ensure our customers have a seamless and convenient
experience at our branches or online, we continued to
digitalise our processes. In 2018, we enhanced the customer
experience of our award-winning Direct Banking mobile app
with more in-app functions and products including UnionPay
Quick Response (QR) code mobile payment. UOB (China) is
the first foreign bank to enable such mobile payment within

its app.

We also continued to invest in our wealth management
capabilities to serve the increasing number of emerging
affluent customers across the region. For instance, we
launched a new product line of equity linked notes (ELN) and
were among a handful of banks to offer ELN in China.

Harnessing Digital Innovation for our Customers’ Benefit

We recognise that with digital innovation comes duty, which
is not to put our customers’ or UOB’s future at risk. Our
technology focus has three objectives: to create customer
experiences that are relevant, convenient, reliable and safe;
to drive better performance through streamlining our own
processes or helping our customers improve their own
businesses; and to harness the capabilities of ecosystem
partners to co-create new products and services.

Ensuring our Colleagues are Future-ready

As it has been over the decades, our achievements in 2018
were due to our colleagues who embrace UOB's values of
Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment. We uphold
these values in our focus on creating long-term value for our
stakeholders.
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To ensure our people possess the right skillsets and mindsets
for the future, we provide them with relevant training and
career development opportunities. In 2018, we continued
to invest in talent programmes for people managers across
different levels to improve their leadership and management
capabilities and people skills. To enable greater learning
efficiency, we tapped digital technology to offer more
training materials and courses online and through WeChat.

In 2018, the quality of our team’s endeavours led to UOB
(China) being recognised among the Top 100 China’s Best
Employers by zhaopin.com for the fourth consecutive year.
We also received the Employers of Excellence Awards in HR
Management Strategy from 51job for our people-focused
strategy. It was the third consecutive year UOB (China) has
won the award.

Connecting with the Community

Just as we care for our people’s development, we care for
the progress of the communities in the markets where we
operate. We demonstrate this through the UOB Heartbeat
Corporate Social Responsibility programme which focuses
on three areas essential for the growth and vibrancy of any
society: art, children and education.

In 2018, our people volunteered close to 6,000 hours to
help deepen community connections and to nurture young
minds, especially those from underprivileged backgrounds,
to their potential. In our firm belief that art transcends
language, culture and time, we increased our efforts to
make art accessible to all. In 2018, we opened the UOB
Art Gallery at UOB Plaza in Shanghai in conjunction with
the official opening of our headquarters building. The
inaugural exhibition, themed the Art of Banking, reflected
our distinctive approach to sustainable growth. We also
conducted many community events with children and our
UOB Painting of the Year artist alumni to help encourage
awareness, appreciation and development of art in our
communities.
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Looking Ahead

Market volatility is likely to remain elevated in 2019. The
impact of ongoing US-China trade tensions and geopolitics,
the trickle-down effect of US fiscal and monetary policy
settings and concerns over a China slowdown are among
the factors posing risks to global economic growth. Despite
near-term uncertainties, we see the long-term potential of
Asia through the increased connectivity and intra-regional
business flows, favourable demographics and rising affluence
which underpin economic growth. We will continue to draw
upon our strengthened local presence, integrated regional
network, deep knowledge and strong position in the region
to help our customers benefit from the opportunities that
arise. Our future-focused investments in connectivity
capabilities and digital solutions also ensure we are well-
positioned for growth.

The title of this year's Annual Report reminds us that in
business, as in life, we are not always presented with binary
choices to make. Under such circumstances, we need to be
guided by our own moral compass. At UOB, this compass is
one based on our values and enables us to strike the right
balance between risk and reward, with the long-term view in
mind.

This stance is critical to UOB creating sustainable value for
our stakeholders. We believe that by putting the customer
at the centre of all that we do and by acting consistently
in accordance with our values, we will continue to build a
sustainable business for generations to come.
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Wee Cho Yaw

Supervisor

Dr Wee, 90, was appointed as Supervisor of United Overseas
Bank (China) on 30 October 2007.

Dr Wee is a veteran banker with more than 60 years’ banking
experience with the UOB Group.

He is the Chairman Emeritus and Honorary Adviser of United
Overseas Bank, Singapore, Chairman and Adviser of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia), and Chairman of United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company and President Commissioner of PT
Bank UOB Indonesia.

His other board chairmanships include United Overseas
Insurance, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group, Pan Pacific Hotels
Group, United Industrial Corporation, Marina Centre Holdings
and Wee Foundation. He is also the Chairman of Chung Cheng
High School.

Dr Wee is the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese

Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Singapore Federation of
Chinese Clan Associations and Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.
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Dr Wee received Chinese high school education. He had served
on numerous school management committees and the Councils
of the Nanyang University and National University of Singapore.
He has been the Pro-Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological
University (NTU) since 2004. He was conferred an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Letters by the National University of
Singapore in 2008 and a second Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Letters in 2014 by NTU.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year twice at the
Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received the
inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 and The Asian Banker’s Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2009. In recognition of his business achievements
in the region, Dr Wee was conferred the Legacy Award for
Singapore at the Asean Business Awards 2017.

He received the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s highest
National Day Award for 2011 from the President of Singapore in
recognition of his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development fields in
Singapore.
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Cham Tao Soon

Deputy Supervisor

Prof Cham, 79, was appointed as the Deputy Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) with effective from 1 January
2017. Prof Cham was a non-executive and independent
director of the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and
Singapore Rail Academy. He is a former director of MFS
Technology, WBL Corporation and UOB Singapore and its
subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene, Prof
Cham is the former Chancellor of Singapore University of
Social Sciences (SUSS) and Chairman of its Board of Trustees,
and was the founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to education, he
was conferred the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s
highest National Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the University of Malaya,
a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the
University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also
a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
and Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign
member of Royal Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Mr Wee, 66, was appointed as Director and Chairman
of the Bank on 5 December 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with 40 years’ experience in the UOB Group,
Mr Wee joined United Overseas Bank, Singapore (UOB
Singapore) in 1979 and has been a director of UOB Singapore
since 1990. He is currently the Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of UOB Singapore.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company. He is the Deputy President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.
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Active in industry development, Mr Wee is a council member
of The Association of Banks in Singapore, The Institute of
Banking & Finance and the Indonesia-Singapore Business
Council. He is a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation, Visa APCEMEA Senior Client
Council and an honorary council member of the Singapore
Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He was previously
deputy chairman of the Housing & Development Board and a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group and United International Securities.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public Service Star
by the Singapore Government for his contributions to the
financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)

and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from American
University, Washington, DC.
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Peter FOO Moo Tan
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr Foo, 56, was appointed President and CEO on 19 December
2016 and a director of the Board on 18 January 2017. An executive
and non-independent director, he is a member of United
Overseas Bank (China)'s Executive Committee. Mr Foo is also a
member of UOB Group Management committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB Group in 2011 as the Head of the Group’s
Treasury and Global Markets business for its overseas
subsidiaries and branches. He also served as President and
CEO of United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company from
2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in banking and
financial markets. Prior to joining UOB Group, he served for 11
years at Fortis Bank, S.A./N.V. Singapore, where he assumed
many management roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific
Management Board member, Managing Director of Private
Banking and Head of Global Markets.

Mr Foo's previous professional experience also includes
holding various executive positions at Bank Austria
Creditanstalt, Bank of America, and Chemical Bank
between 1988 and 2000. Mr Foo embarked on the career as
management associate with Shell Singapore in 1987.
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Mr Foo is a Council Member of Capital Markets Policy
Council (CMPC) of CFA Institute. He also served as the
Executive Committee Member and Regional Representative
of South East Asia of ACI-The Financial Markets Association,
Board Member of CFA Singapore, Council Member of the
Association of Banks in Singapore and Independent Director
of SGX listed/Temasek’s CitySpring Infrastructure Investment
Trust.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management (Hons) from

the National University of Singapore and is a Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA).
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 65, was appointed to the Board on 25 January 2008.
A non-executive and non-independent director, he is the
Chairman of Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Nominating and
Remuneration, Audit, Connected Transactions Control
Committees.

He joined United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) in 1980 and last
served as CEO prior to his appointment to United Overseas
Bank Singapore (UOB Singapore) in 2003. Between 2003 and
2008, Mr Lee was the Head of International and spearheaded
the UOB Group’s expansion in the region. He was also
responsible for UOB Singapore’s consumer banking business
in Singapore and the region. In his past portfolio as Managing
Director and Head of Group Retail at UOB Singapore, he led
the UOB Group’s retail businesses for consumers and small
business customers. Currently he is Advisor for Group Retail.

Mr Lee is a director of United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company, and is a member of the Board of Commissioners of
PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

He has more than 39 years’ of banking experience.
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Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 55, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011.
A non-executive and non-independent director, she is
a member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit and Board Risk
Management Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30 years’ experience in both
consumer and corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011
and was appointed as CEO of United Overseas Bank Hong
Kong Branch in December 2011. Mrs Ip was appointed as CEO
for UOB Greater China with effect from 1 July 2016, and is
responsible for developing UOB's business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management
positions in product and sales management, customer
segment management and risk management in Hong Kong,
the United States, Canada, Singapore and mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip received the
Asia Retail Congress' Best International Retail Banker award
in 2008 and was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China region in 2012
by the China Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong

Kong and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Liu Erh Fei

Mr Liu, 60, was appointed to the Board on 20 January
2017. A non-executive and independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Audit and Connected Transactions
Control Committees, and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration and Board Risk Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently the founding partner and CEO of Asia
Investment Fund. He also serves as a director of Cindat
Capital Management Limited, as well as an independent
director for CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman of Merrill Lynch China
and Country Executive of Bank of America Merrill Lynch. He
had previously worked as head of Asia or China for Goldman
Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and International
Relations from Brandeis University, and a Master of Business
Administration from Harvard Business School.
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Wu Yu Hua

Mr Wu, 60, was appointed to the Board on 29 August 2018. A
non-executive and independent director, he is the Chairman
of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee, and a
member of the Audit, Connected Transactions Control and
Board Risk Management Committees.

Mr Wu is currently Executive President of Shanghai Yangtze
River Delta Sci-tech City Development Company Limited
and Vice Chairman of Shanghai Huaxia Culture and Economy
Promotion Association.

Mr Wu formerly served as Chief Representative for Europe
& Africa Regions and Director of Investment and Consulting
Management, Planning & Finance for China Baosteel Group.
He took senior positions in Siemens, including Vice President
of Siemens (China) Company Limited, Vice President of
Siemens Real Estate Investment China and President of
Siemens Expo Program Centre (SEPC). He also held senior
positions in ALSTOM and Shanghai Zhangjiang High-tech
Park Development Company Limited. Mr Wu assumed the
position of Director of Executive Committee of the first
session of Foreign Invested Companies (ECFIC) of China
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (CAEFI).

Mr Wu is a Certified Senior Economist in China. He holds a
Master’s Degree in Economics from German Siegen University.
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Mr Winston Lim, Head of Personal Financial Services of UOB (China) received the
Best Retail Bank award on behalf of the bank from 77e Assez:

Retail

Providing our Customers with Innovative Digital Solutions
UOB (China) harnesses digital technology to make banking
simpler, smarter and safer for our customers, by providing
convenient payment options and digital financial solutions
essential to the customers’ life stages and financial needs.

Our award-winning UOB Direct Bank mobile app is designed
for emerging affluent customers who require wealth
management services, lifestyle offerings and rewards in a

single app.

In 2018, we refreshed the user interface with an integrated
and more intuitive design to improve the customer
experience. For instance, we were the first foreign bank
to integrate UnionPay Quick Response (QR) code mobile
payment within its app. Customers can make direct payments
to merchants in China and other countries where UnionPay
mobile payment is accepted.
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Helping Individual Investors Safeguard and Grow their Assets
As more Chinese high-net-worth individuals look for
opportunities to diversify their investments across the globe,
UOB (China) launched a new product line of equity linked
notes (ELN) in 2018. We are among only a handful of banks in
China to offer ELN.

It enables our customers to choose underlying equities from
different share markets around the world.

Our achievements have been recognised by media and
prestigious organisations. The awards that the Bank received
in 2018 included the China’'s Best Wealth Manager - Rising
Star and China’s Most Innovative Mobile Banking Application
from The Asset, the Fastest Growing Wealth Management
Bank China award from Global Banking & Finance Review, the
Best Retail Bank Award from International Financial News,
and the Foreign Bank of the Year Award from The Paper.

Planning Ahead for the Next Generation

We are dedicated to helping our customers achieve their
financial goals at every life stage, including those who are
saving for their children’s education. We not only support
our customers to plan and to save for their children’s study,
we also offer dedicated development programmes to help
their children to discover and grow their strengths. Our
programmes include Junior Banker, Art Camp, Future Leader
and Youth's Elite Programmes suitable for children from six to
22 years old.

Through these programmes, we hope to assist the next
generation to strengthen creative and critical thinking, to
develop problem-solving skills and to foster the spirit of
teamwork, entrepreneurship and social responsibility.

E R 2018 BEFFFEZR, BEFNEZMHEATRBSEIZAR,

Our customers’ children explored the beauty of nature at our summer Art Camp
in 2018.
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Mr Peter Foo, President and CEO of UOB (China) (first on the right) received the
award of Financial Institution of the Year for the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) at
Yicai Media Group China Financial Value Ranking Awards Ceremony 2018.

Wholesale Banking

UOB (China) Wholesale Banking helps companies and
institutions optimise their business operations and cash
flow, manage risks, expand into new markets and manage
their capital needs by providing tailored financial solutions,
services and sector insights.

To boost our support of companies expanding into and out
of China, we have been actively developing an ecosystem of
strategic partners. In 2018, UOB signed several Memoranda
of Understanding (MOUs) with Ascendas-Singbridge Group,
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, LiuGong Machinery
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Free Trade Zone Lujiazui Administrative
Bureau, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Shanghai
Qilu Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd, Suzhou Industrial Park
Administrative Committee and Xuzhou Construction
Machinery Group. By signing these MOUs, we were able to
connect more companies’ to regional opportunities and to
offer stronger support through our partnership ecosystem.

We received two awards in 2018 in recognition of our role in
driving regional trade and investment flows between Greater
China and Southeast Asia. UOB (China) was named Financial
Institution of the Year for the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) by
Yicai Media Group. UOB Group also won the Best Regional
Bank of the Year by Asiamoney.
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1. Innoven Capital, a joint venture between Temasek Holdings and UOB
Group is Asia's leading venture lending firm.

Commercial Banking

In year 2018, Commercial Banking continued to fulfil clients’
changing financial needs as they expand into the region
and to tap the Group’s network to provide comprehensive
banking solutions. As a result, we achieved double-digit
growth during the year. Our total revenue and operating
profit increased by 26 per cent and 34 per cent respectively.
Through maximizing business resources, we also lowered our
cost-to-income ratio by three per cent.

By sharpening our industry focus and growing in-depth
industry knowledge, we were able to grow our client
portfolio and deepen our relationships with existing
customers. We also built multiple client acquisition channels.
For example, by | offering buyer's credit to key clients ,
we were able to provide trade financing and supply chain
financing solutions to their trade and value chain partners
across the region. We also improved the account receivable
financing process and launched dealer financing products.
These approaches increased our share of clients from target
industries and helped us reduce credit risks.

Through UOB'’s Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory
Unit, we have been at the forefront of facilitating clients’
cross-border expansion. As part of its capabilities, the
Unit has built an ecosystem of strategic partners including
government agencies, trade and industry associations
and professional service providers to promote regional
connectivity. Through UOB Group’s nine FDI Centres in Asia,
including one in China, the unit has facilitated more than
2,100 companies in their overseas expansion. Thirty per cent
of these clients are Chinese companies venturing into the
Southeast Asia. In 2018, the Unit increased the number of the
Chinese companies it assisted to expand overseas by about
50 per cent compared with the previous year.

During the year, we also collaborated with Innoven Capital’
to offer banking services to start-up companies in China.

Building on our progress in 2018, Commercial Banking will
standardise and scale up our solutions to provide a diversified
range of products and services of cash management, import
and export financing, currency swap and FDI beyond direct
financing. Our endeavours to improve product portfolio and
client engagement will help us acquire more clients in target
sectors including consumer goods, technology, media and
telecommunication (TMT) and industrials.

The regional connectivity initiatives including Belt and
Road Initiative (BRI) is set to continually open up business
opportunities for our clients. Particularly, the Greater Bay
Area’, which is expected to be one of the fastest-growing
economic clusters in China. Our FDI Advisory Unit will
continue connecting our clients to such opportunities to
regionalise their business.

2. The Greater Bay Area is China’s national scheme aiming to link Hong Kong,
Macau, and nine cities in the Guangdong Province into a world-class city
cluster.
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Corporate Banking

In 2018, Corporate Banking forged ahead steadily against the
backdrop of changing market and economy. We achieved
business growth both in new client acquisitions and profit.

We continued to build up traditional banking business
through providing regional-integrated products and services.
Capitalising on the Group’s regional network, we actively
explored overseas business opportunities and strengthened
collaboration with UOB regional teams to better facilitate
clients’ cross-border needs.

For example, UOB, as the mandated joint book runner
(JBR)/joint lead manager (JLM) supported a large state-
owned enterprise to issue USD2.4 billion multi-tranche
senior unsecured notes to finance the company’s overseas
development. And, UOB, as the sole coordinator and
mandated lead arranger, offered a Chinese large corporate
client with a USD150 million three-year club loan.

We improved our competitive edge by sharpening our sector
expertise and connecting to our client’s value chain Based
upon our deep understanding on the targeted sectors, we
are able to provide clients tailor-made financial solutions
and expand our client portfolio across their value chain. In
2018, we deepened relationship with clients in advanced
manufacturing sector and food, agriculture and consumer
goods sector. We also enhanced our client coverage of oil
and gas sector as well as construction and infrastructure
sector. We also upgraded banking product offerings to real
estate and hospitality sector and technology, media and
telecommunication (TMT) sector.
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Financial Institutions Group (FIG)

In 2018, backed by UOB'’s strong regional network, FIG
continued to expand our team and expertise to support
Chinese and regional financial institutions (Fls) to tap
increasing cross-border business flows.

Our three FIG teams, specialising in banks, non-bank financial
institutions and property funds, provided our clients with
tailored and comprehensive onshore and cross-border financial
solutions. These financial solutions included bilateral loans,
syndicated loans, gold leasing, bond issuance, FI trade finance,
cash management, reverse repos and hedging solutions to
meet the liquidity and risk management needs of our Fl clients.
As a result, in 2018 FIG expanded its client base by 12 per cent
while business revenue grew by 95 per cent year-on-year.

Working closely with other Wholesale Banking segments, FIG
also provided trade finance and guarantee services to corporate
clients. In addition, FIG collaborated with our Global Markets
team to strengthen relationships with business partners
including the Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai Clearing
House to develop advanced treasury products for our clients.

We continued to forge relationships with key FI clients
to support their business growth in China and leveraged
our regional network to facilitate their expansion as they
internationalise their business. We also deepened partnerships
and collaborations with leading Chinese banks to help more
companies seize opportunities arising from the BRI. In 2018,
UOB (China) signed MOUs with long-standing FI partners
namely Shanghai Pudong Development Bank and China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited respectively to jointly tap on BRI
opportunities. Under the MOU, our Chinese partners and their
clients are able to connect with UOB's business ecosystem and
resources as they expand into Southeast Asia.

With the solid support from FIG, UOB (China) issued its first
three-year onshore medium-term note denominated in renminbi
to provide new long-term funding resources to the Bank.

Structured Trade and Commodity Finance

In 2018, Structured Trade and Commodity Finance remained
focused on providing structured trade solutions to our
cross-function and regional clients. We offered them a
comprehensive suite of trade products to help them mitigate
interest and currency risks. We also supported them to
enhance cash efficiency through our cash management
solutions. We also managed to broaden our client base by
applying our experience in back-to-back trade financing in the
Shanghai Free Trade Zone to new clients with cross-border
needs.

During the year, we achieved trade income growth of 274
per cent over the previous year, a 116 per cent increase in
loan income and a 26 per cent increase in cash management
income.
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UOB (China) team together with representative from the client receiving the
plaque at the Adam Smith Awards Asia.

Transaction Banking

In 2018, Transaction Banking achieved strong revenue
growth of 42 per cent over the previous year. This growth
is attributed to a significant 45 per cent increase in cash
management income and 36 per cent increase in trade
income.

We remained committed to investing in our product
capabilities in the areas of cash management, trade finance
and financial supply chain management. Our investment
enabled us to provide our clients with end-to-end solutions,
and to support their evolving business needs and expansion
plans within and across borders.

During the year, we introduced a one-stop site to facilitate
easy downloading of the full set of account opening forms.
We also streamlined invoice financing processes and
commercial acceptance draft discounting credit approval
process, which in turn led to a faster turnaround for clients
to acquire trade financing services. Through a collective
of initiatives to improve electronic banking, we saw an
increase in the number of clients accessing online banking
for solutions and online transaction volume grew at double-
digits year-on-year.

We also saw our financial supply chain management business
grow by more than 50 per cent over previous year. This is
largely attributed an increase in the number of supply chain
financing programmes we offered. Our strong commitment
to providing clients with effective transaction banking
solutions and our customer-centric approach has been
recognised externally. In 2018, we were awarded the Highly
Commended—Best Cash Management Solution at the Adam
Smith Awards Asia by Treasury Today and Triple A Best
FMCG/Retail Solution—Best Cash Management Solution
at The Asset Triple A Treasury. The awards recognised our
customised cash management solution developed for
Guangzhou Bufeng Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co. Ltd.



IREK & il

KRERT (P E ) IR ERBBIRBE SR EIE S RIRE KEE5T,
e EREEL ST REEFEEMINC, FE, BRETHRE,
HREFISERMTAMETR,

2018 &, IR IR & RARBFRIR CUHT, TR ZH UL, HEFE A SHALTK,
REEFEB.

AEPREFREIESET “—i” RE

2018 F, BRITAEFRESHEARLETIMNLZZRS, Eollge
FEMRFHGEBECRSEMN, RARERASHEERE, —F
B, BITRUBATHARMNRHREELZ ST, FRADERA
T4 R IMMNIC R 5 4R 1T (AOO, Appointed Overseas Office),
AEACLRENEEPREAR DX HE RN, TRE
iEERLE,

2018 &, RE#ERTT (HE ) MFRITEIARTINLTIHAT 40 &; #
EE——REREMNCZSFOINCE S T E AN RER(ESP)
A S E B S ATHEISMEIRT,

EREHBHIBENTINCBRTRE, KERIT (FE) FEHEISNC
R 5l CFETS B RITEISMNLC TiAR SN MTEEES S, —
EHREIAR, B 2018 EFETFRPRERSHIIHRIT, Hp
BITEAREFMETERZ M TIARE—RRZNE, &
LEF SFHMER AR

RKOERREEEBRISE, RRARS=liEs
HET0NERALBEEXGMESRE, REBLEFRFRER
B, 2018 &, RITEEXBUSHESHRBEK, £FEL
BESTSANEEXFEX 13192 1, 1 2017 F£FELIBKIT 10 6,
Heh, 2018 £EFIRZSE 284 I, FLk 2017 £ HRRIEK,

Global Markets

UOB (China) Global Markets offers comprehensive financial
products and solutions to help our clients meet their
investment, liability and risk management needs.

In 2018, Global Markets launched a series of industry-first
solutions across different business areas to fulfil clients’
diversified financing needs.

Providing One-Stop Southeast Asia Currency Solutions

In 2018, UOB (China) continued to expand its Southeast
Asian currency offerings. In the first quarter, UOB (China) was
appointed as one of the first batch of market makers who
can conduct direct trading between the RMB and Thai Baht
on China interbank foreign exchange (FX) market. The Bank
was also approved by Bank Negara Malaysia as an Appointed
Overseas Office (AOO). The AOO Framework enables us to
execute renminbi-ringgit transactions including currency
exchange, spot and forward for corporate and institutional
clients. With our expanded solutions, clients can enjoy easier
access to FX settlement, streamline the exchange process
and reduce exchange costs.

In 2018, UOB (China) was among the top 40 traders in China’s
interbank FX market and the top ten traders on China Foreign
Exchange Trade System (CFETS’ trading platform on an
Executable Streaming Prices (ESP)’basis. UOB (China) was the
only foreign bank among the top ten ESP traders.

Our FX trading performance and One-Stop ASEAN currency
solutions were recognised through seven CFETS Awards in
2018 including Best SGD/CNY Direct Market Maker Award,
which UOB (China) has won for the fifth consecutive year.

Supporting our Clients on Bullion and Commodity Business
UOB (China) has been a member of Shanghai Gold Exchange
(SGE) since 2011 and over that time we have recorded robust
growth on our precious metal business. This momentum
continued in 2018. Our gold trading volume on SGE main
board increased almost 10 times over the previous year. The
total volume reached 1319.2 tons. Our trading volume on the
SGE’s international board also grew, recording 28.4 tons in
2018.

3. On 5 February 2018, CFETS announced the integration of a US dollar/
renminbi bilateral ESP module into its FX trading platform, where traders’
orders are matched instantaneously based upon pricing.

Source: CFETS: Announcement on the CFETS New FX Trading Platform

Launching (Phase 1)
http://www.chinamoney.com.cn/english/svcnrl/20180126,/2297.html
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Building on our trading capacity on SGE main board and
international board, we were able to provide clients with
gold leasing and futures contracts linked to Shanghai Gold
Benchmark Price. These solutions helped them manage the
volatility in gold price to support their business activities.

In 2018, UOB (China) was named the Best Member and Most
Promising Bilateral Trading Bank by SGE.

In December 2018, UOB (China) was appointed as the
commodity swap trader of Dalian Commodity Exchange
(DCE), and was the only foreign bank among the first batch of
26 traders announced by DCE.

Collaborating with Various Parties to Deepen our Client
Engagement

Besides expanding our offering of FX solutions and enhancing
our trading capabilities, UOB (China) partnered regulators,
industry bodies and the rest of UOB Group to keep clients
updated on market developments, insights and potential
opportunities across the region through different events.

In May, we organised an investment seminar in Kuala
Lumpur to help Chinese enterprises gain insights on market
opportunities in Malaysia and other ASEAN countries and
how to manage FX risks as they expand into these countries.
With the guidance and support from regulatory bodies, the
Bank also hosted the Belt and Road Interbank FX Seminar.

On the bullion and commodities front, Mr Lee Chee Pin,
Head of Group Global Markets was appointed by SGE as
one of its International Advisers in April 2018. He shared
professional insights on the internationalisation of China’s
bullion market at SGE’s annual International Advisors
Conference in Xiamen City. In May, we held the Southeast
Asian Gold Forum together with renowned gold importers,
refineries and jewellers in the region. The Forum covered
topics including gold production, consumption and tax in
China and Southeast Asia. The participating organisations
also explored cross-border collaboration opportunities under
the BRI.

In 2018, UOB (China) became a cooperative partner of
China Forex, a magazine under China’s State Administration
of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), and also joined the Shanghai
Over The Counter Commodity Derivative Association under
Shanghai Clearing House and sponsored its council meeting
in December.
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Technology and Operations (T&O)

In 2018, UOB (China) T&O continued to harness technology
to drive operational productivity and performance to better
serve our customers and to ensure the compliance with
relevant regulatory requirements.

T&O collaborated with Global Markets to upgrade the Bank’s
Global Markets Platform (GMP) system in November 2018.
The upgraded GMP system integrates our front office with
our middle and back offices. It improves business efficiency
and risk management by conducting automated transaction
processing and risk monitoring at the same time.

T&O also collaborated with Personal Financial Services to
upgrade our Direct Banking mobile application by developing
more in-app functions and services for our customers. For
example, we integrated UnionPay QR code payments to
make our customers’ payment experience more intuitive and
convenient.

In response to regulatory changes, T&O implemented several
regulatory reporting systems. For example, we rolled out the
Examination Analysis System Technology, a risk monitoring
system mandated by the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission to ensure our regulatory reporting is
conducted in a standard and consistent manner. In addition,
we established a standardised interface to connect with the
Credit Reference Centre of the People’s Bank of China. The
interface assists us with the timely and accurate reports on
our corporate client credit data, enabling us to reduce the
Bank’s operational risk.
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Colleagues

In 2018, UOB (China) continued to digitalise our human
resources (HR) management process, enhance the leadership
capabilities of our people at all levels and lead organisational
changes. Other areas of focus included conducting resource
planning, refining our key personnel selection criteria and
standardising HR procedures to ensure that we are organised
to achieve business objectives.

In 2018, we continued to develop programmes under our
unique employee value proposition UOB+you to nurture a
caring and professional workplace.

Caring for our Colleagues

In caring for the well-being of our colleagues, we offered a
series of health talks to encourage our colleagues to focus
on their personal health. Our Staff Club partnered wellness
companies to offer free gym access to all colleagues across
the country. The Staff Club also cooperated with various
service providers to offer benefits and discounts to UOB
(China) colleagues covering food, digital products and
entertainment to help our people have an enjoyable life.

Through our Staff Club, we organised activities which
helped to enhance a greater sense of belonging among our
colleagues. These activities included traditional festival
celebrations such as Lo Hei Meets the Lantern Festival,
healthy outdoor excursions and activities such as walks,
cycling, hiking and visiting museums and art exhibitions.

Our existing flexible work arrangements were highly
popular among our colleagues. The arrangements, first
implemented in 2017, include staggered work hours, work
from home options, two-day family care leave and two
hours of paid time off (Flexi2) every month for full-time
permanent employees. Through these arrangements,
we encouraged our people to achieve better work-life
harmony.

Developing our People

In 2018, we continued to invest in talent programmes for
people managers across different levels. The programmes
aimed to improve the leadership, management and people
skills of our people managers.

For first line managers, the Bank launched Leadership Right
By You, a programme to impart the skills needed by managers
to be leaders who demonstrate courage and care for the
people they manage. We rolled out three learning modules of
the programme at both Head Office and branches across the
country.
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UOB (China) launched Leadership Right By You programme.

2018 is the second year of us to implement the Greater China
Leadership Academy programme. It is a joint initiative of
UOB (China), UOB Hong Kong and UOB Taipei to develop
high potential performers and to facilitate talent exchange.
We upgraded the programme by creating new learning
modules. For example, we launched an Action Learning
Project which enabled the participants to form project
teams to assist business function heads to address business
challenges. Through a structured problem-solving process,
the participants boosted their capabilities in innovation,
collaboration and leadership. We also introduced one-on-
one mentoring to connect leaders from different learning
levels, to develop stronger bonds of trust and to foster peer-
to-peer coaching and sharing. Colleagues from UOB Greater
China participating in the programme, are about to start
cross-market job rotation in 2019.

To further enhance the leadership skills of senior
management, all senior executives from UOB Hong Kong,
UOB Taipei and UOB (China) participated in the Greater
China Senior Management Development programme.
Customised to their learning needs, the programme guided
senior executives on management thinking through in-
class learning and hands-on experiences through interactive
exercises with colleagues.

To groom young talent, we continued to offer our Management
Associate (MA) programme for fresh university graduates.
Fourteen new MAs joined us in 2018, joining the 11 who have
graduated from the programme and have started working in
five functions with the Bank.

Our Talent and Organisational Development team harnessed
technology to improve our online learning and talent
development models as we prepare our people for the
future. In 2018, we expanded the digital materials and courses
our people can complete, including 20 we-courses offered
through our internal WeChat, 43 sets of exam practice
questions and 21 electronic textbooks in PDF format.
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Mrs Christine Ip, CEO, UOB Greater China and Mr Peter Foo, President and
CEO, UOB (China), presented the awards at UOB Greater China Honours Awards
ceremony.
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Awards of the Top 100 China’s Best Employers and the Employers of Excellence in
HR Management Strategy.

These digital materials and courses enabled our employees
to improve learning efficiency by reading them during
fragmented times. As a result, the total training hours
increased by 15 per cent compared with the previous year.
The weight of digital learning in overall training increased
from 13 per cent in 2017 to 17.5 per cent in 2018.

Encouraging our People to Make a Positive Difference

In 2018, the Bank hosted the UOB Honours programme for
the second year. The programme recognises and celebrates
the outstanding achievements of our people living our values
of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment. Ten teams
from UOB (China) received 2018 UOB Honours Country
Awards and 32 individuals who have been with the Bank for
more than 10 years received a Dedication Award.

An Employer of Choice

In 2018, UOB (China) was named the Top 100 China’s Best
Employers by zhaopin.com for the fourth consecutive year.
We also received the Employers of Excellence Awards in
HR Management Strategy from 5ljob.com for our people-
focused strategy. It was the third consecutive year of UOB
(China) to win Employers of Excellence Awards.

The two awards are among the most prestigious HR awards in
China, recognising companies that stand out for their efforts
in developing a better workplace and supporting employees
in personal and career development.
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Mr Wee Ee Cheong, UOB Deputy Chairman and CEO, Guest-of-Honour Mr Chan
Chun Sing, Singapore Minister for Trade and Industry together with UOB (China)
senior management at the grand opening of UOB (China)'s headquarters building
and UOB Art Gallery.
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Mr Brian Zhu, Chief Financial Officer, UOB (China) (right) and Ms Sabrina Fu, Head
of Strategic Communications and Customer Advocacy and Brand, UOB (China)
(left) received the Origin of Life artwork created for the UOB Art Gallery by Mr
Chok (middle).

—

Community

Keep the Good Going through UOB Heartbeat

The UOB Heartbeat corporate social responsibility (CSR)
Programme reflects our long-term commitment to enrich
lives, to open minds and to strengthen bonds in the
communities where we operate. We aim to create sustainable
good through more caring and inclusive societies via our
efforts in corporate philanthropy, stakeholder partnerships
and employee participation.

We focus on three areas which we believe are essential
for the quality and progress of society: art, children and
education.

Raising Art Awareness and Appreciation through UOB Art
Gallery

In 2018, we opened the UOB Art Gallery at UOB Plaza in
Shanghai in conjunction with the official opening of our
headquarters building. The inaugural exhibition themed UOB
and Art featured 17 artworks from the UOB Art Collection
reflecting our distinctive approach to sustainable growth.

An Artist-in-Residence programme to encourage multicultural
dialogue was concurrently launched in China, with Mr Chok
Yue Zan, the 2017 UOB Painting of the Year (Malaysia) winner
as our first resident artist.
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A budding artist learning to use printmaking technique to develop the artwork.
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The beneficiaries and UOB (China) employee volunteers participated in a painting
workshop at ColorJam Studio in Shanghai and completed beautiful mini tree
stump paintings.

Making Art Accessible to All

UOB (China) organises art workshops for underprivileged
and special needs children. Through our UOB Heartbeat
art workshops, children are given the opportunity to
nurture their interest in art and to learn art techniques from
professionals and award winning artists.

For example, UOB (China) launched the Junior Artist
Workshop programme. The first UOB (China) Junior Artist
Workshop was held on 2 December 2018, hosting more than
30 underprivileged children and children with special needs
from the Quanxin Public Services Centre and Meihao Linfen
Community Development Foundation.

Under the guidance of Mr Chok, these budding artists had a
great time creating art and learning art techniques. Together,
they transformed basic objects into a beautiful piece of
artwork named Hope: Growth Track of a Towering Tree which
showcased the children’s creativity.

Since 2016, we have sponsored students from Sichuan and
Yunnan provinces to learn folk art.

In July 2018, UOB (China) invited seven students and teachers
from the Folk Art Sponsorship programme in Sichuan to visit
Shanghai to join our fundraising activities and gain exposure
to different cultural and arts.
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More than 700 people joined the UOB Heartbeat Run / Walk Shanghai Activity
at Century Park, Pudong District.
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100 students from Shunhe Yi Minority Village School received school supplies to
support their learning journey.

Helping Children in Need through the UOB Heartbeat
Run/Walk

Every year, our colleagues and their family members come
together as one to participate in the UOB Heartbeat Run/
Walk — our flagship regional fundraising and volunteer event.

In 2018, we expanded the UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk to
more CSR partners and clients. In total, we rallied a record
attendance of almost 1,500 participants across 12 cities.

UOB (China) also introduced a Heartbeat Run/Walk
programme on WeChat, where our employees and WeChat
fans could track the number of steps they took every day.

Through UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk, UOB (China) raised more
than RMB420,000 in total for underprivileged and children
with special needs. The funds were donated to our long-term
CSR partners to support various CSR initiatives. For example,
we purchased uniforms, shoes as well as school supplies and
provided financial assistance and household essentials to 1,600
students in 11 schools in remote mountainous areas in western
China.
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UOB (China) and Yicai Foundation jointly launched the UOB Brings the World to
Me programme in Shanghai.
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UOB (China) Volunteer had an online course on Southeast Asian currencies.

Providing Equal Opportunities in Education

UOB (China) and Yicai Foundation jointly launched the
second season of the signature UOB Brings the World to
Me programme. The programme, kicked off in 2017, aims
to provide education resources and online courses to two
schools in the remote mountainous areas of Yunnan province
to help students learn more about the world beyond their
horizons.

For the second season, UOB (China) expanded the subjects
of the programme to include areas such as architecture,
traditional culture and handcraft. Many of our colleagues and
their families volunteered to record online courses as part of
the curriculum.
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UOB (China) Consumer Rights Protection booklet

Promoting Financial Literacy and Enhancing Consumer
Protection

In 2018, we expanded our financial education outreach and
organised activities in more engaging and informative ways
to raise consumer rights awareness. As part of our financial
education efforts, UOB (China) developed a Consumer
Rights Protection Booklet in a comic strip format to engage
the public in a fun and informative manner. The comic
strip shares financial and anti-fraud information on mobile
payment security, protection of personal data and illegal
financial advertising. The booklets were dispatched to all
branches across China and at different financial literacy
events and roadshows.

In 2018, we broadened our financial literacy education
efforts to help children learn financial planning skills and
how to avoid fraud. In February, our colleagues visited the
Development Centre of the Amity Foundation in Kunshan
to share financial knowledge with the children of migrant
workers. Leveraging the Folk Art Sponsorship Programme
beneficiary’s trip to Shanghai in July, we took the opportunity
to assist them to acquire more banking knowledge. The
students and teachers visited our Shanghai branch to
learn more about banking and the financial industry and
took a financial literacy course conducted by UOB (China)
volunteers.
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The students were particularly interested in the techniques of identifying
counterfeit RMB notes and were surprised to learn that there are plenty of
security features in the genuine notes.

Treating our customer fairly and improving our communication
with customers are key to maintaining their trust in us. In
2018, we kicked off the Art of Service Recovery workshops.
The workshops equip our colleagues with necessary skills to
improve their competency in providing quality and efficient
services to our customers. We conducted workshops for 311
colleagues in 12 cities.
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Ms Sabrina Fu, Head of Strategic Communications and Customer Advocacy
and Brand, UOB (China) (first on left) attended 2018 Yicai Corporate Social

Responsibility Awards ceremony to receive the Sustainable CSR partnership award.
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Ms Adaline Zheng, Head of Wholesale Banking, UOB (China) (fourth on left)
attended 2018 Lujiazui Annual Charity Awards ceremony to receive the Best

Charitable Contribution Award.

In 2018, our colleagues contributed more than 6,000 hours
of their time and service in UOB Heartbeat programmes. We
contributed more than RMB500,000 to the communities
through sponsorships, donations, scholarships and funds
raised by our colleagues, customers and partners. More than
3,200 students benefitted from these community efforts.

Our commitment to enriching lives and to strengthening
community bonds have been recognised across the region.
Among the other awards that we received in 2018 were the
Sustainable CSR Partnership award from Yicai Media Group
and the Best Charitable Contribution Award at the 2018
Lujiazui Annual Charity Awards.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law,

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees, the
Supervisors and Senior Management perform their
respective duties according to the laws and regulations
of the country and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

Board membership has been refreshed following these

changes:

a) Retirement of Mr Zeng Zhi Jie from the Board on 29 August
2018; and

b) Appointment of Mr Wu Yu Hua to the Board on 29 August 2018.

The current Board comprises six members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association. The six
Board members are:

=4 %5 F# B KIEEH

Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office

BHR 5 66 EERK/ARPUTIEMIER 201659 A17H E20194E9H16H

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent director From 17 September 2016 to 16 September 2019
[E3 5 g DUTHERIER(ITRKRERHUTE) 20174E1 A 18 H E 2019410 A27H

Peter Foo Moo Tan Male Executive and non-independent director (President and CEQ)  From 18 January 2017 to 27 October 2019
FHRIR 5 6 FEHUTIEMIESE 2016512 27 H 22019412 A26H

Francis Lee Chin Yong Male Non-executive and non-independent director From 27 December 2016 to 26 December 2019
7R z 55 ERITIERIEE 201745 7H12HZE202067A1H

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent director From 12 July 2017 to 11 july 2020

=" 5 60 M EHITES 20174 1H20 B 20194 11A15H

Liu Erh Fei Male Non-executive and independent director From 20 January 2017 to 15 November 2019
RE%£ 5 €0 M EHITES 20184F8 H29H £20215£6 A5H

Wu Yu Hua Male Non-executive and independent director From 29 August 2018 to 5 June 2021
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The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

» provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives,
and approve the business plans and annual budget;

« review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;

» determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» setdividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

» putin place an effective management team;

e approve the organisational structure;

» oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

» determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

» review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure that these functions are
adequately resourced;

o evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

» review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

» review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

» report to the shareholder; and

» exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the Board
to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

In 2018, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each
meeting was met.

The Board passed four resolutions by way of circulation in
2018.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions were in compliance with the requirements of
applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles
of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings and the
circular resolutions are properly maintained by the Company
Secretary.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and
Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

» the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

e all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO held ten meetings in 2018.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mr Francis Lee
Chin Yong and Mr Wu Yu Hua (replacing Mr Zeng Zhi Jie who
retired with effect from 29 August 2018).

b. The CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

* manage connected transactions and control the risks from such
transactions;

» examine non-material connected transactions; and

» review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2018.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

C.

The AC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mr Francis Lee
Chin Yong Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Wu Yu Hua (replacing Mr
Zeng Zhi Jie who retired with effect from 29 August 2018).

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies
or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditor’s fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2018.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a
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. The NRC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (replacing Mr Zeng Zhi Jie

who retired with effect from 29 August 2018 as Chairman), Mr
Wee Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

. The NRC'’s main responsibilities are to:
recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;
recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and
Deputy President) for the Board’s approval; and
put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and director, and the performance of the President and CEQ.

The NRC held one meeting in 2018.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee

a. The BRMC members are Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong (Chairman),
Mr Wu Yu Hua (replacing Mr Zeng Zhi Jie who retired with effect
from 29 August 2018), Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The BRMC’s main responsibilities are to:

e review and recommend risk management strategies, policies
and risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management framework (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2018.

Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the
shareholder and appointed in accordance with regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association. They
are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof Cham Tao Soon
(Deputy Supervisor).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

e inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner and that the Board and
Senior Management take corrective actions where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

» exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2018, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly,
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s
Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility,
the Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on
the Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operations and financial position of
the Bank and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management. The Supervisors also met with directors and
Senior Management, and attended Board meetings.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in
2018, namely Mr Liu Erh Fei, Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (up to 29 August
2018) and Mr Wu Yu Hua (with effect from 29 August 2018).
Currently, Mr Liu Erh Fei is the Chairman of the CTCC and AC,
as well as a member of the NRC and BRMC. Mr Wu Yu Hua is
currently the Chairman of the NRC, as well as a member of
the CTCC, AC and BRMC.

For the year under review, both independent directors
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful
rights and overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings in 2018

RS 1m HiE 7373
MITEEHRZ (%) (&) (&) #iE
Name of Independent Director ~ No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks
Held Attended Apologies
XM=k 4 4 0 ,
Liu Erh Fei
R, BEASEREEHFE20185E3823HK
(2&250185E8}5] 29H) ininhe
Zeng Zhi J 2 1 1 Excused from Board meeting on
en i Jie
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up to ugus
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Wu Yu Hua

(from 29 August 2018)
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(2) Dissent of Independent Directors

In 2018, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors’ and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisors and directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisors and directors
on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. The Supervisors and directors may seek
independent professional advice in the course of discharging
their duties at the Bank’s expense.
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N E S KR BB T RE A
TR FRESENGE = 20165128 Bachelor of .Scier.wce, Est‘ate Management, Honours
FOO Moo Tan President and CEO Male 1962 Dec 2016 National University of Singapore 31
Peter TSR ID
Chartered Financial Analyst
XA . FMEEFEEIAETIEEEM
i(IJUjl;e HE R E x 1970 2016%1A :faﬁifﬁlifneszt;miiiafo; * 23
Chief Risk Officer Female Jan 2016 R . .
Jenny Nanyang Technological University
TR BRI AR
4 S v T s [ MESS. EEREE; MBZXENSREEIRE
A EE BB TS @ 2014465 JﬁE’z‘ﬁ—r B 2&1@1@ ﬁﬁaiﬁ’]nﬂg?l%&
LO Siu-Hong R 1967 Project Leadership, Management and Communications 25
Head, Channels and Digitalisation Male Jun 2014 ) X
Rodney Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University
FrbsR . FMEEL K FIHEEF T REFMN
TAN :;ng Weng HESAR = 1976 2016463 Bachelor o‘f Busqi;ess AdEmin:tra‘:;n, H:Fonours 17
Steven Chief Information Officer Male Jun 2016 National University of Singapore
Vi | Iversity | i
Hhza
?I&-IﬁFXuan HEMSE = 1980 2018577 fa:t::;?rj::ﬁs:nal Accountin 16
. Chief Financial Officer Male Jul 2018 . . 8
Brian Fudan University
i o ~ R EASERS RS
i BARRITH (20 ) EH % 2018528 BREAFE RS
ZHENG Jun : 1980 Bachelor of International Finance 16
. Head, Wholesales Banking - Corporate ~ Female Feb 2018 o . .
Adaline Shanghai Jiao Tong University
s KEMPHEXAFEEREREF. SRS5HRITFmL
HUANG Ying B RITERIRREE T 1972 201844 A Master of Science in International Economics Banking
Christina Head, Commercial Banking | Female Apr 2018 and Finance
Cardiff University, UK.
= o . - A A
B THRTUEBEE ) 201845 BAHKF LR
YUAN Quan ) ) 1976 Master of Economics 15
Albert Head, Transaction Banking Male May 2018 Rikkyo University, Japan
ikky iversity,
BESWRITAHES 201449H
33 Head, Multinational Corporate Sep 2014 LiEMERF-EEH AR FTHEENL
ZHANG Xiao RERRREEE ) 1971 20185128 Master of Business Administration 5
Andy East Regional Head Male Dec 2018 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and Webster
FELBHITITK 20184E12H University
General Manager of Shanghai Branch Dec 2018
pe= _ . SENYE R IE T At tas =it
i A ASBREDEE = 2015510 AR AP EERESM
LIM Pei Hong . ) . 1975 Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours 17
. Head, Personal Financial Services Male Oct 2015 . o
Winston Nanyang Technological University
i A R %z & RO
R PR EEBES L3 20164£10H BRAKFR A @i+
YANG Rui Qi Head. Global Market Mal 1973 Oct 2016 Master of Applied Finance 7
Mark cad, Blobat Markets ae ¢ The University of Melbourne
2 S ai
e SRS E 2008495 HEEAFEEE
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male 1958 Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce 37
o P University of Otago, New Zealand
I s . L
el RO B S 0 E 2014578 FHEGEAFRESLEM
YEOH Kian Soon R X 1970 Bachelor of Science 23
R Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 K . .
Benedict Carnegie Mellon University
HEBE TR e BAZEIHEEN
R AHEBEE = 2007412 SEXFLEERMEL
HONG Xiao Yan 1977 Master of Business Administration 21
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . .
Amy Fudan University
3K L EEAYMIKFHREIHEEML
W E IS % 201641 - KT LRTR I
ZHANG Sa ) 1972 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting 25
Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 R .
Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo
Ex bk SEXFTHEEML
b = 2007512
WANG Yuan R SHANEE . % 1974 F12A Master of Business Administration 22
X Head, Legal and Secretariat Female Dec 2007 . .
Eliza Fudan University
B k24t
BER 5k AMEEE L2 20174E8 H E—**%'ﬂ*iﬁi
) 1970 Doctor of Finance 15
XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance Male Aug 2017

Fudan University
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WANG Hong Xia ! AEHF‘,BE = . = 1971 01651273 Bachelor of International Business Management 25
Head, Retail Credit Female Dec 2016 ] . . .
Carol East China University of Science and Technology
fgm= B £ 35 o 225 T R AS TR
i SRIGBES = 201849 ARAFLIEEREL
CHIEN Chung Cheng ) - o 1962 Master of Business Administration 32
Head, Financial Institutions Group Male Sep 2018 ; . i X
Jerry National Taiwan University
FEEHRMEXFIHEEML
Master of Business Administration
ASRITHBHETHEE University of Saskatchewan, Canada
#= R =] )
=L Market Head, China Market, i 1968 201848A FIE SR 22
HUANG Fan X ) Male Aug 2018 ) .
Private Banking Chartered Financial Analyst
nERERLITIE
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada
ERREGEG . i
N A==y JE=A
REKIR North Regional Head g 1973 2018%7H B%E]hﬁll???sai?ﬂli% BFL »
LIM Lian Kian FELRHMTITR Male Jul 2018 achetor of selence
University of South Alabama
General Manager of Beijing Branch
KEXRFEE 2017448
e Greater Bay Area Regional Head April 2017 h L T At L S s s o
TOK Aik Hong ! Male 1975 . Bachelor of Science, Honours 18
Lawrence General Manager of Shenzhen Branch April 2017 University of London
FEFURTHIBEE 2018444 Y
Head, Commercial Banking Il April 2018
SEFg IS TITR = 2018445 BERRSAZIHEER LT
FAN Nan Hong General Manager of Guangzhou 3 | 1976 Apr 2018 Master of Business Administration 22
Frank Branch ae P Hong Kong Baptist University
FRIRET NP AANEFAEINEEML
CHEN Yi-Hsi ENnfrTR . = 1963 2018477 Master of Business Administration 32
K General Manager of Xiamen Branch Female Jul 2018 o . ]
Lisa South Illinois University, Carbondale
At R P, = REHFEEXFSITEMFEL
ZHOU Xiao Zhou MR TiTK - 1982 2019%1R Bachelor of Accounting and Finance n
General Manager of Shenyang Branch  Male Jan 2019 o )
Alan University of Hertfordshire
. RREBEEF . e .
ik e HEE MRS B RS T R
West Regional Head = 2018%12H
HU Wei N € 1 72 1978 Master of Business Administration 18
Ton RAEBMAITITR Male Dec 2018 Conservatoire National des Arts et Métier
ony General Manager of Chengdu Branch s ¢ s crvetiers
b4 A
2| AR E 2019518 AARFLT L
- 1975 Doctor of Public Finance 16
WANG Hao General Manager of Tianjin Branch Male Jan 2019 R
Nankai University
R - 4=s= e DA?‘_(:EI = =] Tie=+4
Y-Il;%an AT = 1971 2018%12A B:alcjh;lor j:;:j;:%jm %w_:er 24
K General Manager of Hangzhou Branch ~ Female Dec 2018 . . K . g .
Beicy Harbin Engineering University
Py A SR 33 AN L kbt g
EEE BRI @ 2018418 MERZEERFEEFERLTREFN
CHUA Hock Yew . 1972 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 21
General Manager of Chongqing Branch Male Jan 2018 o
Alexander University of Toronto, Canada
i kAL s
BB ek = 2018517 RS AR EEL
HUANG Kuei Ping 1974 Bachelor of Accounting 18
) General Manager of Suzhou Branch Male Jan 2018 ) e )
Patrick Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
HE . ERAFCEREREFEML
A 1TITK 2017
HUANG Ting BT ) % 1986 0174:8R Master of Economics, HSBC Business School 9
General Manager of Kunming Branch Female Aug 2017 i . .
Taylor Peking University
s LBRRRERZITITK - 2018478 EXRZERRS WML
- Branch Manager of Shanghai Pilot Free i 1976 Master of Economics 18
LIN Nian Male Jul 2018 . K )
Trade Zone Sub-Branch Xiamen University
LEBEIXFHENMZSEAZL
FRERS LM ITITIC E:3 1984 201846 A Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology) o
CHEN Xiao Ling Branch Manager of Bund Sub-Branch Female Jun 2018 The University of Shanghai for Science and
Technology
L] i b g 1 LEFARREEERSRIEEE
DU Yan iiﬁ%tiﬁﬁ# % 1975 2016457 Master of Business Administration 16
Branch Manager of Jingan Sub-Branch ~ Female May 2016 ) j )
Cherry United Business Institutes
SeRFFFOZITITR EERREXFRITESSHMTL
&
FHE ) Branch Manager of Lufthansa Centre 1982 201746R Master of Banking and Finance n
LI Sheng Lian Female Jun 2017

Sub-Branch

Loughborough University
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Remuneration

Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB (China) aims to provide
competitive remuneration package and ensure the bank is
able to appropriately attract, retain and motivate high quality
talents who not only fit the Bank’s culture and share the
same values but also meet the competencies the positions
require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines
how our remuneration entitlement links to the Bank’s
performance, long-term benefits and risk management. This
remuneration policy applies to all of the full-time employees
with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee’s
salary is mainly linked to individual performance and
the performance of UOB Group and the function the
employee works within. The performance target setting
clearly shows the requirements and expectations of the
Bank for risk management and long-term and short-term
performance of the function and the individual. In addition,
the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management’s roles is independent with
the performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes performance bonus and
restricted shares, which links the staff variable pay to the
Bank's performance and current and future risks. In line
with the Supervisory Guidelines on Sound Compensation
in Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission, senior management and employees
whose roles have material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure
would have a portion of their variable pay deferred. Under
the Bank’s deferral framework, in principle 40% deferral rate
will be applied to the variable pay. This deferral will be in the
form of deferred shares or deferred cash (where applicable).

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
an effective remuneration management, UOB (China) has
established a Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), which consists of four Board Directors. The chairman
of NRC is an independent director. During the reporting
period, the committee held one meeting in total.

Compensation for Board Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

In 2018, the Bank paid a total of RMB608,000 director fee
to the members of NRC, and paid a total of RMB400,000
supervisor fee to the supervisors.

As of 31 December, 2018, there are total 23 senior executives
whose roles have material impacts on the Bank’s risk
exposure. The total compensation for these executives in
2018 was RMB63,372,041, including RMB41,055,244 fixed pay
and RMB22,316,797 variable pay.

The Bank currently has no explicit and/or implicit adjustments
to the deferred pay and/or remained pay.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group’s policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework and systems that enables the Bank to set strategic
and practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control framework and
systems through the review of risk management reports and
analysis, operational and budget reports, internal audit reports
tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various internal
committees and from the exchange of insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening of risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation /
correction mechanisms. The internal control framework and
systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on
the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit,
while administratively reporting to the President and CEO of
UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and
management to discharge their legal and executive obligations
by providing independent, objective assurance and value-
added services to improve the Bank’s operations. It helps the
Bank to accomplish its objectives by having a systematic and
disciplined approach to provide an independent assessment of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's internal financial
controls, operational and compliance controls, and to improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the Internal
Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by the
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC) and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set
by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritization approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach also
adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks, controls,
management concerns and regulatory hotspots. The audit scope
covers all businesses, operations as well as the infrastructure
and applications of systems across UOB (China)s headquarters
and branches. The strategic plan is reviewed annually.

All internal audit reports are provided to the AC. Significant
issues are highlighted by Internal Audit, who also closely
monitors/assesses the follow-up actions taken by the
management team on the issues raised by Internal Audit,

external audit and regulators.
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast changing environment. We
are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and business
practices to achieve sustainable long-term growth. We
continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.

Our Approach

UOB (China)’s risk management structure, as shown in the
following diagram, underpins the Group’s risk culture. Under
the structure, the various risk and control oversight functions
work with business and support units to identify their risks
and to facilitate their risk and control self-assessments.

Risk Management Structure

Our risk management strategy is targeted at embedding our
risk culture so as to facilitate ongoing effective risk discovery
and to set aside adequate capital efficiently to cater for
the risks arising from our business activities and external
factors. Risks are managed within levels established by the
senior management committees and approved by the Board
and its committees. We have put in place a framework of
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help
us identify, measure, monitor and manage material risks faced
by the Bank. This allows us to concentrate our efforts on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.

RUR 3T

Risk Culture
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Capital Management

Strategic Planning and Budgeting
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Performance Management

R RN E
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Stress Testing and
Scenario Analysis
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Risk Identification

Risk Governance Frameworks,

Risk Assessment

XUB dx = BT
Risk Monitoring Risk Reporting
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People, Processes, Systems

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE



SRITHIRETABIESR . BURFBRHARITREERFENRM T 2

FEMESl, ENTHTRAEE. KEANMAE LR AR
BEMKEREK, UBRNEX—EERIELMTESEE, &
T HIRE MBS K KBS R AR (KP1) B35 B T SRITHIKUE R 5T,
TSRS B o X th SRS ATER TR 3 KB B IR 3RS A0 ST 4E o

BITHRRIGIEIEZ., BURFMRIFETIRA, T8, KEMRER
B, RRREEHEIAEEREMESRES, UEMN THRRIT
BB AR 2L

R4
RTMRREEREATERSHRTRRAMETHLE, 56
BRRITHL ST

o DRSHBMTRIFRIH AL RELSHOBLIRG;

. BARTEELSRBTRBRT; LR

.« BHTRANRREIZMADEH,

EXFE, HITERS (EXCO) MEEL XK EIEZRR S (BRMC) t
BIEESHITREKE, EES I RITHEERERIFFLEEN
R F AR K FHITH R

ERSEERNBMOFEEZENIRT, BITKEEERITE (CEO)
BINESREEZRSARTMIHRITLSREK, SRNEES
EEZRCEREERRS (M), RFAHEERS (ALCO), FRE
R% (ICCC), BIERKEERRS (ORMC), HEENHRIPERS
(CRPC) FIRE ERARERE (RCC)o XEZRTEMBEESHEANE
RS TE R EE

PRAEEENBEAEERRSWRBT L FREN / HEZH~ R
FEIRT R R T IR &

REERHEIRITABNRINRE. RESIRFMRAIET 15K
EHERRANBH NS U, BERIBANRITMEMEEE
REFIENEE, XRELTMTHATH “ZERLK” ALEHE
HKIE

The Bank’s risk governance frameworks, policies and appetite
provide the overarching principles and guidance for the
Bank’s risk management activities. They help to shape our
key decisions for capital management, strategic planning and
budgeting, and performance management to ensure that the
risk dimension is appropriately and sufficiently considered.
We also take into consideration the Bank’s risk appetite in
the development of risk-related key performance indicators
(KPIs) for performance measurement. This serves to embed
a risk management mindset and culture throughout the
organisation.

Our risk governance frameworks, policies and appetites are
implemented through identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting processes. Risk reports are regularly submitted
to management and the Board to keep them apprised of the
Bank’s risk profile.

Risk Governance

UOB (China)’s responsibility for risk management starts at the

top with our Board overseeing a governance structure that is

designed to ensure that the Bank’s business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

» subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

In this regard, the Board is assisted by the Executive
Committee (EXCO) and Board Risk Management Committee
(BRMC) in the oversight of risks. The Board also reviews the
overall risk appetite and level of risk capital to maintain for
the Bank.

The CEO has established senior management committees to
assist in making business decisions with due consideration to
risks and returns. The main senior management committees
involved in this are the Management Committee (MC),
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit
Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC) and
the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

Senior management and the senior management committees
are authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business
lines and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is also the responsibility of every employee
within the Bank. Risk awareness and accountability are
embedded in our culture through an established framework
that ensures appropriate oversight and accountability for the
effective management of risk throughout the Bank and across
risk types. This is executed through an organisation control
structure that provides three lines-of-defence as follows:
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First line of defence - The Risk Owner:

The business and business support functions have primary
responsibility for implementing and executing effective
controls for the management of risks arising from their
business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and
to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line of defence - Risk Oversight:

The risk and control oversight functions (Risk Management
and Compliance Function), and the Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
provide the second line of defence.

The risk and control oversight functions support the Bank’s
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing risk
policies, frameworks, risk appetite and limits within which
the business functions must operate. The risk and control
oversight functions are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank’s risk profile and highlight
any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to the respective
management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances.

Third line of defence - Independent Audit:

The Bank’s internal and external auditors conduct risk-based
audits covering all aspects of the first and second lines of
defence to provide independent assurance to the CEO, Audit
Committee and the Board, on the effectiveness of the risk
management and control structure, policies, frameworks,
systems and processes.
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Risk Appetite

UOB (China) has established a risk appetite framework
to define the amount of risk we are able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The objective of
establishing a risk appetite framework is not to limit risk-
taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile remains
within well-defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework
was formulated based on the following key criteria:

e Relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

e Practical, consistent and easy to understand metrics for
communication and implementation;

»  Alignment to key elements of the Bank’s business strategy;

e Analytically substantiated and measureable metrics.

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas including but not limited to credit risk, country
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation
risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses which
we understand and are well-equipped to manage the risk
involved. Through this approach, we aim to limit earnings
volatility and concentration risk and ensure that our high
credit rating, strong capital and funding base remain intact.
This allows us to be a stable partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB (China)’s risk appetite framework is updated and
approved annually by the Board. Management monitors and
reports the risk limits to the Board and BRMC.
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Material Risks

UOB (China)’s business strategies, products, customer profiles
and operating environment expose us to a number of financial
and non-financial risks. Identifying and monitoring key risks are
integral to the Bank's approach to risk management. It allows us
to make proper assessment and proactively mitigate these risks
across the Bank. The key risks which could impact the success of
achieving the Bank's strategic objectives are as follows.
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UOB (China) has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks by
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC).
We continue to adopt a prudent and proactive approach
in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape, with
emphasis on sound risk management principles in delivering
sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of
capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised after considering all material risks. Stress testing
is conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed
conditions.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when such obligations are due. Credit risk is the single
largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial
bank, arising primarily from loans and other lending-related
commitments to retail, corporate and institutional borrowers.
Treasury and capital market operations, and investments also
expose the Bank to counterparty and issuer credit risks.

Integral to the management of credit risk is a framework
that clearly defines policies and processes relating to the
measurement and management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC are the key oversight committees for
credit risk and support the CEO and board level committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures. The
committees serve as executive forum for discussions on all
credit-related issues including the credit risk management
framework, policies, processes, infrastructure, methodologies
and systems. Particularly, ICCC holds the responsibility of
approving credit facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or
counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite Limit set
by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the
EXCO. RCC discusses and proposes credit risk management
framework for Board's approval, and reviews and assesses the
Bank’s credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division is responsible for the
reporting, analysis and management of all elements of credit
risk. By adopting parent practice while catering for local
regulatory and business need, it develops bank-wide credit
policies and guidelines, and focuses on facilitating business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient
credit risk management framework.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes
We have established credit policies and processes to manage
credit risk in the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process, our credit origination and approval
functions are clearly segregated. Credit approval authority
is delegated to officers based on their experience, seniority
and track record, and credit approval is based on a risk-
adjusted scale according to a borrower’s credit rating. All
credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines that are periodically reviewed
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank’s business
strategy and the business environment.
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Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an
ongoing basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews
conducted by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk
factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant for the
respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Counterparty credit risk is measured as the sum of current
mark-to-market value plus an appropriate add-on factor for
potential future exposure (PFE). The PFE factor is an estimate
of the maximum credit exposure over the remaining life of
the foreign exchange (FX) / derivative transaction and is used
for limit setting and internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing
transactions are typically mitigated through agreements such
as the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA)
Master Agreements, and the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Agreement. Such
agreements help to minimise credit exposure by allowing us
to offset what we owe to counterparty against what is due
from that counterparty in the event of a default.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. This is managed by setting exposure limits
on obligor groups, portfolios, borrowers, industries and
countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s
eligible capital base. Regular assessments of emerging
risks and reviews of industry and country outlooks are
also performed to provide a forward-looking view on
developments that could impact the Bank’s portfolio.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. It involves identifying
possible events or future changes in economic conditions
that may have unfavorable effects on the Bank’s credit
exposures, and assessing the Bank’s ability to manage its
financial resources through adverse circumstances. Likewise,
business credit stress test or sensitivity analysis are also
conducted to assess designated loan portfolio’s quality and
capital impact under the stress scenario and test parameters
prescribed by CBIRC.
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Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety
of instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. As a fundamental credit principle,
the Bank generally does not grant credit facilities solely on
the basis of the collateral provided. All credit facilities are
granted based on the credit standing of the borrower, source
of repayment and debt servicing ability.

Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored
periodically. The frequency of valuation depends on the
type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral. The main types
of collateral taken by the Bank include cash, real estate and
bank guarantees. Appropriate haircuts are applied to the
market value of collateral, reflecting the underlying nature of
the collateral, quality, volatility and liquidity.

In extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we also often take personal guarantees as
a form of moral support to ensure moral commitment from
the principal shareholders and directors.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank regularly monitors credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact our credit
risk profile. The Board and senior management are updated
on credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert
process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior
management for discussion on account strategy and remedial
actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We monitor closely the delinquency of borrowing accounts
as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is
considered as delinquent when payment is not received on
the due date. Any delinquent account, including a revolving
credit facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses,
is closely monitored and managed through a disciplined
process by officers from business units and risk management
function.
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Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the credit facility from their normal source
of income. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess for
a revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for more than
90 days will be categorised automatically as ‘Non-Performing’.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into ‘Pass’, ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-Performing’ categories. Non-Performing
accounts are further categorised as ‘Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’
or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of CBIRC. The
Bank has an independent credit review process to ensure the
appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. It must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, the account is
unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A restructured account is categorised as ‘Non-Performing’
and placed on the appropriate classified grade based on our
assessment of the financial condition of the borrower and
the ability of the borrower to repay under the restructured
terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBIRC guidelines
after careful consideration of the future recovery value
including liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing
account. A classified account is written off when the
prospect of a recovery is considered poor or when all
feasible avenues of recovery have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
manage the Bank’s corporate and housing loan non-
performing portfolios respectively. Non-performing accounts
are proactively managed with the intention of nursing such
accounts back to financial health whenever possible for
transfer back to business unit or maximise recovery of such
accounts that the Bank intends to exit.
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Loans by Classification

GG ES ARM (BAT) =)d
Loans by Classification Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
IEE Pass 33,0273 98.7%
X E Special Mention 202.6 0.6%
R 2R Substandard 186.0 0.6%
AT %% Doubtful 61.6 0.2%
5k Loss

&t Total 33,477.6 100%

(BRATU S BRI SHEBIFS REITHEIT M SWENBXERRS )

(For Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region, please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report)

As at 31 December 2018, total non-performing loans amounted
to RMB247.6 million, representing 0.74 per cent of the Bank’s
total loans portfolio.

2018 K, AENRHZSITART 247127, S EELELHIH 074%,

NS D 66 k%MT (hE) HRAE 208 FERE
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Market Risk

The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide directions
on market risk matters. The Market Risk Management and
Product Control (MRPC) and Balance Sheet Risk Management
(BSRM) Divisions support the RCC and the ALCO with
independent assessment of the market risk profile of the
Bank.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices, and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. We employ
valuation methodologies that are in line with sound market
practices, and we independently validate valuation and risk
models. In addition, a Product/Service Programme process
ensures that market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of products and services.
We continually review and enhance our management of
derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank
and business unit levels with targeted revenue and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits have
proportional returns that are commensurate with the risks
taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank as well as the Bank’s non-trading FX
exposures. The Bank is mainly exposed to market risk in its
trading portfolios that arises from changes in interest rates,
FX rates and commodity prices from the Bank’s client-driven
market making and product structuring activities as well as
trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses Internal
Models Approach to measure and control trading market
risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) within a 99
per cent confidence interval, using the historical simulation
method, as a control for market risk. The method assumes
that possible future changes in market rates may be implied
by observed historical market movements.
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Trading Backtesting Chart
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As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses, the VaR
measures are backtested against profit and loss of the trading
book to validate the robustness of the methodology. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions are due to
model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtest exceptions
are tabled at the ALCO with recommended actions and
resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk.
These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme
losses to facilitate proactive management of market risk.

The Bank’s daily VaR on 31 December 2018 was RMB5.67 million.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The BSRM supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book.

Our primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using
analysis tools including repricing schedules and sensitivity
analysis. They provide indications of the potential impact
of interest rate changes on interest income and price value
through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities
to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies
with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options. Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater change in the price-value of interest rate positions
than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,

FX rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under
the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

The bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to
address known as well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These
policies, controls and limits enable the bank to monitor and
to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank’s liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the bank’s core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and trigger
points to signal possible contingency situations. With regard
to the regulatory requirements on High Quality Liquid
Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR) which are effective from
31 December 2018, the bank’s ratio was about 1294 per cent
as at 31 December 2018 with High Quality Liquidity Assets
(HQLA) of RMB8.32 billion and Net Cash Outflow (NCO) of
RMB6.43 billion.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators.
Crisis management processes and various strategies including
funding and communication have been developed to
minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Operational risk includes banking operations
risk, fraud risk, legal risk, regulatory compliance risks,
reputational risk, outsourcing risk and technology risk.

Our primary objective is to maintain sound operations and
to protect the Bank’s reputation.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units properly
identify, assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The
ORMC meets monthly to provide oversight of operational
risk matters in the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the three
lines-of-defence model. The business and support functions,
as the first line of defence, are responsible for establishing
a robust control environment as part of their day-to-day
operations. Each business and support unit is responsible for
implementing the operational risk framework and policies,
embedding appropriate internal controls into processes and
maintaining business resilience for key activities.

The Operational Risk Management Division, as the second
line of defence, provides overarching governance of
operational risk through relevant frameworks, policies,
programmes and systems. It also monitors key risk self-
assessment results, outsourcing matters, operational risk
indicator breaches, self-identified operational risks and
incidents and reports these to Management, the relevant
senior management committees and the Board.

Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence by providing
an independent and objective assessment on the overall
effectiveness of the risk governance framework and internal
control through periodic audit reviews.

A key component of the operational risk management
framework is risk identification and control self-assessments.
This is achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of
a set of operational risk programmes. Several risk mitigation
policies and programmes are in place to maintain a sound
operating environment.

We have business continuity and crisis management
programmes in place to ensure prompt recovery of critical
business and support units should there be unforeseen
events. The Management provides an annual attestation to
the Board on the state of business continuity readiness of
the Bank.
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The Bank’s insurance programme covers civil and crime
liability, cyber security, property damage, terrorism, public
liability, as well as directors’ and officers’ liability. The
programme reduces operational losses through adequate
insurance coverage.

We have also adopted a technology risk management
framework to enable the Bank to manage technology risks in
a systematic and consistent manner.

Regulatory risk refers to the risk of non-compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes of conduct. We
identify, monitor and manage this risk through a structured
governance framework of Compliance policies, procedures
and guidelines maintained by the Bank. The framework
also manages the risk of regulatory breaches and sanctions
relating to anti-money laundering and countering the
financing of terrorism.

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective
or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments
in laws and regulations, or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Business and support units work with
the Bank’s internal and external legal counsels to ensure that
legal risks are managed.

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices,
activities and financial condition. The Bank recognises the
impact of reputational risk and has developed respective
framework and policy to identify and to manage the risk in
the Bank.

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational,
and reputational, legal and compliance impact arising from
the failure of a service provider to provide the outsourced
service or to comply with legal and regulatory requirements,
or a service provider's breaches of security. The Bank has in
place the Outsourcing Risk Management framework, policy,
procedures and guidelines to manage outsourcing risks.
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Fraud Risk Governance and Organisation

Fraud is defined as an act, with an element to deceive or to
conceal facts; and is not restricted to the gain of monetary
or material benefits.

UOB (China) actively manages fraud risks. Integrated Fraud
Management (IFM) Division under Risk Management in the
second line of defence, drives strategy, governance and
oversees the framework for fraud risk management which
covers Anti-Fraud tasks in accordance with our regulatory
requirements. The corporate governance of fraud risk is
provided by the Audit Committee at the Board level, and
primarily by the ORMC at the Management level.

All employees are required to uphold the UOB (China)
Code of Conduct, which includes anti-bribery and anti-
corruption provisions. The UOB (China)’s fraud hotline to IFM
ensures independent fraud investigation. The division also
works closely with business and support units to strengthen
their current practices across the five pillars of prevention,
detection, response, remediation and reporting.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were no split or merger
activities or other major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top management
was penalised by the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

- In January 2018, Beijing Dongcheng Sub-branch was closed. All
business of the Beijing Dongcheng Sub-branch was merged to
Beijing Branch.

- In May 2018, Chengdu Branch was relocated and transformed to
sky branch.

- InJuly 2018, Shanghai Branch submitted Preparatory Application
of Shanghai Xujiahui Sub-branch to the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC) Shanghai Office.

- InJuly 2018, UOB (China) submitted Preparatory Application of
Zhongshan Branch to the CBIRC Guangdong Office.

- In October 2018, Shenzhen Branch was relocated.

Others:

To address the trend of digitalisation and transformation
to the cashless society, the Bank is digitalising our retail
business. As part of this initiative, UOB (China) has ceased
all the branch ATM service by phases from 2017 to 2018.
Customers can continue to use UOB (China) debit card at all
China UnionPay (CUP) labelled self-service machines of other
banks in China for cash withdrawal and inquiry services.
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fEH: (86) (21) 6886 0906

Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Room 1P01-02, 201-203,

United Plaza,

No. 1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jingan District,

Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Bund Sub-branch (Shanghai)
No. 20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi Road,
Huangpu District,

Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Wholesale Banking
Only)

Room 602, 6 Floor,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,

Pilot Free Trade Zone,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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Our Network

Beijing Branch

Unit 102 First Floor and
Unit 01-03, 05-09 25 Floor,
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing)

5104./5105 and C806,/C807

No. 50 Liangmagiao Road,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8,910, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No. 1 Section 3, Hongxing Road
Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Guangzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1106 - 1114 Metro Plaza,

No. 183-187, Tianhe Bei Road,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch
Unit 0607, 21 Floor,
Tower A Fortune Plaza,
No. 61 Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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Shenzhen Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey100, No.5016

Shennan Road East,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building, No. 19 Hubin Bei Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208, 2209,
RongHui Plaza,
Changliang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 87017070
Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

No. 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

Unit A, 31 Floor,

HNA-POLY International Centre,
No. 235 Min Sheng Road,

Yu Zhong District,

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788
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fik4s: 650000

FEiE: (86) (871) 6555 0777

fEE: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Suzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1801, Tower 1Jinghope Square,
No. 88 Huachi Street,

Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP),
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200

Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Kunming Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 2105 & 2106, 21 Floor,

East Tower MASTER,

No. 1 Chongren Street,

Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777

Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191
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Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2019) Shen Zi No 60658622 BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited:

(1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited(hereinafter referred
to as “the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2018, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas Bank
(China) Limited’s financial position as at 31 December 2018 and
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBEs”).

(11) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China
Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited in accordance with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

(I11) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and
for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management
is responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless the management
either intends to liquidate United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial
reporting process.

(V) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.
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(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch

Shanghai China

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Shengwei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang, Wenyan

29 March 2019
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Balance Sheet
2018 ££ 12 A 31 H 31 December 2018

( BREFAERSS, EFBMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BiEFN 2018412 H31H 20174E12A31H

Notes 6 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
BrE: Assets
ME RFH P RBITRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1 6,304,237398 7169,538,272
=ERE Precious metals 470,469,280 -
TFHR R Al SR I5 Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 1,834,782,799 5,022,549,834
RHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 13,970,656,375 9,527,005,249
ZHEERE Financial assets held-for-trading 4 1,472,009,402 2,486,366,862
TEERE™ Derivative financial assets 5 6,332,656,875 5,576,168,427
INBREEREF Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 3,289,256,524 1,344,195,000
R BERAN R Loans and advances to customers 7 32,922,090,260 27136,596,787
H A Other debt ilnstljument at fair value through other 8 6970584932 )

comprehensive income

AHEHESHMEA Available-for-sale financial assets 9 - 4,369,225,273
[E| E 7= Fixed assets 10 36,483,950 39,050,984
TR EF Intangible assets il 103,322,284 118,548,683
IBIEFTER A= Deferred tax assets 12 129,728,621 51,894,939
HAtp 3= Other assets 13 370,401,834 657916141
BBt TOTAL ASSETS 74,206,680,534 63,499,056,451
fafk: LIABILITIES:
Bl % H b & B A9 TE B =R I Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 571,731,380 874,157,359
TNEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 16,764,294,274 19,274,817,004
ZHEER AR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 17 2,720,495,215 -
THEESmMAE Derivative financial liabilities 5 6,71917,029 5,659,819,815
SEH B £ BB Fm Repurchase agreements 18 270,207,863 -
R FERR Customer deposits 19 37,254,638,032 30,272,812,215
RZ{FER T #r i Payroll payables 20 125,647972 88,027,405
MR ER Tax payables 21 116,916,752 52,797,524
Nft&EH Debt securities issued 22 2,652,640,383 -
it fufx Provisions 23 25,364,243 -
Hititask Other liabilities 24 698,305,800 483107146
fmat TOTAL LIABILITIES 67,372,158,943 56,705,538,468
FrE&EINE: EQUITY:
SRR A Paid-up capital 25 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
RBAERR Capital reserve 26 11,191,697 9,975,150
Hpmaks Other comprehensive income 27 20,281,719 (7.477,010)
BRAR Surplus reserves 28 115,075,958 100,026,507
— R XU o General reserves 29 826,398,940 708,458,438
ROBEFE Retained earnings 30 361,573,277 482,534,898
EENHEAT: TOTAL EQUITY 6,834,521,591 6,793,517,983
HAERATAENE ST TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 74,206,680,534 63,499,056,451

T 88 WE 177 TUHIW SRR MEE D KM S IRFT A H M EBSY

The notes on pages 88 to 177 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FliER
Income Statement

2018 f£E For the year ended 31 December 2018
( BR4FRERRSS, ETRMAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

lfiisl_\é 2018 2017
—. BN 1. OPERATING INCOME
RN Interest income 3] 2,237995,099 1,638,475,960
MEXZH Interest expense 3 (1,258,795,984) (832,672,000)
FIE AN Net interest income 31 979199115 805,803,960
FEBERASEN Fee and commission income 2 188,701,612 150,469,652
FERRAETH Fee and commission expense 32 (58,388,023) (35,493,370)
FEHERBEESEEN Net fee and commission income 32 130,313,589 114,976,282
Fitdc Lgd Investment income 33 137,575,039 251,214,362
NRNETIERES Gain/(Loss) from changes in fair value 34 (293,485,843) 125,940,200
CRHEH Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 35 273,794,755 (131,521,671)
Hitrzs Other income 36 2,073,449 6,026,114
Bl ANEIT TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1,229,470,104 172,439,247
Z. BlxH 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
B KM Business tax and surcharges (12,468,305) (10,870,223)
&R EE R General and administrative expenses 37 (997,006,726) (873,881,947)
ERRERK Credit impairment losses 38 (53,211,435) -
BERERK Impairment losses 39 - (134,178,487)
BElZHET TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1,062,686,466) (1,018,930,657)
=, BlAE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 166,783,638 153,508,590
fn: Bl SMEN Add: Non-operating income 3,072,736 2,759,930
W BT Less: Non-operating expenses (863,967) (12,568,857)
M. FEETFE 2R 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 168,992,407 143,699,663
B FEHEHR Less: Income tax expense 40 (18,497,889) (7,695,725)
&, EFE 5. NET PROFIT 150,494,518 136,003,938
N Bt AW mHi e 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
semmmRLaamEn LS e ~
HEESREAS AR METSH Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 27 - (6,932,858)
t. EEKELE 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 177,315,510 129,071,080

#F 88 EE 177 T SRR MHEH AV S BRI BRI

The notes on pages 88 to 177 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EBTIEE 177 THMESMREAUTALEE:
The financial statements from page 83 to 177 have been signed by:

HEMWEE: K&
CFO: Brian Zhu

TRFEFRHITE. EF: YT

President and CEO, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan
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FiEERmENR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2018 £ For the year ended 31 December 2018
( BR¥sAERRSS, EFMBAMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

TWHRE RAAR HtmAaWsE BRAR —RRKRESE KROEFE ait

Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus General Retained Total
capital  reserves prehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
2017512 A3A & & Balance as at 31 December 2017 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (7,477,010) 100,026,507 708,458,438 482,534,898 6,793,517983
SUHERTE Changes in accounting policies
(—) RAFE&MTE
N " Impact of adopting IFRS9 - - 937,737 - - 138,466,186) (137,528,449,
B0 p pting ( ) ( )
REFEE Balances as at 1January 2018 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (6,539,273) 100,026,507 708,458,438 344,068,712 6,655,989,534
REEBTIEE Movements during the year - 1,216,547 26,820,992 15,049,451 117,940,502 17,504,565 178,532,057
(—) AW EBE (i)Total comprehensive income - - 26,820,992 - - 150,494,518 177,315,510
— n s T
( = ) EREHERNFUE (ii)njection of f%mds by and distribution . 1216547 : _ R R 1,216,547
DEK of funds to the investor
LRSS TNTEEI
e 1. Share-based payment - 1,216,547 - - - - 1,216,547
HHWEH pey
(=) Figsrae (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 15,049,451 117,940,502 (132,989,953) -
LIRIBRATR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 15,049,451 - (15,049,451) -
2RI — RN EE 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 117,940,502 (117,940,502) -
2018 ANHAE Balance as at 31 December 2018 5,500,000,000 11,191,697 20,281,719 115,075,958 826,398,940 361,573,277 6,834,521,591
2017 &£ & For the year ended 31 December 2017
( BrEEmliERAS, €HRMHMAANRTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
SWHRA REALNR HhGEEWE BRLOR —MRKRAESE KoOEFAE ait
Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus General Retained Total
capital  reserves prehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
20165E12 A3 H & E Balance as at 31 December 2016 5,500,000,000 7190,414 (544,152) 86,426,113 588,421,509 480,168,283 6,661,662,167
AEWBTHEE Movements during the year - 2784736 (6932,858) 13,600,394 120,036,929 2,366,615 131,855,816
(—) &AW EEE  (i)Total comprehensive income - - (6,932,858) - - 136,003,938 129,071,080
(Z) rEEBEAM (ii)Injection of funds by and distribution
- 2,784,736 - - - - 2,784,736
B ER of funds to the investor
1LRBZHTNEEE
i~ o 1. Share-based payment - 2,784,736 - - - - 2,784,736
EE R i
(=) ®iEsEe (ifi) Profit appropriation - - - 13,600,394 120,036,929 (133,637,323) -
LIRBESE AR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 13,600,394 - (13,600,394) -
2R — M XU 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 120,036,929  (120,036,929) -
2017512 A3 B &% Balance as at 31 December 2017 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (7477,010) 100,026,507 708,458,438 482,534,898 6,793,517983
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The notes on pages 88 to 177 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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WMERER
Statement of Cash Flows

2018 f£E For the year ended 31 December 2018
( BR4FRIERRSN, EFRMAHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BiETS
2018 2017
Notes 6
— REEPFENASRE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
T R SR TR I 5 R D B Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 580,545,268 24,464,542
TR B b SR04 R D B Net decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions - 100,000,000
WS g 7 e i ) lle B L Al < RAATL A TF AR Net in.cre.ase .in c.ustomer deposits and due to banks and other 6439553 841 2,849753.41
I ANER financial institutions
SN e T .Net.inc.rease in placements from banks and other financial 359,827,092 4918933565
institutions
KWHHAE, FEERALSHUNE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 212,899,459 1,811,845,192
KB MM EEERENTRNORE Cash received from other operating activities 502,938,357 22975791
ZEFHRERNMT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 9,995,763,957 9.934,754,621
TR AL B b $R 514 1 N ER Net increase in due from banks and other financial institutions 493,360,915 -
S S AR .Net.inc‘rease in placements with banks and other financial 3,874675918 823,691998
institutions

B LR AN B TS I N ER Net increase in loans and advances to customers 5,771,338,330 3,374,488,797
THWFE. FEERALSHIE Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 1,235,165,989 859,909,620
FRHARIRARIZAHNRE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 610,982,741 545,659,547
AN ETHR Cash paid for all types of taxes 9531371 85,396,188
AXZ S ENMBENE R A S mE Net increase in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 551,754,386 -
IHHEMEEEEDELNRE Cash paid for other operating activities 181,844,262 860,276,803
ZEFRDMEHTH T Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 13,814,436,252 6,549,422,953
BEBRNTENRERELH Net cash flows from operating activities 4 (3,818,672,295) 3,385,331,668

 Z ) B
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=, BREBTENAERE

2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

e [E] 42 F R R & Cash received from maturity of investments 17,530,000,000 14,550,000,000
BRERAKZKIHNE Cash received from investment income 412,915,933 231,211,160
RBEEAFFEMKAE~WERIE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term assets 11,009 1,289,547
BEBHMETENNT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 17,942,926,942 14,782,500,707
BB RE Cash paid for investment 20,590,000,000 14,337,012,104
MEBEER=MEMKPE=ZHMIE Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets 39,176,322 48,251,836
BRFHUERE T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 20,629,76,322 14,385,263,940
R ENTENRERE ST Net cash flows from investing activities (2,686,249,380) 397,236,767
=, EREPTENASRE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EITHREFREINIE Cash received from debt securities issuance 2,610,108,700 -
EXFEHMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 2,610,108,700 -
FHHMEERFHEXNTE Cash paid to other financing activities 2,676,427 -
EFEHIEFH N Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 2,676,427 -
ERENTENRETRESE Net cash flows from financing activities 2,607,432,273 -
W, CEEHHMERMEZE MY 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND 123,573,341 104719329
SR CASH EQUIVALENTS
R, RERAESEMNEEM (OFD ) 8 > é\' QELTJll\ZiFE{EﬁSSE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 41 (3.773916,061) 3,887,287,764
m: ENRNERMEENMRE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 14,326,732,931 10,439,445)167
Ny ERAERAEENYRE 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 42 10,552,816,870 14326,732,931

T 88 WES 177 WM SMRMIT ARV SMRMART S

The notes on pages 88 to 177 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2018 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2018
( BR4FANERRSS, ETRAMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. REMNERFRL

KERIT (HE ) BRAF (LUTER “AA8" F “KERIT (&

H)” ) RAXERITERLT ( LUTER “KERT” ) EpE
AREME EBHRIFSNEMBERIT,
ZPERITREKEEEZRES (UTHEHR “REES” ) F 2007
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1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as The Bank or UOB (China)) is a wholly foreign-owned bank
established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China (PRC), by
United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and the
Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation of the PRC on
the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Implementation),
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Committee
(CBIRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up
a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhouz Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial
transaction from the CBIRC (Institution Code: BO308H131000001),
and obtained its business licence (Uniform Social Credit Code:
913100006694147236) from Shanghai Administration for
Industry and Commerce. The registered address is Floor 3,
Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor
12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor
17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual
Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No. 116 and No. 128,
Yin Cheng Road, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone, China. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the Bank
are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as approved
by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of business
conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on
2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2018, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 12 branches and 4 sub-branches
respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging,
Suzhou and Kunming.
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2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of PRC
(MOF) (collectively referred to as Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for some financial instruments. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should be
recognised in accordance with relevant standrds.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2018 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts
are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits; cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within
three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
which have an original maturity date within three months.
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(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
monetary items or from translation of monetary items at
balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined,
the exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the
income statement or other comprehensive income of the
current period.

(5) Fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.
Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the income
statement in the period when it is incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure for
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

ERFHEw Bt R ER EHIHER
Estimated useful | Estimated residual | Annual depreciation

lives value rate
BEERERERD 50 &£ 2%
Properties and buildings ) ’
PEEE 54 20%
Office equipment i 0
R B8 & & ] o
Computers
s 54 20%
Motor vehicles ) ’

ARFEBI AT RGERAONEERTHERSE®, TR E
TR RHITER, LERBETEE,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
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(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets
or other long term assets when the asset is ready for its
intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The intangible assets can be recognised only when the
economic benefits related to intangible assets are likely to
flow into the Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably. While the intangible assets obtained in
a business combination under common control should be
measured at fair value if the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably.

The useful life of intangible assets is determined according
to the economic useful lives; those intangible assets with
unforeseeable economic lives can be classified as intangible
assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with a 8-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement on a straight line. The useful
life and amortisation method for intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised by the straight
line method.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract.
Other long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lower period of lease period or
useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to income statement if the expenditure does not bring
benefits to subsequent accounting periods.

(9) Financial instruments (applicable since 1)January 2018 )

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Bank's balance sheet) when:
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(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired; or

(ii) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date
accounting. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
represents a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date that
the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets of the Bank are initially classified into three
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at amortised cost, and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income based on the
Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets and
their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Underlying fee of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are directly recognised in profit or loss, while those
of other classifications are attributed to the acquisition of
financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets are based on
their classification:

Debt instrument investment at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at
amortised cost when both of the following conditions are
satisfied: The business model is to collect contractual cash
flows; the cash flows on specific date are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principle amount outstanding
according to the agreement of the financial assets. Their
interest income is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition,
modification or impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Such financial assets mainly include deposit with the
Central Bank, due from banks and other financial institutions,
placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans
and advances to customers, other receivable etc.
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Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets are classified into Financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income when both of
the following conditions are satisfied: The business model
is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows
arising from the sale of assets; the cash flows on specific
date are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding according to the agreement
of the financial assets. Their interest income is recognised
using the effective interest rate method. A gain or loss
arising from a change in the fair value is recognised as other
comprehensive income, except for interest come, credit
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses,
which are recognised in profit or loss. The gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income will be reversed
and recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are
derecognised. Such financial assets are presented as other
debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other than the financial assets at amortised cost and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income mentioned above, financial assets are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
the gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value will be
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, or other financial
liabilities. Underlying fee of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are directly recognised in profit or loss,
while those of other financial liabilities are attributed to the
acquisition of financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is based on
their classification:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that
are liabilities ) and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities
held for trading when one of the following conditions is
satisfied: Undertaking the financial liabilities is for selling
or repurchase of them in the near future; Forming a part
of the identifiable combination of financial instruments
which are managed in a centralised way and for which there
are objective evidences proving that the Bank may manage
the combination by a way of short-term profit making in
the near future; Being a derivative instrument, excluding
the designated derivative instruments which are effective
hedging instruments, or derivative instruments to financial
guarantee contracts. Financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivatives liabilities ) are subsequently measured
at fair value and the gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value will be recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank recognises a loss for impairment of financial assets
at amortised cost, debt instrument measured at fair through
other comprehensive income, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts based on their expected credit
loss.

Expected credit loss is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Bank in accordance with the
contract and all cash flows expected to be received by the
Bank discounted at the original effective interest rate, i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls. For the financial assets
with the credit impairment loss which is original or incurred
when purchasing, the cash flow should be discounted by the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate.

For receivable and contract assets without significant
financing components, the Bank uses the simplified approach
to calculate the credit impairment loss, based on lifetime
expected credit loss.
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Other than the financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts using simplified approach,
the Bank evaluates whether the credit risk has significantly
increases since the initial recognition at each financial
reporting date. When credit risk hasn't increased significantly
since the initial recognition, the financial instruments are
included in Stage I. the Bank calculate impairment allowance
at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial
instruments for the next 12 months, recognise the interest
income by using the carrying amount and effective interest
rate. When credit risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition, but have no objective evidence of
impairment, the financial intruments are included in Stage II,
the Bank calculate the impairment allowance at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial
instruments, and recognise the interest income by using
carrying amount and effective interest rate. If the financial
assets have objective evidence of impairment, the financial
instruments are included in Stage Ill, the Bank calculate the
impairment allowance at an amount equivalent to the ECL
over the lifetime of the financial instruments, and recognise
the interest income by using amortised cost and effective
interest rate. For financial instruments without any significant
credit risk on financial reporting date, the Bank assume there
isn't any significant increases in credit risk since the initial
recognition.

The Bank estimates the expected credit loss with consideration
of the past events, the present condition and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The disclosure related to the criterion for whether the credit
risk has increased significantly, the definition of the impaired
financial assets and the hypothesis of the measurement of
expected credit loss refers to Note 10.1.

When the Bank no longer reasonably expects to collect part
or all of the contractual cash flows, the Bank writes down
the carrying amount of the financial assets.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair value.
After initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
subsequent measured at the higher of, (i) the expected credit
impairment loss determined on financial reporting date and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the revenue principle.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Modification of financial assets

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are
renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation
or modification does not result in the derecognition of
that financial asset, the Bank recalculate the gross carrying
amount as the present value of the renegotiated or modified
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (or the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate). The modification gain or loss are
recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust
the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial
asset.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, it
either (i) derecognises the financial asset and recognises the
assets and liabilities created in the transfer when it has not
retained control of the asset; or (ii) continues to recognise
the financial asset to the extent of the Bank's continuing
involvement, in which case, the Bank also recognises an
associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the
lower of the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
guarantee amount. The guarantee amount is the maximum
amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to

repay.

(10) Financial instruments (applicable in 2017)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a financial liability
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Bank's balance sheet) when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired; or
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(i) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade
date accounting. The trade date is the date that the Bank
committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are either classified as held for trading
or designated by the Bank at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition. For such financial assets, initially
recognised at fair value, with underlying fee recognised in
profit or loss, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Both realised and unrealised gains/losses are recognised
in profit or loss of the current period. The dividends and
interest income related with financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss of the
current period.

Financial assets on initial recognition classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss cannot be
reclassified into financial assets of other categories; financial
assets of other categories cannot be reclassified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and a fixed
maturity date and which the Bank has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. For such financial assets,
they are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
transaction costs attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss of
the current period when they are derecognised, impaired, or
amortised.
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A financial asset recognised impairment provisions when
there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is
impaired. If a financial asset is individually significant, the
Bank assesses the asset individually for impairment, and
recognizes the amount of impairment in profit or loss if
there is objective evidence of impairment. For a financial
asset that is not individually significant, the Bank can include
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assess them for impairment,
or assess them individually. For financial assets that are not
impaired upon individual tests (including financial assets that
are individually significant or insignificant), impairment tests
should be conducted on them again by including them in the
group of financial assets. Assets for which an impairment loss
is individually recognised will not be included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

When the financial assets are impaired, the carrying amount
of the financial asset shall be reduced to the present value of
the estimated future cash flow (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). There is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial asset which can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed and recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. For such financial assets, they are initially
recognised at fair value plus any directly transaction costs
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss of the current period when they are impaired,
or amortised.

Financial asset recognised impairment provisions when
there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is
impaired. If a financial asset is individually significant, the
Bank assesses the asset individually for impairment, and
recognizes the amount of impairment in profit or loss if
there is objective evidence of impairment. For a financial
asset that is not individually significant, the Bank can include
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assess them for impairment,
or assess them individually. For financial assets that are not
impaired upon individual tests (including financial assets that
are individually significant or insignificant), impairment tests
should be conducted on them again by including them in the
group of financial assets. Assets for which an impairment loss
is individually recognised will not be included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

When the financial assets are impaired, the carrying amount
of the financial asset shall be reduced to the present value of
the estimated future cash flow (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). There is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial asset which can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed and recognised in the profit or loss.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in
any of the above categories. For such financial assets, they are
initially measured at fair value plus any directly transaction
costs attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Premiums and discounts on available-for-sale
financial assets are amortised using the effective interest rate
method and are taken to the profit or loss as interest income
or expense. Impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on available-for-sale financial assets which are
monetary items are recognised in the profit or loss, besides
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised at which time the cumulative gains or
losses previously reported in other comprehensive income
are included in the profit or loss. Dividend and interest
income on available-for-sale financial assets are recorded in
profit or loss of the current period.

When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss from declines in fair value that had
been recognised directly in other comprehensive income
are removed from equity and recognised in the profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit
or loss is the net of principal, any principal repayment and
amortization, less current fair value, and any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the profit or
loss.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on a financial asset measured at cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset, and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly charged to profit or loss, and
are subsequently measured at fair value. All the realised and
unrealised gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities initial recognied as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified into
other categories; financial liabilities of other categories
cannot be reclassified into financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as well.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value less any directly transaction costs attributable to
the acquisition of financial liabilities and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.
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Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, it
either (i) derecognises the financial asset and recognises the
assets and liabilities created in the transfer when it has not
retained control of the asset; or (ii) continues to recognise
the financial asset to the extent of the Bank's continuing
involvement, in which case, the Bank also recognises an
associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the
lower of the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
guarantee amount. The guarantee amount is the maximum
amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to

repay.

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require a payment to be made by the issuer to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails
to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
measured, on initial recognition, at fair value. For financial
guarantee contracts that are not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, they are, after initial recognition,
subsequently measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue principle.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. However, a
derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted market
price in an active market) and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, is measured at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.
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(11) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
(Repos) continue to be recognised, and are recorded as
financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Repurchase agreements”. Securities and bills
purchased under agreements to re-sell (Reverse repos) are
not recognised. The receivables are recorded as “Reverse
repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
as interest expense or interest income in the profit or loss
over the life of the agreements using the effective interest
method.

(12) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals
acquired by the Bank for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value
are recorded in the profit or loss.

(13) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset is impaired at each financial reporting date. If any such
indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount and carries out impairment test. For
those assets with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether
the impairment indications exist, the impairment test is
made at least annually. For intangible assets that have not
yet reached their intented use status are also conducted
annually impairment test.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be
reversed in a subsequent period.

(14) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as
provision when all of the following conditions are satisfied
(except for contingent liability recognised in a business
combination not under common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.
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The provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.
Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank reviews
the carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date.
The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when
there is clear evidence that the amount does not reflect the
current best estimate.

(15) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

“Interest income” and “interest expense” item in the income
statement of the Bank are the interest income and expense
calculated by using the effective interest method on financial
assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial liabilities at
amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation of
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income
or interest expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of a financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset or the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider expected credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received by the Bank that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank calculates the interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to the amortised cost of a financial asset that
is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

For those financial assets that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently
have become credit-impaired financial assets, the Bank
calculates the interest income by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset in
subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse
range of services it provides to its customers. For those
services that are provided over a period of time, fee and
commission income is accrued in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service agreement. For other
services, fee and commission income is recognised when the
transactions are completed.



16. &
LR EERT SHRFHANEXN R ENHRE0ESE R HAE
8, Rtz A ZEERE,

EAZEREREA
SEEEMNESTY, FEEHNZ M ERRELEITAEXHHE
FERARE S AR

ERRBEAEREAN

MBABRNNHE, THESFHEERERSNL2ANESKREREMN
FHIEREPREREEARNRTHNKNE, SREBEMARER
EARKER AR NKNE, BEETUEARMIAMTER, £HEEH
MEAHRER AEKBRF R ERITO M, NEEEEIREZEMMTAY
R,

17. BURF#1Bh

KU AMBNTERES i EL BT MR SR 15T BLRE SR IR, FIARBIA BUT
FhENASEHERTR, RREEISEEHSEITE, BUTHEIRIES
MR, RRALNETE;, 2ANETETRIREN, RRE
NEFiTE, SWBBXMBF G, ATFM2URHBEEXEAE
BRASRKE, WIAGREYE, HERIAMEXHAZERSERAHH
BN\ SER S S RE X A AT HMEE R ERIEX AR
BkH, BRI SERESOPEERE AR, SEFIRXIBUTND,
MEARX BB E; SIABEN S, ERXAEREG
MERAE. RENFESEITARE (BRREXETTENEF
#hBh, BTN SR ), BXAEERSFGERIBHE. Fik.

WESRZERIRN, FMRSENEXBERERFENT L ELH
AR

18. i3zt
ARATIBIBR G AT A AR EE BRI 2o

(16) leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as
finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

As operating lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under an operating lease, rental
payments are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

As financial lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under a finance lease, the leased
assets are capitalised initially at the fair value of the asset or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in “Other
liabilities” Finance charges are charged over the term of the
lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate of
return. Contingent rental payments are charged to the profit
or loss when incurred.

(17) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government subsidies
are monetary assets, they shall be measured in the light of
the amount received or receivable. If a government subsidy
is a non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at its fair value;
and if its fair value cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it
shall be measured at a nominal amount.Government subsidies
associated with income which are used as compensation for
future costs, expenses or losses are recognized as deferred
expenditures and shall recorded in future profits and losses
to reverse the related costs where the relevant costs,
expenses or losses are recognized. Government subsidies
associated with income which are used to compensate the
related costs, expenses or losses incurred by the Bank are
directly included in current profit and loss or used to reverse
the related costs. Government subsidies associated with
assets shall set off the book value of related assets or be
recognized as deferred expenditures. Government subsidies
related to assets are recognized as deferred expenditures
to be distributed over the useful lives of the relevant assets
and shall be recorded in the profit or loss by stages in a
reasonable and systematic manner. Government subsidies
measured in nominal amounts, shall directly recognized in
current profits and losses. Where relevant assets are sold,
transferred, scraped or damaged before the end of their lives,
balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures shall be
recognized in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(18) Share-based payment

The Bank’s share-based compensation programme is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.
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The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the
Bank recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant
date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where
the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment of
service period or performance conditions, the Bank makes
a best estimate at the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest, at each financial reporting date of the
vesting period, based on the latest information on eligible
employees and performance conditions, and recognise the
expense pertaining to the current period at the fair value on
grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated using
the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification which increases the total fair value of the
share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new compensation are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award.

(19) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or
for the termination of employment, including short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination
benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)
Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan, and unemployment insurance plan administered by
the local government, and the contribution is recognised to
profit or loss of that period.
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Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees’ salary, and recognises the cost in the profit or
loss accordingly.

(20) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in profit or loss except that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each financial reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each financial reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when fulfilling of the following conditions:

(i) A legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities.

(ii) The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
related to the income tax levied on the same taxpayer by
the same tax administrative department or are related to
different taxpayers but, within each future period of reversal
of important deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
the taxpayers involved intend to settle current tax assets and
current tax liabilities or acquire assets and liquidate liabilities
at the same time.
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(21) Fair value measurement

At each financial reporting date, the Bank measures its
derivatives, Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the assumption that the orderly transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principle
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principle market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible to the Bank. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is
maximized and unobservable inputs will only be used when
observable inputs are not available or obtaining observable
inputs becomes unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(22) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.

(23) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together
with related undertakings to return such assets to customers
are excluded from the financial statements.
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(24) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provisions will be made.

(25) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates
and assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events
on the financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates
and assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense,
assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty
of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the future.

Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management make following judgments which has
significant impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Business model

Financial assets are initially classified based on the Bank’s
business model for managing the financial assets. The
Bank judges the business model, with the consideration
of enterprise evaluation, the reporting mode to key
management, related risk and corresponding risk management
method of financial assets performance, and the reward
system of related business personnel. The Bank analyse and
judge the reason, timing, frequency and value of selling
financial assets before maturity date when judging whether
the business model is to collect contractual cash flows or
not.

Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

Financial assets are initially classified based on their
contractual cash flow characteristics. When judging whether
the contractual cash flow are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, the
considerations contain: (i)judging whether there exists
significant difference compared with the benchmark cash
flow, when evaluating the modification of the time value
of the money, (ii) judging whether fair value of the early
repayment characteristics is immaterial for financial assets
with early repayment characteristics.
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Uncertainty of estimates

The following items are the key hypothesis about the
future and other key source of uncertainty of estimates on
financial reporting date. It may cause significant modification
on carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the future
accounting period.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Bank classified a few financial assets into available-
for-sale financial assets with their changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income before 1 January
2018. When fair value going down, the management made
assumption for the decline to determine whether it need to
recognize impairment loss in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to evaluate
the impairment of financial instruments since 1 January 2018.
Applying the expected credit loss model need to make
significant judgment and estimates with consideration of
all reasonable information with proper basis, including the
forward-looking information. When making those judgment
and estimates, the Bank deduces the expected changes
of obligor’s credit risk with consideration of the historical
repayment data combined with the economic policy,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risk and etc.

Impairment of loans and advances

The Bank determined periodically whether there was
any objective evidence that impairment losses on loans
and advances have occurred before 1 January 2018. If any
such evidence existed, the Bank assessed the amount of
impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses was
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing
the amount of impairment losses involving significant
judgement on whether the objective evidence for impairment
existed and also significant estimates when determining the
present value of the expected future cash flows.

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment on financial
reporting date. When the carrying amount of an asset is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. For intangible
assets with infinite useful lives, the impairment test is made
annually and when impairment indications exist. For other
non-current assets besides financial assets, the impairment
test is made when there is an indication that their carrying
amount is not recoverable. When the carrying amount of an
asset or a group of assets is higher than their recoverable
amount, i.e. higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of estimated future discounted cash flows, it
is indicated that the impairment losses have occurred. Fair
value less costs to sell refers to the selling contract price
from fair trading of similar asset or the observable market
price, less the incremental costing directly attributes to the
asset disposal. When estimating the present value of future
discounted cash flows. The management must estimate the
future cash flow of the asset or the group of assets, and choose
a proper discount rate to determine the present value.
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ERMTENALNE

MNTFEEERTHNEMTE, AARLERRBRTZNRNTEE
HARNME, M TFAFEERTHNEMIE, A2RRAGBERR
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26. ST RS HITE

2017 &£, MBI TIETH (WS ENSE 14 B—N ) (F
FRUFRBNAET”) (Bl STHENE 22 E—et TREFIAFITE ).
(b2t ENE 23 S—ERMEFTER) . (DS ENE 24
S—FEHRE) LR (RS THENSE 37 S—ERTRIIR Y (5
R HEMITREN” ), ZAFH 2018 £ 1 A 1 B RIRBIFEIT
B bR AENHRITS TR, IRIBATHEME, A ILHEEERTFIRE,
B HPUTHEN SETTEN R = 7B AR AR S AR BAE
HHAE IR,

ARRFAMHEMTREVNEREENMSRHEMTET 2017
FHHREBRITER, Blt, FRIHRRIBIITH 2018 FM 5
FEEZRREEMTRENIIRN 2017 FLLBRESHITALLE, ER
AFEMIRENM~EHNEFRCEERRE 2018 £1 A 1 AT
BENES,

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments with
reference to a quoted market price in an active market or, if
there is no active market, using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, observable prices for similar instruments,
discounted cash flow analysis using risk-adjusted interest
rates, and commonly used market pricing models. Whenever
possible these models use observable market inputs and
data including, for example, interest rate yield curves, foreign
currency rates and option volatilities. The results of using
valuation techniques are calibrated against the industry
practice and observable current market transactions in the
same or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
instruments for the transferred transactions entered into, and
make relevant accounting treatments accordingly.

(26) Change in accounting policy and estimates

MOF issued the revised principles of The Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.14 — revenue
(hereinafter referred to as “new revenue principle”), The
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.22 -
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments,
The Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.23 -
Transfers of Financial Assets, The Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.24 — Hedging and The Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.37 — Presentation
of Financial Instruments (collectively referred to as “new
financial instrument principle”) in 2017. The Bank has early
adopted those revised accounting standards since 1 January
2018. To link up with the previous version of the standard,
the comparative amounts is not adjusted and the difference
on the first implementation date between the revised
accounting standard and the prior accounting standard is
retrospectively adjusted on the opening retained earnings
and other comprehensive income.

The Bank doesn’t adjust the comparative figures of the
financial statement according to new financial instrument
principle. Since the difference caused by new financial
instrument principle is retrospectively adjusted on the
opening retained earnings and other comprehensive income,
the financial data in 2018 is not comparable with the
comparative amounts in 2017 based on the previous financial
instrument principle.
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KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

New revenue principle

New revenue principle builds a new revenue recognition
model for standardizing the recognition of revenue from
contracts with customers. According to new revenue
principle, the revenue recognition method should reflect
the goods transfer mode or service provision mode to
customers, the revenue amount should reflect the expected
consideration amount collected from goods transfer or
service to customers. Meanwhile, new revenue principle
standardizes the judgment and estimates which are necessary
for each step of revenue recognition. The Bank has early
adopted new revenue principle since 1 January 2018. The
principle is not applicable for the revenue from financial
instruments, thus the adoption of new revenue principle has
no significant impact on the balance sheet on 1 January 2018.

New financial instrument principle

New financial instrument principle modifies the classification
and measurement methods of financial assets, and
establishes three categories for measurement: financial
assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. An entity needs to classify
financial assets with consideration of its business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets.

New financial instrument principle requires that the measurement
of impairment of a financial asset be changed from "incurred
loss model" to "expected credit loss model" and this way of
measurement applies to financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, and loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.



TERHBITH, SRFFRREITNEEMIAERAMTEENRAE

BT LT BERILWT:

On the first implementation date, the comparative data of
financial assets when classifying and measuring based on
the original financial instrument principle and new financial
instrument principle respectively is listed below.

EATRI &R T EFATEEN

BITEN &R I EFATEEN

NE&RFH P RBITIIN
Cash and due from the
Central Bank

TFRE AL FRIT

Due from banks and other
financial institutions
HFHRE

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions

fTESmME~
Derivative financial assets
INEBE&RE™

Reverse repurchase financial
assets

Hith 3=
Other assets
BT RFIETR

Loans and advances to
customers

SMIERSE

Investment in financial
instruments

Original financial instrument principle

New financial instrument principle

R
Measurement category

MERAA

Amortised cost

MERAA

Amortised cost

PERAA

Amortised cost

MAsMETEREET)

TN SR

Fair value through profit or loss
R

Amortised cost

MR

Amortised cost

MR AR

Amortised cost

EEURAMETEREES)
UPNEE b

Designated at fair value

through profit or loss

UAsRMETEREET)
ALt

Fair value through profit or loss

UanmEitEBETIITANEM
e (TTREESME)
Fair value through other
comprehensive income (Available-for-
sale financial assets)

EMHE

Book value

769,538,272

5,022,549,834

9,527,005,249

5,576,168,427

1,344,195,000

657,916,141

26,780,911,965

355,684,822

2,486,366,862

4,369,225,273

RS
Measurement category
MR A

Amortised cost

PERAA

Amortised cost

MR

Amortised cost

UAsHEITEBRE TS
ALt

Fair value through profit or loss

PERAA

Amortised cost

PR A

Amortised cost

PERAA

Amortised cost

EEMARMETEREER
PNEECE

Designated at fair value

through profit or loss

UAsMETEBRETE)
AL CECE

Fair value through profit or loss

MAsEitE B TS
TTANEM R S

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

K E M E

Book value

7167,828,335

5,004,176,754

9,515,664,077

5,576,168,427

1,344,195,000

653,043,292

26,650,254,530

355,684,822

2,486,366,862

4,369,225,273
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On the first implementation date, the adjustments of the

carrying amount of financial instrument in accordance with
new financial instrument principle are listed below.

& RIFMPRRT

FRI

T

TTEERMA

INBRESRE

RGBT

AHtHESmME

BE: HHEUHE

it st

HAt 57~

N

BEMERET

Hitm Sz

ait

Cash and deposit with the
Central Bank

Due from banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase
financial assets
Loans and advances
to customers

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Transfer to:

Other debt instrument at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Provisions

Other assets

Sub-total

Deferred tax assets

Other comprehensive
income

Total

RESRTREAEN " = BIERTEEN
- BEH% EHitE e

FIRE K E A SR ENE
Carrying amount listed

Carrying amount listed in ) ying u' !
L ) L in accordance with new

accordance with original financial ~ Reclassification Remeasurement ) o

) o financial instrument

instrument principle o
principle
2017/12/31 2018/1/1
769,538,272 - (1,709937) 767,828,335
5,022,549,834 - (18,373,080) 5,004,176,754
9,527,005,249 - (11,3417172) 9,515,664,077
5,576,168,427 - - 5,576,168,427
1,344,195,000 - - 1,344,195,000
27136,596,787 - (130,657,435) 27,005,939,352
4,369,225,273 (4,369,225,273) - -
- 4,369,225,273 - 4,369,225,273
- - (16,623992) (16,623,992)
657916141 - (4,872,849) 653,043,292
60,803,194,983 - (183,578,465) 60,619,616,518
51,894,939 - 46,050,016 97,944,955
7477010 - (937,737) 6,539,273
60,862,566,932 - (138,466,186) 60,724,100,746

FONS D 112 k%87 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE
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On the first implementation date, the adjustments of the
impairments of financial assets in accordance with new
financial instrument principle are listed below.

RS T EENTHRRK S /
BRHEETUENTIANTIT 515

Impairment loss in accordance

BHeMm T RENTHRRK£E /
REAEDUEN#IAR T 5 6

EHIT=E Impairment loss in accordance with

with original financial instrument Remeasurement new financial instrument principle/

principle/ Provisions in accordance
with the contingency principle

Provisions in accordance with the
contingency principle

FHHFRIBITEHRB  Deposit with the Central Bank - 1709937 1709937

v3 ACRIE U] Due from banks and other 2,556,795 18,373,080 20,929,875
financial institutions

HHESE Placements with banks and 3,558,000 1341172 14,899172
other financial institutions

B e Loans and advances to 548260721 130,657,435 678918156
customers

Hithim Gz Other comprehensive income
-Other debt instrument at

- HERE R fair value through other - 621,597 621,597
comprehensive income

ERRERMSEER 02N commitments and - 16,623992 16,623992
financial guarantee contracts

Hith&zr= Other assets - 4,872,849 4,872,849

IMF Total 554,375,516 184,200,062 738,575,578

i ARRBRERFERMSERGEANREESEIIRE “TItRE" $,
BT EEAFRERXBER LN R BT AR S EFE,

WMEMEINBARETE

RIB (X FEITE% 2018 EE SOOIV S IRREAAEL ) (M
£[2018136 B ) B3k, AATBETFLRARETHENSHITENT
BRANEE &R TEMNKEMNMES, AERMIIR “HIKEFHE” TH
5 “RFFIE” TH. “FUFE” MEM “FAFME” RERRB®
HX &M T EC BB M 3 B F &= fa ek B s AR B
REMFWFL, FN “HibE=" R “HMisE” WEPIIR, £2
AREGE R TENT SIEMREE LR RN &5 TENKE N
B, (UGB EREL ‘R B BB “BAFE” RBEHN “H
=" B “Hitafs” TESIR, it BURTEXMALAF4%F)
TEFIRL R TR,

NEMERLEFDHUERTMBFEM “AHX5BANMFETHERMET
FEEmE” BH, RMARRELENXSENMHFENEmME~
X 5REIMEEFHSASTE, 2017 £&, ZMBEIAER
HEAENAESTRER,

Note: the Bank presents the impairments of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts in the “provisions” item. The accumulated impact from
remeasurement of the credit impairment loss of loan commitments is reflected in
opening retained earnings.

Change in presentation of financial statements

According to Notice on Revising the Format of the Financial
Enterprise Financial Statements of 2018 (Cai Kuai [2018]
No.36), the Bank shall attribute the interest income accrued
by using effective interest rate method to the carrying
amount of corresponding financial instruments instead
of solely presenting in the “interest receivable” item or
“interest payable” item. The “interest receivable” item and
“interest payable” item only reflect the uncollected interest
receivable or unpaid interest payable of matured financial
instruments on finanacial reporting date, and are merged
into “other assets” item and “other liabilities” item. The Bank
merges the “interest receivable ” item and “interest payable”
item into “other assets” item and “other liabilities” item in
the comparison period without retroactively adjusting the
interest of financial instruments to the carrying amount
of corresponding financial instruments. These changes in
accounting policies have no impact on the Bank’s net income
and shareholder’s equity.

“Net increase in Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” item is added as an item of cash flows from operating
activities of cash flow statements, it reflects the net received
and paid cash flows from operating activities for purchasing
or selling financial assets held for trading. This item was
presented in cash flows from investing activities in 2017.
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The impact on financial statements from retroactive
adjustment caused by change in presentation of financial
statements is listed below.

BRI A TR b 7 B B TR AR IR

Book value listed in the original ~ Impact from change in presentation Book value listed in the

method of financial statements new method

2017/12/31 2018/1/1

R F) 2 Interest receivable 239,741,675 (239,741,675) -

HAth B3 Other assets 418,174,466 239,741,675 657,916,141

MRS Interest payable 298,396,936 (298,396,936) -

Hith i Other liabilities 184,710,210 298,396,936 48307146
. FHIn 5. Taxation

FAAREEEERTREHREIROT:

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as
follows:

EER

Value-added tax

201851 H Z RTRBEINIR1 7% 6% M B T HSHTIHRL, 2018458 1 H M BLBIN IR 16%3H 6% Fi %
TTHEETIR, Finig S E L F e s TR SUs 1 Z 80T S8 ES

The Bank is subjucted to a Value-added output tax levied on 17% or 6% of taxable income deduct the input tax
before May 12018, and levied on 16% or 6% of taxable income deduct the input tax after 1 May 2018..

T AP IR R

City construction tax

BRE RN R R T %I 5o

The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.

HE LM

Educational surcharge

1R SE PR R B 3% 1 o

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

1A TSR

Corporate income tax

% B AT PTG B 25 %1 4o

The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

KIHEA NETEH
Withholding Individual
Income tax

ARRZMERANEFE, HARXAERTRERNENAREH.
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on
salaries paid to its employees.

NS 0 4 k%E4T (hE) FRAE 208 FERE
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6. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
EENE Cash on hand 9105977 13,235,129
FHHRREBITEEESEES-ART Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 3,837,964,425 4,079,499,730
FHHRRBITEEESE-HT Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 294,752,887 124,229,477
TR RRITINCRE A S Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 610,118,872 1119,652,245
TR R SRR ITRY EH b 310 Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,552,048,087 1,832,921,691
R & Interest receivable 2,053,235 -
B ERPRBITRTUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,806,085) -
&it Total 6,304,237398 769,538,272

RIEFFEARBITHERME, EATRCIE—ERYHERE
EETHEARRIT. T208E£12A31H, ZAARAARTREIG
FERERSHIELL 64> 5 4 12.5%((2017 ££ 12 A 31 B: 15%) & 5%(2017
F£12 H31H: 5%)

2015510 AE 207 E9 B, RIFFEARBITHERNE, &
NRBRBEMMNIRNEEEE, SRELEAZHECZATM 20%
HEMNLREESEE, FERTHEARBRIT—F, 20759 A,
RIFRIT(PEARBITATFEBINOKE EZSESEBRAEN) (R
% 20171207 5 ) , BASEARZIZYE T SHAFIRIMSNT
R & & RIFAEH 0%, 2018 £ 8 A3 H, RI\/RIT (ZTFiAESN
TR AEEEBURIELN ) ($RE [2018]190 B ), ERNERIHRE
IEHAE T 5 BT RN A INC R & £ RIFE A 20%,

F2018FE12ANH, ZATBEBRERFRHRBITRTIAN
MrE—, #RERK 2 ANAATHERRKITEREES,

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. As at 31 December 2018, statutory deposit
reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at 12.5 per
cent (31 December 2017: 15 per cent) and five per cent (31
December 2017: five per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and
foreign currency deposits from customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations from
October 2015 to September 2017. The foreign exchange
risk reserve is calculated at 20 per cent of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding
month and will be reserved in the Central Bank for one year.
Since September 2017, the foreign exchange risk reserve
is calculated at O per cent of the contractual amount
of forward sales of exchanges in accordance with Yin Fa
[2017] No.207 the Notice of the People's Bank of China on
adjustment of foreign exchange risk reserve policy issued
by PBOC. Since 3rd, August 2018, the foreign exchange
risk reserve is calculated at 20 per cent of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in accordance with Yin
Fa [2018] No.190 the Notice of the People's Bank of China on
adjustment of foreign exchange risk reserve policy issued by
PBOC.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank inclueded all cash and
deposit with the Central Bank in Stage I, and measured the
impairment losses based on expected credit losses in the
next 12 months (12-month ECL).
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(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
FHERNRITE R E &5 Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions 1,086,698,658 4,412,528,939
TEFIESMRITRI L Due from overseas banks 753,066,131 612,577,690
RYF E Interest receivable 1327381 -
INGT Sub-total 1,841,092,170 5,025,106,629
B FEHELREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (6,309,371) (2,556,795)
FRE &5 Net amount of due from banks and other financial institutions 1,834,782,799 5,022,549,834

E1: FREALBEAFRARATRBERES (2010] 45 5 (hERESX
FEHXK < RITU SRVAAER XL ERIES] > BB ) HREMIHRHESR
R R B & AR AR R 12 D AFHE R R IHRR B E R &

F208E 12 A3 H, ARABELBEMRLRANNE—, HBEKFKR2
NARHHERRKTTEREES,

LiIfHESE

Note 1: Impairment provisions for due from banks and other financial institutions
represented the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No.
45 Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the
Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued
by CBIRC, and the provision for impairment measured according to 12-month
expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank included all due from banks and other financial

institutions in Stage I, and measured the impairment losses based on expected
credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
- (H = 4= =

T}i?ﬁ[&{_ﬁ R PIRATR L Placements with domestic banks and other financial institutions 12,864,915,427 9169,647]159
& R
/R HEIMRITE Placements with overseas banks 1,014,613,600 360,916,090
R 2 Interest receivable 104,824.390 )
INT Sub-total 13,984,353,417 9,530,563,249
Bl IREEACREER Less: allowance for impairment losses (13,697,042) (3,558,000)
IFHBEE ST Net amount of placements with banks and other financial institutions 13,970,656,375 9,527,005,249

1 FEREMOREE A AR RBREE 201045 S (PERKESXT
& CRATUERANMESREEEES ) MEM) HREMTHRMERR
R (B 7 A R AR R 12 4 A BURE AR RITHRM R E R &

F201B8F12 A3H, ARFAHFEHREEEMNNE—, BEFXK21A
AFHE RREITEREES,

4. X HHEERME

Note 1: Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 Circular of the China
Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for
Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued by CBIRC,
and the provision for impairment measured according to 12-month expected
credit loss.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank included all placements with banks and other

financial in Stage I, and measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(4) Financial assets held-for-trading

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
tiﬁig%g%g%%i Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
BURMERITIRS Bonds issued by policy banks 409,350,760 568,748,400
hRRITERENEEE Central bank bills and government bonds - 576,006,918
RHLE Placement with banks and other financial institutions 151,475,699 -
[&] M fF 8 Negotiable certificates of deposit 894,193,800 1,341,611,544
R H 2 Interest receivable 16,989,143 -
ait Total 1472,009,402 2,486,366,862

FENS D 16 k®@7 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE
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TEEMITERE—MEm %, EMERRTERKMHN S —f “&E
" SRmREHSREGTENME, BEXE “EfMiE” =5
BERE. XFER. BREHN. BETNHNCERANESE, &2
EEANTESMTIEAFETNEA. BHRIN,

TEERMTRENE eI TR B BN a RN E,
FRAFFHERARGEENBS . ZERANMERRTSITREHRR
AARMITE SR TRAREHOAMIER RN E.
AAREAERREBNTMBIEEAER TENTEEMTE,

KRR TREFAGRBMFAENMTESHMTRNT:

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another “underlying” financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
“underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative

instruments are as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
NRME NRMNE
Fair Value Fair Value
BNEE &= faf& BNET &= ff&
Notional Assets Liabilities Notional Assets Liabilities
Amount Amount

. Foreign exchange
SNLATETR: contracts:

ZHEY Forwards 11,046,554,962 65513596 119,074,499  2412,510,390 76,850,309 27,642,400

HEEH Swaps 415,864,449724 4874531221  4,610,794,899 483,505,869,264 4797862789  5110,463,233

&Y Options 25,370,373,062 545,806,880 520,277,847 69,640,429,480 246,713,183 81,200,104
it Sub-total 452281377748 5485851697 5250147245 555,558,809134 512,426,281 57219305737
FRGTETR: Interest rate contracts:

HEY Swaps 183,481,657,925 732,417,067 789,222,305  65,785969,296 347,036,304 362,451,591
it Sub-total 183,481,657,925 732,417,067 789,222,305 65785969296 347,036,304 362,451,591
BRNEBIEHTIE: Commodity contracts:

HEEY Swaps 1937,686,673 30,071,881 29485841  3,566,583,712 65,873,686 65,028,363
Nt Sub-total 1,937,686,673 30,071,881 29485841  3,566,583,712 65,873,686 65,028,363
BREMNERIESH IR Equity contracts:

BHEs Options 2,361,008,947 1,705,633 1930,796 165,033,134 5287.838 136,723
Nt Sub-total 2,361,008,947 1,705,633 1,930,796 1165,033,134 5,287,838 136,723

- Precious metal
== 43 B.
RERITETA: derivatives:

RGN Forwards 5953,179,822 43,712,658 40,108,093 927,405,997 392,342 165,272

HEY Swaps 2,735,599,206 38,897,939 61,022,749  2,636,632,056 36,151,976 12,732,129
Nt 8,688779,028 82,610,597 101130,842  3,564,038,053 36,544,318 12,897,401
&it Total 648,750,510,321 6,332,656,875  6]71917,029 629,640,433,329 5576168427  5,659,819,815
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6. INBREERME

(6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

BREBMFHE: Classified by counter-party:
SRITE L Banks
BrigF 2 Interest receivable

Less: allowance for impairment losses

w: BEEE

BRGNS E: Classified by type of pledged assets
] Bonds

B F 2 Interest recevable

B BEES Less: allowance for impairment losses

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
3,283,790,000 1,344195,000
7,850,111 -
(2,383,587) -
3,289,256,524 1,344195,000
3,283,790,000 1,344195,000
7,850,111 -
(2,383,587) -
3,289.256,524 1,344195,000

T208F12A31H, ARAHEBINEEEHMATHANNR—, REX
k2 AARTEHERBRKITERELES,

7. Z ST EER

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank included all reverse repurchase financial assets
in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on expected credit losses in
the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(7) Loans and advances to customers

WENE 2 s

VAR 30N ol s i (71) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate
31-12-2018 31-12-2017
R AR T2 Loans and advances to customers at amortised
R GERRF TR cost
OINGE I Individual loans and advances:
EEI%RE Mortgages 6,871,291,788 6,681,291,039
Hih Others 2,783,637 3,368,364
INTF Sub-total 6,874,075,425 6,684,659,403
M GEERFOEER Corporate loans and advances:
R Loans 17,842,022,147 15,430,316,056
) Discounted bills 436,083,536 864,418,688
R Trade finance 7439,886,503 4349778,539
INT Sub-total 25717992186 20,644,513,283
LA HERE ) Loans and advances to customers at fair value
PR SR AR R BT through profit and loss 885,500,931 355,684,822
R
&it Total 33,477,568,542 27,684,857,508
R Y F B Interest receivable 158,960,378 -
&A= B Total amount of loans and advances 33,636,528,920 27,684,857,508
B REREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (714,438,660) (548,260,721)
E LR ERFN M E & Net value of loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260 27136,596,787
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72 #4T S f (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry
31-12-2018
T TET SR &0 Eefil (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
gl Manufacturing 8,080,908,618 24%
Bl Real estates 7,536,484,147 22%
#HEMEEN Wholesale and retail 5,210,735,566 16%
Rt Finance 1,533,914,796 5%
FEFME R Accommodation and catering 1117397918 3%
B A SR AR Telecommunicatic?n, software and information 947067291 3%
management service
HEMBE SRS Leasing and commercial services 495242110 1%
RBIEH . CHEMHRELL Transportation, storage and post 452,006,742 1%
2ol Construction 374,525,024 1%
B, #h, MR RKEFEFEER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 283320924 1%
I, HESREMESERN Health, social security and social welfare 220,567,591 1%
biog o X i Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 201,000,000 1%
FERRANFEARR S Scientific research and technical services 142,322,390 0%
ERIRSE. BEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 8,000,000 0%
N EAN Retail loan 6,874,075,425 21%
&it Total 33,477,568,542 100%
RN FR Interest receivable 158,960,378
RHRHRINBHR DL Total amount of loans and advances 33,636,528,920
B RROBEEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (714,438,660)
RFRINE I ENME Net value of loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260
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31-12-2017

T T SR i Ee il (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
&l Manufacturing 6,886,974,376 25%
Bt =l Real estates 5,368,776,845 20%
& FNEE N Wholesale and retail 4,510,605,460 16%
{EEFNE ol Accommodation and catering 1,510,671,427 6%
HEMHSRSL Leasing and commercial services 758,546,299 3%
ERAEH. RERESRARS Y e ooy 1 are and nformatien 541938,086 2%
RiBIEH . BB Transportation, storage and post 372,827,537 1%
ERl Finance 364,859,686 1%
#yil Construction 289,265,974 1%
biog o XN Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 188,312,865 1%
B, #0., MREKEFFER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 113,911,663 0%
FEHRAFEARRS Scientific research and technical services 83,140,785 0%
BRRS. EEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 8,000,000 0%
I4%, HeREMESEN L Health, social security and social welfare 2,367102 0%
O£ Retail loan 6,684,659,403 24%
&it Total 27,684,857,508 100%
SER R Y F] 2 Interest receivable -
R BREE Total amount of loans and advances 27,684,857,508
W RRREER Less: allowance for impairment losses (548,260,721)
KGR AN BRI E O E Net value of loans and advances to customers 27136,596,787
73 X 9% (7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region
31-12-2018 31-12-2017
FiL North-east 1,030,567,899 919,983,659
%®R East 18,244,357,381 15,131,718,602
4 North 5,945,112,567 4,220,128,887
feh Central 703,838,787 380,899,386
*E South 3,929,572,630 3,755,672,857
i) South-west 2,329,286,538 1,948,988,785
ik North-west 77,000,000 81,232,060
F5h X Overseas 1,217,832,740 1,246,233,272
&it Total 33,477,568,542 27,684,857,508
R F 2 Interest receivable 158,960,378 -
R ERIBRBE Total amount of loans and advances 33,636,528,920 27,684,857,508
W RERUREEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (714,438,660) (548,260,721)
AR E N E Net value of loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260 27136,596,787
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TABIBRAXS T

(7.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or guarantee

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
E AT Unsecured loans 6,412,734,720 4,374,833,295
RIERRTN Guaranteed loans 6,234,081,650 467,047,023
PR R BERR Loans with collaterals 20,989,712,550 19142,977190
Hep: Of which:
R Secured by mortgages 16,212,600,347 15,236,029,733
FRHREERR Secured by pledges 4777112,203 3906947457
NI S0 Total amount of loans and advances 33,636,528,920 27.684,857,508
B WREIRRER Less: allowance for impairment losses (714,438,660) (548,260,721)
AN E A Net value of loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260 27136,596,787
7.5 B HA BT =k (7.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2018
BHAKREE BENEEE
CIECIPNETOPS EHE E &it
(&%) (&3%) 0
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto Overdue 3 years
) ) ) ) Total
90 days 1year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above
RIEGET Guaranteed loans 7699986 - - - 7,699,986
FE R4 B3N Loans with collaterals 98,374,378 2,629,450 30,800,808 66,201,717 198,006,353
Hrh. Of which:
SRR Secured by mortgages 98,374,378 2,629450 30,800,808 66,201,717 198,006,353
&it Total 106,074,364 2,629,450 30,800,808 66,201,717 205,706,339
31-12-2017
BHANR 4 BENEE
BENRZEIOR BHBE E &it
(&%) (&3 ) 0
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto Overdue 3 years
) ) ) . Total
90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above
IE:EER Unsecured loans - - 1,866,660 - 1,866,660
R EL Guaranteed loans - - 13,539,928 - 13,539928
MR R =k Loans with collaterals 18,018,820 1,942,385 162,046,910 31,601,717 213,609,832
Hep: Of which:
SR Secured by mortgages 18,018,820 1,942,385 162,046,910 31,601,717 213,609,832
&it Total 18,018,820 1,942,385 177,453,498 31,601,717 229,016,420

WEATRRIE A S A 2@E 1 R E 895K,
Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are overdue for one day or above.
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76 LRk R ( MEE 14)

PR A FE T ENRZ IR BRAEESEREARART 2 AM
HERRAREBNFEHTBERBASHIHE, 2018 FEREHR

(7.6) Loan impairment provision (Note 6.14)

The allowances for loans and advances measured at
Amortised cost are measured according to the 12-month

BEHEHWT: expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss
respectively. The movement of impairment provisions during
2018 is as follows:
FE—HE FEMER E=ME
Stage | Stage Il Stage Ill
FKR124- AFHA BAGEH BAGFEH .
ERIR% FHAE ARk EREEERBE H
12-month expected  Lifetime expected Lifetime expected T
) ) ) otal
credit loss credit loss credit loss
28';)‘?]8 #1H1H At 1)January 2018 514,224,038 88,060,663 76,633,455 678,918,156
2018% 1A 1H
. A tonl 2018
SR mount on 1January
—ENEHE Transfer to Stage Il (4,896,334) 4,896,334 - -
—ENE=ME Transfer to Stage Il (25,160,945) - 25,160,945 -
—— A E— W Transfer to Stage | 2,249,949 (2,249949) - -
AEHE S5 A Charge/(reverse) during the year 118,814,085 (61,721,656) 1,681,481 58,773,910
il Writing off during the year - - (22,074,873) (22,074,873)
" . Recovery of loans and advances
W B AR BEAZ 3 i ) - - 28,020 28,020
previously written off
I EH Unwinding of discount - - (1164,272) (1164,272)
LRI H Exchange rate difference - - (42,281) (42,281)
FEREH Closing balance 605,230,793 28,985,392 80,222,475 714,438,660
2017
AR HE ait
Individual Collective Total
FEXERE Opening balance 165,446,482 348,660,592 514,107,074
FEITR Charge during the year 4,083,051 127,746,737 131,829,788
REIZEH Writing off during the year (91,912,565) - (91,912,565)
Wz =] LA BT AR S &L Recovery of loans and advances previously written off 958143 - 958143
LEER Exchange rate difference (1,941,656) (4,780,063) (6,721,719)
FEREE Closing balance 76,633,455 471,627,266 548,260,721

TENS 2 2
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8. Hft Bt & ({UEM 2018 & )

(8) Other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (applicable for 2018 only)

‘ AR ‘ EERR
EMRTM  HHFR IMETSHh HARRE B BRIt RN EER Lras
> TN K
Opening Interest  Gains form change Ending Cost Accumulated gains Accumulated ECL
balance payable in fair value during balance from changes  recognised in other
the year in fair value comprehensive
income
HhRIRITRIE R E R
Central Bank billsand  2,875,525,022 66,900,270 36,113,404 5157951711 5,125,060,650 18,426,957 521936
government bonds
BURMRITR S
Eonfs issued by policy 99937840 10,699,502 7,063,757 59877391 588,890,270 7,078,543 109,154
anks
Rt
Negotiable certificate  1,393,762,41 - 2,001,750  1,213,859,310 1,210,529,522 395902 509,800
of deposits
&it 4,369,225,273 77,599,772 45178911 6,970,584,932  6,924,480,442 25,901,402 1,140,890

T 2018 F 12 A31H, ARAHEBEMBETBUANNER—, REREKR
TANTHERRETEREES.

9. AN ESRME T (IRIEA 2017 4 )

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank included all other debt instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income in Stage I, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(9) Available-for-sale financial assets (applicable for 2017 only)

31-12-2017
RERE: Bond investments:
RRBITEREERE Central Bank bills and government bonds 2,875,525,022
BURMERITRS Bonds issued by policy banks 99937840
Mt Sub-total 2975,462,862
E 77 Negotiable certificate of deposits 1,393,762,411
RF 2 Interest receviable B}
WEAES Allowance for impairment losses )
ait Total 4,369,225,273
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10. EE&Z (10) Fixed assets
BERETY B E DR ERNIE & &it
2018 Propertigs gnd Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total
buildings computers
R Cost:
208&£1H1H At 1January 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 15320396 123,652,267
TN Additions - - 12,122,871 12,122,871
REFEETEEAN Transfer from construction in progress ) ) 3537 3537]
( BiEFS, 13.2) (Note 6.13.2) ’ ’
RELRE Disposals - - (8.417528)  (8417,528)
2084 12 A31H At 31 December 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 119,061,110 127,392,981
Rit#rI8: Accumulated depreciation:
208&£1H1H At 1January 2018 191,921 1,722,465 80,966,897 84,601,283
KEITHRE Additions 115,874 371,455 13,766,029 14253358
TELE Disposals - - (7945,610)  (7945,610)
2018&£ 12 A31H At 31 December 2018 2,027,795 2,093,920 86,787,316 90,909,031
Bl &= S ER S Net book value and net carrying amount
2018 12 31 H At 31 December 2018 3,765,895 444,261 32,273,794 36,483,950
BEEREHY B E DARBNEE ait
2017 Propertigs .and Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total
buildings computers
R Cost:
207#1A1H At 1January 2017 5,793,690 2,508,008 M,463,967 119,765,665
A FEHEN Additions - 368173 9,960,980 10,329,153
T%gg\li’;ﬁ)\ Z'ILZrl:sefzr' 1]‘;051 construction in progress ) ) 3189,846 3189,846
RELRE Disposals - (338,000) (9294397)  (9.632,397)
2017 £ 12 A31H At 31 December 2017 5,793,690 2,538,181 15320396 123,652,267
Fit#rIA: Accumulated depreciation:
207#1A1H At 1January 2017 1,796,047 1,671,154 77,283,084 80,750,285
REHR Additions 15,874 389,31 11,693,847 12,199,032
TERE Disposals - (338,000) (8,010,034)  (8348,034)
2017 £ 12 A31H At 31 December 2017 191,921 1,722,465 80,966,897 84,601,283
Bl E & = s B B s Net book value and net carrying amount
201712 A31H At 31 December 2017 3,881,769 815,716 34,353,499 39,050,984

F208FE12A3HKE2017E12 A3 H, BERERYALRATRMEENNDLRAE,

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the properties and buildings represent the office capitalised under finance lease.
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N. TRAEF

(1) Intangible assets

2018 2017
B E Software
R Cost or valuation:
FEHEREN Opening balance 202,519,588 165,733,088
TEME Additions 7,254,878 2,236,598
EEIEEN Transfer from construction in
( ffE7S. 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) 8,209,733 34,549,902
FEREE Closing balance 217984199 202,519,588
FiTHeH: Accumulated amortisation:
FEHME RE Opening balance 83,970,905 64,787,689
KEITHR Additions 30,691,010 19,183,216
FERREN Closing balance 114,661,915 83,970,905
ERH = HER ST Net carrying amount
ERER Closing balance 103,322,284 118,548,683
12, BIEATRFET~ (12) Deferred tax assets
2018
BB FTASHE R = Deferred tax assets FEYSE AETANRE lefﬁﬁﬁvl'i\ FEREH
FrE&E N
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to profit or loss to equity balance
. . Allowance for impairment losses on
N BENERES; -
BWRRIRFE 357 5k & loan and placement 107,400,577 (11,657,383) 95,743194
s . Allowance for impairment losses on
= i 3% =y s B
Hitn & r A= REES other financial assets 7,033,565 (3,283,883) 3,749,682
it s Provisions 4155998 2,185,063 - 6341061
Sk S i e e T £ S Unrealised gain/(loss) on available-
[t Bih & Sup | - -
PTG & AR TR SR i for-sale financial assets 2492337 (2492337)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on other debt
HERIR AR AR SLIREE instrument at fair value through other - - (6,760,573)  (6,760,573)
comprehensive income
TTEEMTAENRMETEIMEE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (69,224,845) 79726,621 - 10,501,776
H A e B2 B E T E5hit A\ Changes in fair value of other financial
LHHEARBH SR TR M {EZinstruments at fair value through 12,925,414 (5,039,865) - 7,885,549
Zh profit or loss
FTIREATTAR RS Payroll payables 2,701,787 348,137 - 3,049924
FiREH Accrued liabilities 10,393,051 (1,801,677) - 8,591,374
IS Deductible tax losses 19,219,453 (19,219,453) - -
Hi Others 847,618 (220,984) - 626,634
&if Total 97944955 41,036,576 (9.252910) 129,728,621
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2017

REEEFITAN

RIEFTIB TR T Deferred tax assets EHRT REIT NI B E IS ERRE
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
. . Allowance for impairment losses on

o =] = Ay, B
BRI E Rk & loan and placement 52,019,101 19,881,824 71,900,925
Httm=mRk® Bad debt allowance for other assets 351,475 (351,475) - ;
AT e 4 Bl o ok ST IR 35 Unrealised profit or loss on available- 181384 ) 2310953 2492337

SR SRR for-sale financial assets ' " o

FTEESBMTENRMETENIMEE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (22,465,656) (46,759189) - (69224,845)
FEAES N R RETZ E:slr:sges in fair value of gold from (6,333.243) 13529929 ) 7196686
FRIAITIRREE Payroll payables 1,797,603 904,184 - 2,701,787

RN ST Changes in fair value of structured i
NRMETEHRR deposits embedded with options 4,381,099 1490241 >871340
FiR % H Accrued liabilities 2,386,346 8,006,705 - 10,393,051
kISR Deductible tax losses 22178187 (2,958,734) - 19,219,453
Hit Others 2,783,415 (1,439,210) - 1,344,205
&it Total 5727971 (7,695,725) 2310953 51,894,939

F207F 12 A3 H, ARRREBETKRFHBFITN, LR
BRRRNTRMN SRR REAFMEFTARBANEART
76,877,811 STAI R0 S A K B E AT R R B = A AR 19219453 ¢,
ZIHA A 5 2021 £, AT RO ST 2018 4F & HRIE R 40BE BT
B8,

As at 31 December 2017, based on the profit forecast and
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax loesses can
be utilised, the Bank recognised deferred tax asset of RMB
19,219,453 arising from unused tax losses of RMB76,877,811,
among which will expire in Year 2021. The unused tax losses
has been fully utilised in 2018.

(13) Other assets

BN 126

B

Notes 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
KHAE MR A Long-term deferred expenses 131 90,572,253 89,699,739
EETRR Construction in process 13.2 17,651,040 9414116
b 57 sk Other receivables 133 256,785,707 314,982,809
MYEFH 2 Interest receivable - 239,741,675
JEa] s . o
gé;ﬁ%%ggjﬁﬁ& I\?,E'ﬁe\f:;zj be verified and 5392834 4077802
&it Total 370,401,834 657,916,141
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131 KEAER 2R A

(13.1) Long-term deferred expenses

HNEER BRI H Hith &it
2018

Leasehold improvement Others Total
FHEREN Opening balance 88,169,545 1,530,194 89,699,739
AR LN Additions 2,114,858 10,712,726 12,827,584
REFEETITEFEN  Transfer from construction in )

( BtiES. 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) 6,286,530 6,286,530
s % 0:351 Amortisation (16,827,416) (1,414,184) (18,241,600)
ERET Closing balance 79,743,517 10,828,736 90,572,253

BEANEER~HMRIH Hit &it
2017

Leasehold improvement Others Total
FHRE Opening balance 72,056,327 112,031 72,168,358
N8N Additions 3,541,361 1,500,000 5,041,361
REFEEIEEN  Transfer from construction in i

( BtEZS, 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) 28,591,727 28,591,727
AR Amortisation (16,019,870) (81,837) (16,101,707)
FERREN Closing balance 88,169,545 1,530,194 89,699,739
BLERIE (13.2) Construction in progress

2018 2017
FEHREN Opening balance 9,414,116 33,196,977
RSN Additions 22,768,558 42,548,614
EANEEE” (MiEx. 10) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 6. 10) (35,371) (3,189,846)
BNELEERE (MiENS. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 6. 11) (8,209,733) (34,549902)
ENKHIGMZER (MiEsS. 131)  Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 6.1311) (6,286,530) (28,591,727)
FREHE Net closing balance 17,651,040 9414116
13.3 Eth iz W=k (13.3) Other receivables

2018 2017
Jod S &R T Other receivable and prepayments 259,174,381 314,982,809
REES Allowance for impairment losses (2,388,674) -
EREE Net value 256,785,707 314,982,809
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MR EMRRERE R MG FHFEREREE R MR & I

Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in

HIER AT TR T : the process of clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is
as follows:
THe 85 Aging 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
1EMRA Within 1year 238,638,945 288,365,214
1-2 &£ 1-2 years 2,736,149 14,934,554
2-3 4 2-3 years 14,199,637 3,423,272
3ERE More than 3 years 3,599,650 8,259,769
N Sub-total 259,174,381 314,982,809
B BEER Less: allowance for impairment losses (2,388,674) -
&it Total 256,785,707 314,982,809

Htb iz R 12 M A E R R BN FERTEERR KT

RBEES, 208 FEBEEFHENNT:

The impairment provisions are measured according to the
12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit
loss. The movement of allowance for impairment losses
during 2018 is as follows:

EF—WE BME B

Stage | Stage Il Stage IlI
* 121 AT BOGLN  BOHOMERLE ait

ERHK BHERARE ERBESMES =

12-month expected  Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
) ) ) Total

credit loss credit loss credit loss
f%o,;ﬁg #1R1H Balance as at 1January 2018 494,849 678,000 - 4,872,849
AR [ FE Accrual/(reverse) during the year (2,156,052) (678,000) 1,320,000 (1,514,052)
AHEIZH Writing off during the year (970,123) - - (970,123)
ERER Ending Balance 1,068,674 - 1,320,000 2,388,674

2017

By HE &t
Individual Collective Total
FEXEE Opening Balance 1,405,901 - 1,405,901
REFE Reverse during the year (165,203) - (165,203)
RERZEH Write off during the year (1,240,698) - (1,240,698)
FERSEE Ending Balance - : .
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4. FERBEES (14) Allowance for impairment losses

o AEVR]  REE —
ENRE LoV Baon RERH FAEE TEER  ERRE

Loans and

2018 Opening Accrual/  advances Wr|t.|ng off Unwinding of Exchange Closing
) during the . rate
balance (Reversal)  previously discount . balance
. year difference
written-off

FHPRRITERI  Allowance for impairment losses
BEEE on deposit with the Central Bank 1,709,937 96,148 - - - - 1,806,085

(BES 1) (Note 6.)

Allowance for impairment losses

FHENOR{EAE®E  on due from banks and other

(BER. 2) financial institutions 20929875 (14,620,504) - - - - 6,309,371
(Note 6.2)
VRN Allowance for impairment losses
T%i%’mgﬁ)&g on placements with banks 14,899,172 (1167798) - - - (34,932) 13,697,042
B (Note 63)
FENRERZRE Allowance for impairment losses
e ::S:;/erse repurchase financial ) 2383587 ) ) ) ) 2383587

( HEZS. 6) (Note 6.6)

Allowance for impairment losses

S b £l o
y%ﬂ/ﬁ‘ilﬁ HEE on loans 678,918,156 58,773,910 28,020 (22,074,873) (1164,272) (42,281) 714,438,660
(HERS 76) (Note 6. 76)

HMSFEREeES Allowance for impairment losses
. on other assets 4,872,849 (1,514,052) - (970,123) - - 2,388,674
( MHE7S 133) (Note 6.133)

&it Total 721329989 43,951,891 28,020 (23,044996)  (1164272) (77213) 741023419
. RER/ Y5 Bl A AT " 5

Opening  Accrual/  Loans and advances  Writing off Exchange rate Closing

balance (Reversal) previously written-off during the year difference balance

= " Allowance for impairment losses
?%g%ﬁ;ﬁ)&% on due from banks and other 1,065,303 1,491,492 - -
it /N

financial institutions (Note 6.2)

2,556,795

Allowance for impairment losses on
placements with banks and other 2,535,590 1,022,410 - - - 3,558,000
financial institutions (Note 6.3)

FHRESRELES
( BiiE7S. 3)

BRI EE Allowance for impairment | n

e/ owance for impairment losses ol

(MtsERN. 7.6) loans (Note 6.76) 514,107,074 131,829,788 958,143 (91,912,565) (6,721,719) 548,260,721
Hfth W R #E & Allowance for impairment losses

( MHE7<. 13.3) on other assets (Note 6.13.3) 1405901 (165,203) (1240,698)

&1t Total 519,113,868 134,178,487 958,143 (93,153,263) (6,721,719) 554,375,516
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15, &l B2 EoAth & BAALAG 77 BRI

(15) Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
BRRITE R it £ aTER Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 401,467,113 1,202
BIMRITRITER Due to overseas banks 168,967,083 874,156,157
MAFFIR Interest payable 1,297184 -
&it Total 571,731,380 874,157,359
16. FRNE& (16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
BEARITERWIFEANEEN Placements from domestic banks 1,436,320,000 522,736,000
BEIMRITRII RN REN Placements from overseas banks 15,241,083,977 18,752,081,004
RAAFER Interest payable 86,890,297 -
&it Total 16,764,294,274 19,274,817,004

F20017E 12 B31H, EIMRITRMFENRENF, UXRMET
EEHETIHITNSHRFENESIRARE AN AR T 2,397504,245 7T,
UAMETEEETIHITANHBRENELFEARTAIART
1,362,073,633 JGo

7. XSS R GR

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of gold borrowing
measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
RMB2,397,504,245. The balance of the interbank placements
measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
RMB1,362,073,633.

(17) Financial liabilities held-for-trading

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
;éé%g%g%ﬂﬁ@ﬁ]ﬁ)\ﬁgﬁ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
[ENIE/TIN Placement 2,712,232,528 -
RLFFE Interest payable 8,262,687 -
ait Total 2,720,495,215 -
18. ST B & R EE =K (18) Repurchase agreements

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
BEHERY S Classified by collateral:
LERnfEE Financial Bond 270,000,000 -
RLFFE Interest payable 207,863 -
it Total 270,207,863 -

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE



19. IRIIFRK

(19) Customer deposits

31-12-2018 31-12-2017

mHIER Current deposits

UNGIES =] Corporate customers 9,291,172,885 7775,205,953

MAER Individual customers 693,077,452 613,234,996
Mt Sub-total 9,984,250,337 8,388,440,949
EHFER Time deposits

NGRS =] Corporate customers 14,517.706,827 14,347.943,921

PAEF Individual customers 1344,796,840 1138,674,671
Nt Sub-total 15,862,503,667 15,486,618,592
EHIEFER Structured deposits

UNGIES =] Corporate customers 9,834,116,400 5,651,466,762

MAERA Individual customers 1,335,218,815 746,285,912
it Sub-total 11169,335,215 6,397,752,674
AR E Interest payable 238,548,813 -
&it Total 37,254,638,032 30,272,812,215

HHEFRPRANTESHTIR, TEAHAN. RENISENRE
HERERNEERERS, FREMEERPIRANNITESRT
BWIANEAESEARRAEMEKR, T207 £ 12 A3 H, AR™

995287361 SLHI TR MBI IEE U A R NETE,

20. RZ{FER T #riEf

Derivative financial instruments embedded in structured
deposits mainly comprise options, stock price-linked swaps
and commodity price-linked swaps. Derivative financial
instruments embedded in the above-mentioned structured
deposits are considered to be not closely linked with host
contract. As at 31 December 2017, the structured deposits
amount to RMB995,287,361 are considered to be designated

at fair value.

(20) Payroll payables

RTEEN Amount unpaid 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
TH/., &, EMLFAME Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 110,629,010 76,915,620
HERE R Social insurance 3,465,737 1,820,542
FEEARE Housing Fund 112,258 -
TELEZBMIMTHETRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 42,597 39910
RERFITX Defined contribution plan 1,398,370 9,251,333
Hrep: ERFERESR Of which: Pension fund 3,998,347 3,750,343
Al F S8 Annuity 7,400,023 5,500,990
&it Total 125,647972 88,027,405
BT & & Amount payables
2018 2017
T3&., &, EIGFNEME Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 539,525,714 457,070,481
HERE R Social insurance 23,609,358 23,098,410
EEARE Housing fund 22,222,536 20,246,850
ISREMPTIHER % Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 4,868,701 4,563,904
BERTEITR Defined contribution plan 50,147,618 43,802,817
H, BEAFEZEKRESE Of which: Pension fund 41,015,522 37,083,719
ool S Annuity 9132,096 6.719,098
HERTHXHER Other staff related expenses 12,472,191 17.906,620
&it Total 652,846,118 566,689,082
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21. MR HEE

(21) Tax payables

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
HEER Value added tax 22,830,299 18,349,271
Bt ANt Tax surcharges 2,592,948 2,210,500
1l BT S Corporate income tax 59,534,467 )
RINREBIN Withholding tax 31,715,526 32,082,170
Hib Others 243,512 155,583
&it Total 116,916,752 52,797,524
22, MRS (22) Debt securities issued

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RITERME Financial bond 1,032,306,313 -
TR TFE Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,620,334,070 -
&it Total 2,652,640,383 -
F 2018 £ 12 A 31 B, RfHERHERTIIRAMT:
As at 31 December 2018, the amount of debt securities issued listed below:
KITHHA RFEHARR EITEE EHREN REELIT FETHRFIS Hig PR REZIE FERRER
Issue date Period Issue amount Opening  Actual issue Accrued interest Amortisat‘ion Repayment Ending balance

balance amount or premium

ERITHEMES:
Issued financial bond:
2018/4/13 3 (3 years) 1,000,000,000 - 997,323,572 34,982,740 - - 1,032,306,313
ERITHELTFE
Issued negotiable certificates of deposit
2018/7/13 14E (1year) 400,000,000 - 384,061,200 - 7,379,882 - 391,441,082
2018/N1/27 341 H (3 months) 750,000,000 - 743,887,500 - 2,258,967 - 746,146,467
2018/12/29 1 4E (1 year) 500,000,000 - 482,160,000 - 586,521 - 482,746,521

AART 2018 £ 4 A 13 BRITHSRGES A =SB EF 264355,
HEEAART 100 T, ZEMZEH 4.93%, SEHFE—K.

FARTF 2018 FEAELERITATHRIT 3 WARTALESR,
EEHHART 100 7T, MELTT.

AARMMEHFREHIEREE ., FIR, HEERTEELERL,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

The fixed rate financial bond issued on April 13, 2018 has a
maturity of 3 years, with RMB 100 par value and a fixed coupon
rate of 4.93%, paid annually.

Three negotiable certificates of deposit issued in 2018. The par
value was RMB 100 and the interest rate is zero.

During the years ended 31 December 2018, the Bank did not
default on any principle, interest or redemption amounts with
respect to its debt securities issued .



23. it fafx

(23) Provisions

EVIRT AKREEM  KERD FERRER
2018
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
ERRERMEBEREES Allovx'/ance'for impairment losses on loan commitments 16623992 8740251 ) 25364243
and financial guarantee contracts
&it Total 16,623,992 8,740,251 - 25,364,243

FEREFERMSHFAZER 2 ARHERRERENFEHTH
ERRATHRAELES, RELENEHNT:

The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts are measured according to the 12-month expected
credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance
for impairment losses are as follows:

F—HER E_ME E=ME
Stage | Stage |l Stage Il
3k 124 AT i T <. - R
ERHK BHERARE CBRECRABESMES Total
12-month expected credit loss  Lifetime expected credit loss  Lifetime expected credit loss
201841 B 1HA%E Opening balance 15,836,529 787463 - 16623992
AEAITR / #E Accrued/(Reversed) 8,623,120 77131 - 8740,251
FRREN Ending balance 24,459,649 904,594 - 25364243
24, Hitifa Rk (24) Other liabilities
31-12-2018 31-12-2017
SFEE R FESmM Settlement and clearing 590,281,591 100,966,741
NAT IT RGARE# IT system service fee 42,789,323 45117234
iREH Accured expense 20,424,479 19,769,384
RAFFER Interest payable - 298,396,936
EJEIEEN Renovation payable 5,299,638 8,428,858
Hib Others 39,510,769 10,427,993
ait Total 698,305,800 483107146
25, SKLR A (25) Paid-up capital
E R SRR A Paid-up capital
2018 2017
ZEART % EEART %
RMB equivalent RMB equivalent
KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 5,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100

26. BAELNTR

RERRRANFRARBRTRS, KEHORMIMIRIT, MR
ZEHERB T NRELRIRE,

(26) Capital reserve

In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-
based compensation program which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve.
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27. Hfhgz EuzEs
AEnERPEMESUERTKT:

(27) Other comprehensive income
Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
balance sheet:

v 7
1-1-2018 SR E 31-12-2018
Increase/(decrease)
AR S R E R Allowance for other debt instrument at fair value through 621597 519293 1140.890
F 1B IRR SRR A > other comprehensive income ’ ’ Y
AR A o MBS Fair value changes of other'dethnt instrument at fair value (7477,010) 26,617,839 19140,829
through other comprehensive income
Hit Others 316,140 (316,140) -
&it Total (6,539,273) 26,820,992 20,281,719
itk A
1-1-2017 SBREZF 50 01
Increase/(decrease)
AHHESRETARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (544,152) (6,932,858) (7,477,010)

FliER PR AR S W S MR T

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

ERR:TE-C R N

2018 BiarEEm HiZEW=E B FiEH BEEE
LEAFE NS
Before tax Lgss: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
HENITE Allowance for other debt instrument at fair value 519993 B _ 519293
1SR EE GRS through other comprehensive income ’ ’
HibENEE Fair value changes of other debt instrument at fair
NRNETEH value through other comprehensive income 4517891 9308162 9252910 26,617,839
Hit Others - 316,140 - (316,140)
&it Total 45,698,204 9,624,302 9252910 26,820,992
B RN
2017 HATEE HitgzaWsE B e HEE:
E L PN b
Before tax L?SS: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
AtHESEFT Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial )
Ak o (9.243,811) 2310953 (6,932,858)
28. RN (28) Surplus reserves
2018 2017
FEHREN Opening balance 100,026,507 86,426,113
RN Increase 15,049,451 13,600,394
ERRE Closing balance 115,075,958 100,026,507

RIFAREFANRERIME, 2 20184F3 A 29 BEERRIY,
AATHRENEN 0% REGEEREATRE, EEREARRITHS
AANTEMAA 50% WL LY, ATARER,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank’s
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution passed
by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018, the Bank has
appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.



ARAERBEERRARES, TRBRESERARE, E4tH,
EEERARETA TR EETIRBIEMAR AR, RIFALRE
KRWHRIY, FEETRBEERALRE,

29. — AR IXURS &

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the Bank
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary
surplus reserves can be used to compensate for the accumulated
losses of previous years or convert to capital upon approval. It
has been determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank that
no discretionary surplus reserves are to be appropriated this year.

(29) General reserves

2018 2017
FEHRER Openning balance 708,458,438 588,421,509
iz b2y ] Increase 17,940,502 120,036,929
FERREN Closing balance 826,398,940 708,458,438

EARREBITE [2012120 SX (&R EZFEITIRERINE) B
E, \BLEFLERREN _EAEFREE =R RE 1.5% BILLGlitR
—RRE AR, (EAFESELIE, AATRRIE 2019 £3 A 29 HY
EELORI, B AT ART 117940502 7T, —ARXEE#
ERFOIEBIRE B~ HREE 1.5%,

30. RABELFE

According to the regulation CaiJin [2012] No. 20 Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. The Bank
appropriated general reserve amounting to RMB117,940,502
according to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors
on 29 March 2019 and the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets.

(30) Retained earnings

2018 2017

SRR 44 S sk 4 FRF Reltamed earnings brought forward before 482,534,898 480168283
adjustment

NIk Adjustment (138,466,186) -

. . . Retained earnings brought forward after

TR ENRS BHE 344,068,712 480,168,283
adjustment

TN Net profit for the year 150,494,518 136,003,938

B REGEEER AR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (15,049,451) (13,600,394)

REN—R RS & Less: Appropriation to general reserves (117.940,502) (120,036,929)

FERRDEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 361,573,277 482,534,898

REECPEARKMEARZ ) RAARNARER, ZAARFIEE()
HEMARSEE Q) RUMEESH; Q) RIEERRARE; (4)
RE—MREES; 5) RREBERATRER, THUFESEHERS
AT, — MR & R ETE &R Gl & B X EMAYRT
RT, AFAREFSRE,

SEFHENREHANRNERTSIRE, HESETEEER, UHSKRAR
HitBXpEEMERE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with relevant
regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors

of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.
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31, F 2N

(37) Net interest income

2018 2017
RN : Interest income:
FE R IR E A Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 521,990,866 421172,427
FH P LRRIT Due from the Central Bank 73,924,642 70,184,233
N Loans and advances to customers 1,349,367,270 1130,561,053
FINIREES Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 80,918,426 16,558,247
FEHEERFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 211,793,895 -
INT Sub-total 2,237995,099 1,638,475,960
FIRSH: Interest expense:
[0l % E i & BR AL TERL Due to banks and other financial institutions 701544 7789644
R 2k Customer deposits 762,906,554 562,622,331
IwANBEREM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 443,666,176 262,260,025
FmERELFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 45,208,110 -
it Sub-total 1,258,795,984 832,672,000
F 2 E N Net interest income 979199115 805,803,960
2. FEERFELEIRN (32) Net fees and commission income

2018 2017
FEEHRELEWKN: Fees and commission income:
HESFEFER Settlement and clearing fees 24,384,262 20,724,424
RIBA ZFE5%H Agency brokerage fees 9,630,443 10,395,314
ERRIEFESR Credit commitment fees 38,726,866 33,473122
55BN Credit related income 57923,979 33,009,046
R a) FnE 1 2 Consulting fees 22,135,888 25,648,160
REREMZRLSHEE Commissions of trusteeship and others 23.927.395 22,418,655
Hith Others 1,972,779 4,800,931
Nt Sub-total 188,701,612 150,469,652
FEHEREETH: Fees and commission expense:
FEHETH Fee expenses 58,388,023 35,493,370
Nt Sub-total 58,388,023 35,493,370
FEHEEEEEEN Net fees and commission income 130,313,589 114,976,282

FENS D 136 k#8117 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE



33, R

(33) Investment income

2018 2017
TEESMIAEC LA Net realised gain on derivatives 101,724,294 65,823,549
(EEEEIFEIEE S Net realised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 62,670,376 185,390,813
Hits Others (26,819,631) -
&it Total 137,575,039 251,214,362

34, ARUHEE NS

(34) Gains/(loss) from changes in fair values

2018 2017
FTEFERLZBN - ARMEZFIREE  Changes of fair value of derivatives (295,312,733) 186,335,903
oM ERAE -BANESE Financial liabilities held-for-trading-gold borrowing (50,970,922) (54119717)
EHRRARES -EHES Loans and advances to customers-gold lending 44,626,109 -
Hits Others 8171703 (6,275.986)
&it Total (293485843)  125940,200

35. iC 5t ¥ a8

CRAE SRR RS EICREN M~ ERRE R INCITE ST
B iR,

(35) Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Foreign exchange gain/(loss) includes gain/(loss) of foreign
business related to the changes of exchange rate and gain/
(loss) arising from derivative financial instruments.

36. bl s (36) Other income
2018 2017
5258 < I BUF £ BD Income-related on government subsidies 2,073,449 6,026,114

7. IS RETRSE

(37) General and administrative expenses

2018 2017
RI%ER Staff costs 649,703,118 562,906,730
Eiill=E S Depreciation 14,253,358 12,199,032
DA R 3k Amortisation of intangible assets 30,691,010 19183,216
K HAfE I 3k PR PESE 25 Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 18,241,600 16,101,707
A 552 B Other operating expenses 284,117,640 263,491,262
it Total 997,006,726 873,881,947
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38, (S IR {ER %

(38) Credit impairment losses

2018
FH P REITR{ER K Impairment losses for deposit with the Central Bank 96,148
FRREBE Rk Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial institutions (14,620,504)
L E R B 5 Impairment losses for placements with banks (1167198)
e VERIEERES Impairment losses for loans 58,773,910
E AKIERERk Impairment losses for credit commitment 8,740,251
H A e AR R L Icrgr;:wa;:r:;:ntsliizsiiscio;:ther debt instrument at fair value through other 519293
INBELSRETRERK Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial assets 2,383,587
H At TR E R 5k Impairment losses for other receivables (1,514,052)
ait Total 53,211,435
39. B BERK (39) Impairment losses
2017
FHEMR{ER K Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial institutions 1,491,492
AR E R 5k Impairment losses for placements with banks 1,022,410
R ERE Impairment losses for loans 131829788
Hth MR E R 5 Impairment losses for other receivables (165,203)
&it Total 134,178,487
40. FFBHi% H (40) Income tax expenses
2018 2017
LR SR Current income tax 59,534,465 -
BBIEFT SR Deferred income tax expenses (41,036,576) 7,695,725
&it Total 18,497,889 7,695,725

FEHERSMELENXRIITNOT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax
is as follows:

2018 2017
BATRE Profit before tax 168,992,407 143,699,663
ERERE 25% 1T E RN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 42,248)01 35924916
Sof LA BTHA 18] 56 151 i 22 Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1,205,952) 6,402,960
GHMNERFSBAN Interest income of government bonds (26,647,629) (17,065,157)
AEHRINA AL T 2R A Non-deductible items 403,369 3,214,245
FI BB E ERIKRIN TR Use of previous annual deductible losses - (20,781,239)
PRk Income tax expenses 18,497,889 7,695,725
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41,

NERBRIFRR

(41) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows

2018 2017
1. BEFMEETAHALEFHNINERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
T Net profit 150,494,518 136,003,938
ERBERK Credit impairment loss 53,211,435 -
RFERERK Impairment losses - 134,178,487
ElEZ =R Fixed assets depreciation 14,253,358 12,199,032
TR RSy Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 30,691,010 19,183,216
KHEAFIE 2 AP Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 18,241,600 16,101,707
%i?ﬁfg)/ A RART (Gains)/losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 460,909 (5184)
RITEHFMESZH Interest expense of bond issue 45,208,110 -
NROMETS B s Gain from changes in fair value 293,485,843  (125940,200)
it Investment income (41955319)  (263,834118)
LRz Foreign exchange losses/(gain) (687,078,808) 252,194,100
BT ERHE Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities (41,036,576) 7695725
ZEMHNIEIRBER (8m) /B> (Increase)/decrease in operating receivables (10,721,593,519)  (4,372,277,088)
ZEMNFB M/ (FD) Increase/(decrease) in operating payables 7436945144  7569,832,053
ZERNTFENNESRESE Net cash flows from operating activities (3,818,672,295)  3,385,331,668
2, RERREENMYWETIHER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
MENERSET Cash on hand at end of year 905,977 13,235,129
B MEWEMRT Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 13,235,129 15,195,504
mn: WMEENYRHERRER Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 10,543,710,893  14,313,497,802
B REENYBENRE Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,313,497,802  10,424,249,663
ME RN ESZ 0% mEn Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,773916,061)  3,887287764
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 139 ’:.L

ods -\



EENS_ o

Q. RERAEENY

(42) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
e Cash 9105977 13,235,129
REEMY: Cash equivalents:
FERE=ZNAAB With original maturity less than three months
- FERg R e SRR - Due from banks 1346,403,873  5,02506,629
-iFHES - Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3,358,841446 274865970
-ZNREEMAS - Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,283,790,000  1,344,195,000
-iFHES - Gold lending 14,249,317 _
e = o ) " L
R imems A nsm) (onorwi e moni o prcss doy
FR R TE I Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,552,048,087  1,832,921,691
Nt Sub-total 10,543,710,893  14,313,497,802
it Total 10,552,816,870  14,326,732,931
43. iR X (43) Share-based compensation plans

R0 ] BB 32 A4 K B 48 BR 50 {4 AR SRR T R F0 A SRS E AL AR
il BRI RAORBHARRERITHRMD, T2218F12A
31 HRITTESMA R GIER FERN T RIBI AR 0 80 h 209,257 1, RIKE
EIHRRSEE A 1 E 3 F; F2018 F 12 A 31 BA{THRAAR REEN
Ao, MREEMRA 3 Fo

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2018, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 209,257, the remaining contractual period of 1-3 years.
As at 31 December 2018, the number of outstanding grants
of Share Appreciation Rights was zero and the remaining
contractual period was 3 years.



t. SEbRE

ARFRBABARLEN., EEERENBREHEHE TR
TS, TERTUESE. RS SIMREA SR
RABRIMEH 4 MREDE. BMRESBHEMB L FHE, =
BABMFERNFES, ZAAEEERSEYFRARE BN E
FEMRERHEBEERIE., TS,

AARRESRBHEZNLZINT:

LAASRIT AL 555358
A&EEEMRHUEIFRR. BHRME. FRRS., FEEE, SMC
EEREEFEMARS

FERTUFZHE
AN AERRBEFENAER. ERRS. RITFRS. PAEY
MRS FICRER S

K& REl 55 53 ED
BEFRITATHHTSAS L SARNELFELS. BWZS.
HESTARA, URSMNLCRREES R, ARTEFROZH.

HAthlle 55 K Ak 53 Bl B 5388
EAGERAE LRENSMHAREGESEMIOAT, k. A
KXo

ATENEN DBV EREOEEERERE, A EABEESTEHF
RPABETFESEBBES. AR, BN, ZHRLERR, XLEEEN
BREIEMMT:

SBRAFEZCARABRTESBNIMEMAT, ARES. LIF
REMEMKBES, 2HBAGERARETES BRI NER 56,
BREETER. FARE. ETREAHRE,

SWMEERREZEET ST ERBN (EFXIIZZBNR S
BEZHEN ), ABRETFBRENEEER (BRFABTES
BRI R ERITIRAMES ) . MBEZHFENHSMEMEZEER
UEEZFBERK, 2 ERNNEBENRREEMINIILZS
ML R E

7. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,
namely wholesale banking, retail banking, global markets,
and others and unallocated based on internal organisational
structure, management requirement and internal reporting
system. Every reporting segment, which is individual
business segent, provides different products and services.
Management periodically reviews the financial information
of the segments to determine resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
and bond investments in the inter-bank market, and dealing
foreign exchanges, precious metals and interest rate related
derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and operating results
of the segments, and such information is prepared on the
following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment operating results refer to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation of
resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions between
segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.
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(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2018
- - .~z Hibl &K .
1T % TBERTUE SEh 5 Zs PN
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 895,873,258 112,725,778 135,317,211 85,553,857  1,229,470,104
FIE SN Net interest income 677,092,121 78,342,560 98,328,205 125,436,229 979199115

Hefr: TMFIEN
HEBIELF BN

FHEBERAEHEAN

HAtFBN

Bl

Of which: External interest income

Internal interest income
Net fee and commission income
Other net income

2. Operating expenses

Of which: Allowance for impairment

666,202,178 221,208,500
10,889,943  (142,865940)
136,763,516 27,046,367

82,017,621 7,336,851

(485]125385)  (249.997,873)

422,163,098 (330,374,661) 979199115
(323,834,893) 455,810,890 -
(43197,071) 9,700,777 130,313,589
80,186,077 (49,583,149) 119,957,400

(97925082)  (229,638]126) (1,062,686,466)

Hefi: B-miEkEE losses (89,678,006) (4,529,202) (4,886,074) 45,881,847 (53,211,435)
=, EE ML 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (7,651) 471 369,993 1,841716 2,208,769
M. FBETFE 4. Profit before tax 410740222  (137,267384) 3776222 (142,242,553) 168,992,407
F. WIBS#HEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 6,225,330 12,482,915 1944,870 42,532,853 6385968
. BEALH 6. Capital expenditure 572,896 17,206,328 620,045 36,574,622 54,973,891

31-12-2018
£, 7. Total assets 36787526349  6,838,292,783 30,223,576,493 357,284,909 74,206,680,534

I\

B
H
| f;II
s 1

b=y
o
¢k

8. Total liabilities

34,183,871,564  3,418,428,223

14,252,923,056 15,516,936,100 67,372,158,943

TENS 2
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MRS BERTLS FRERLSE Lok it
Wholesale Retail GM  Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 693,301,450 118,280,172 159]106,543 201,751,082 1172,439,247
FILE SN Net interest income 505,428,278 86,272,231 (33,396,467) 247499918 805,803,960
Hef1: IPIPFIE AN Of which: External interest income 522,989,696 213,816,187 173]171,638 (104,73,561) 805,803,960
5 BBIEFY B YN Internal interest income (17,561,418)  (127,543,956) (206,568,105) 351,673,479 -
FEBREBHEESFEN Net fee and commission income 17,352,918 28,009,727 (297163,734) (1,222,629) 14,976,282
Hg N Other net income 70,520,254 3,998,214 221666744 (44,526,207) 251,659,005
—. BT 2. Operating expenses (361734,558)  (232,360,029) (80199960)  (344,636]10) (1,018,930,657)
Hh. &~ mEES Of which: Allowance for impairment losses (31,656,331) (5,277,868) (3,574,574) (93,669,714) (134,178,487)
=. &E M 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) 144,974 6,948 259,640  (10,220,489) (9,808,927)
M. BaiFliE 4. Profit before tax 331,711,866 (114,072,909) 79,166,223 (153,105,517) 143,699,663
F. WIBS#HEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 5,714,761 1,150,336 2,231,941 28,386,917 47483955
Ny BAAEZH 6. Capital expenditure 4,692,646 10,160,222 698,616 44,604,242 60,155,726
31-12-2017
. BAFEEE 7. Total assets 28,342,501,509  6,666,248,616 28,195,580,037 294,726,289 63,499,056,451
I\, BREE 8. Total liabilities 27,782,770,004  2,513,617,797 13,957,040,591  12,452,110,076 56,705,538,468

2. Hfthf5 2

(1) HIBEE R

M EWPNRRBEPAMEMAEMAYEREZMEMEMERS X,
AR FARAEHXFURAEXEEHIMELEAN 7 (ZH) 86
BT

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

XSMEAN 7 (32 )

External operation income/(expense)

2018 2017
BH Domestic 1,399,328,181 1,324,895,515
=N Overseas (169,858,077) (152,456,268)
&it Total 1229470104 1172,439,247

FRFRIARA, FATREREIINGIERDAT

QFEFPER
ENTRBEFERTRELEREZRPHFEBNAANRT 1.06 27T
(2017 FE: ARM1.284Z5T ), ARLEERF SUNGT 8% ( 2017
EE: %),

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers information

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB106 million
comes from top ten largest corporate loan customers (2017:
RMB128 million), which contributed eight per cent of the
total interest income for the year (2017: 11 per cent).
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8. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

A ST kg Capital commitments

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
BHtEERZY Approved but not contracted 4,185,791 179,306
SZAEFRIET Contracted but not provided for 796,573 1,767,266
&it Total 4,982,364 1946,572
LEMBEERIE Operating lease commitments

AAAEHFEFSHBFETTHRMG & QR THHBEE
RER, TEAFRHERD, FRAMMUTHERMHBRE

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect

fHeH. of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
—EUR (E—F) Within 1 year 84,384,486 102,532,666
—FEPUEZEPDR (E2F) 1to 2 years 23,101,259 92,536,372
ZHEPYEEEMR (B=F) 2to 3 years 12,806,128 20,167,872
=FEUE After 3 years 10,046,547 2,049171
&it Total 130,338,420 217,286,081
2. B5A&IE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
M&EERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
SRITAERICE Banker’s acceptance 830,845,770 525,999,273
1R G =0 In Letter of guarantee 669,177,618 295,500,154
#HERIE Standby letter of credit 5,697,341,746 4,784,025990
FF H BN EA{E FIE Letter of credit, at sight 248,314,222 80,657,398
FrHITZHAE FIE Letter of credit, usance 442,882,609 153,306,358
IMTE Sub-total 7,888,561,965 5,839,489,173
AESHA S RURIE Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FEEEE 1 E5 U E More than one year 2,967904,638 2,406,556,937
it Sub-total 2,967904,638 2,406,556,937
&it Total 10,856,466,603 8,246,04610
B AR RS 5 R I & 50 Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 3,530,586,357 2,755,214,805

FENS D 144 x#87 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE



WEIEREREFERER, — ERPARASZHAZITHEEIE
EESHBITAELSH, RITEEITERSEE,

BRRERIEA R AMEHITER KA T FIRBATHEF T RAIFKIE,
BRRE— RN ERHIR LS, THARPNLTRET, 8&
RAEREFRE S ETH A —ERRARNTBA LR,

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that
the Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the
maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments
does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.

(3) Entrusted Business

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
ERES Entrusted deposits 2,488,874,783 2,403,601,304
TR Entrusted loans 2488874783 2,403,601,304
31-12-2018 31-12-2017
EREVESE Entrusted fund 1,444,434,674 1394,916,217
ZRE &= Entrusted asset 1,444,434,674 1394,916,217

ERFEREFEREFETHRATANKM, NATRFEREEENE=
FRHRRZ M. RREXNERREEREZEANFKE,

ZREMIZRIEAAFEREEPELRARMRFITRIFAK, U
BERXMHAESHTRAMATEE, HHEKHRBAATKAKE,
IR SN SEBRIR B 28 [0 & 2 i as il 55

4. FH LG

BEEEEEN, F2018 £k, AATRMIES. 23 ERAERME
BREENSEREN, FLEMSTERE

. BREE

ARRER AR BB EAAREE ISR EE KT A EE
%, FEMTAANEEFSBELSRNER, AARARFEENE
B THEEESBMNERZN, ERRFEBRESENRATRE
REMERFNER AN WFEFAREH L FNE IR,
b SNSIREE AL Al S

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, according to the management, there
was no other contingent liabilities except for items that have
been disclosed in Note 6.23.

9. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and
optimising shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its
capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.
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AATRRR (AASRITAAEESE (IK17) ) BINE, HITHEAFR
REFERBLEAREZERRERENS REAKSERBFIIRT
BO—RRATRERBET 5%, —REATBERFRET 6%, &
ARBERGRT 8%, MhIMRBPERRES XTI (Al RT
BAREEAE (K17 ) ) TEMLZHEXETNEMIAE, EillR
177E 2018 FIRBIRIABIMER 2.5% HIFEEHAREK,

ARRMSEREXNHFATEHITEE D —RAREREIWHEE,
HARRATNERS . EtEEWmAITARS . BRAR, — B
MEEMARDEHE; ARREEM—EHE;, ZHRETEZAREE
BERREES,

AATRRR (AASRITRAEEME (K17 ) ) BIE, HEHELX
FRERFRNT:

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio
according to Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional). CBIRC requires that a commercial bank’s core
tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy
ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be lower than
five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent respectively.
In addition, according to the transitional arrangement of
implementing the Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional), a commercial bank’s reserve capital ratio
should reach 2.5 per cent by the end of 2018.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves
and retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital.
Tier-two capital mainly includes surplus provision for loan
impairment.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional) are as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
Zbh—RE A Core tier-one capital 6,834,521,591 6,793,517983
g HEL Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
FERILNFRAATITNE S Qualified capital reserve 11,191,697 9,975,150
Hsm /W5 it AN EB S Qualified other comprehensive income 20,281,719 (7,477,010)
BRI Surplus reserves 115,075,958 100,026,507
— AR General reserves 826,398,940 708,458,438
RS EEF Retained earnings 361,573,277 482,534,898
B —RERNBRIE Core tier-one capital deductions 103,322,284 137,768,137
Bt EHHE~ Other intangible assets 103,322,284 118,548,684
HH AR BFIRIHEE SR Deferred tax assets arising from tax losses that rely on future ) 19719453
SRR BT profitability o
B — 2R K5 Net core tier-one capital 6,731,199,307 6,655,749,846
— R AEE Net tier-one capital 6,731199,307 6,655,749,846
TR Tier-two capital 473,567,800 342,507,787
IR EER Surplus provision for loan impairment 473,567,800 342,507,787
BEREEH Net capital 7,204,767107 6,998,257,633
JRUBSE R AL 7= Risk-weighted assets 51,416,343,306 40,457110,650
B (5HREMRE™ Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 42,832,067,993 33,674,338,091
27X AR = Market risk-weighted assets 6,502,870,500 4,833,322,309
FRIEX B A 7= Operational risk- weighted assets 2,081,404,813 1,949,450,250
BID—RERTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 131% 16.5%
—RERTRE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 131% 16.5%
BERTRER Capital adequacy ratio 14.0% 173%

AARNE AT B ERBRYIER R PE ST HEN S EEM S
MFRABEMBITIHEN, AEE, AARETFTEED IAENHEE
ZK,

FENS D 146 Xk®@7 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed by
the regulator.



LEoh, AN RIRIE H ER AR B S MG B SRITR AT R EIEHE N R
WSS IMNEE IS I EHERITTRER HIE 20812 A31H,
AT R A 74%, FARIK 4% FEEMER, BAXEEMT:

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio
according to Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of Commercial
Banks (CBIRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31 December 2018,
the Bank’s leverage ratio was 7.4 per cent which was higher
than the minimum regulatory requirement of four per cent.
The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
ZIh—RE A Core tier-one capital 6,834,521,591 6,793,517.983
W L —RERIMBTE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions (103,322,284) (137,768,137)
R —REB N HE Net core tier-one capital 6,731199,307 6,655,749,846
REBERNAFTLRA Adjusted on balance sheet items 64,723,654,456 56,440,924,824
B ERINTIEH SN Adjusted off balance sheet items 10,941,078,210 8,782,711930
TEFmASRE Balance of derivatives 12,035,558,882 11,851,321,301
EHERER RS ARTTRE Balance of assets in securities financing transactions 3,283,790,000 1,344,195,000
&it Total 90,984,081,548 78,419,153,055
ALFFZR Leverage ratio 74% 8.5%

+. ERXEEE

ARREREENTEHESEMEMTRENRE, TEZEEESFERARE.
REERE R TR (BETEKRE., FIRRE ), AARNEE
EMTEEEENEE . FHPRRITAILFRELHRE FHEE.
TTEESRMET INEEESRBE T KRR B HERUE SRS,
SixtERTREXAREE, MRAR T R E XU REXE R
M E TR SRR AN TN AR

ARFRMEMTRESHENEERERE AR, RaEREET7ER
Mo AN RIX AR E R RER N T,

1. 45 XU

1 ERRKEEE

FERREZES ARG FEANRE, EEZHERITHERAREZ
SXFRERF AL NETELSHBETREN FARRME
AR EERA TEHERMER, RIMENERREEZRET
FHEAIE. BBHERRBIAERAE,

FERRKHEPREE: S—EHNENTPERITHRNEEESN,
A THRRMEME FRETUEFHEMNEFHEEERITEY
HBENSZEIR—SFEUHRI, EARBEEEREERBRTIRIT
WS R —HrEI T SR A BENHREE,

10. Financial Risk Management

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most
significant types of risk related to financial instuments are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk(including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk). The Bank’s financial
instruments mainly include cash, deposit with the Central
Bank, due from banks and other financial institutions,
placements with banks and other financial institutions,
derivative financial assets, reverse repurchase financial assets,
Loans and advances to customers, other debt instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income, and etc.
These risks and the Banks strategy to minimize the negative
impacts of the underlying financial risks are described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank's risk management
strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(11) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from
loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance
sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees
issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same business
activities, geographical location, or industry sector with
similar economic characteristics such that their repayment
ability would be affected by the same economic fluctuations.
Credit risk concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s
performance to such customer concentration.
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ARFERHIRERTFERE, BRI BT ERMRERTN_ LR
HEZBERERMPSE TERRK . &2 RERNEANEERRET
BE, XERFAERITATHFRNERHNERIRRESES,

Tt 558 4R R bk kia T £ RS FESE BT 5 SEaR B SR EY KUK AR M
Fit, ZEZHHNERE, FEEEURRHMHEREREZTESHX
FERl £18E

2018 ££
15 FB X B2 2 21 0 BT A o

ARAEBIAFLERBFGEEXERITRNERAREBVIHTH
INERECEEEM, EHERFAKNKEBVMEHRILAEREEEEM
B, AAREBELAMTHALENFTIINELANE N ARGEE
BRKRENER, ERETAARBERFENEEFMEES . 5
BERANRITEUARIERER. AR NANEHTASEZERS
BEERREFEN ST EASAEM, BIEBREeMTAEER
FRfERAREFANREESENRBIABZEFTANRE, U
ESHMTABITHEEHRNREFTARBHELESR,

HMEUT—IMHEIER. EEREDS LRIERE, KRFIAA
ERMTANGERAKNKELEREEM:

— EEMmEEIEANREBNTTERARI—FE T TBE —ERE

— EMREEEAGSAZEIMSERHAERARFEL, 170
RERE. MEERRERE

— LREFRIBEZSAGRAR (BEFEMFE ) @ii@d 30 X

EREEABEZTHEX

IMERTREGARE, FARMRANRERE, SR
BEXEMmIENFARNKREEBRRE—B, AINETEEE. Elt
iR, AARITEESARTLEFRAREN, TEZRUTREE:
— ETABGESAREERUEEH;

— EFANERERE, MEMFRSASFEYHEAE;

— BRAETERSAMSEREXNEFHAERER, LTFHE
SAEEMEMERTHASMEAILLS;

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit
risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval,
credit monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the
borrowers’ business operations periodically, analyses the
quality of credit portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures
for managing credit contingencies which cover application,
follow-up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

2018

Judgment criteria of significant increase in credit risk

The Bank assesses whether or not the credit risk of the
relevant financial instruments has increased significantly
since the initial recognistion at each financial reporting date.
While determining whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since the initial recognistion, the Bank takes in to
account the reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including qualitative
and quantitative analysis based on the Bank's historical data,
external credit risk rating and forward-looking information.
Based on a individual financial instrument or a group of
financial instruments with similar credit risk characteristics,
the Bank compares the risk of default of financial instruments
at the financial reporting date with that at initial recognistion
date to determine the change of default risk of financial
instruments during their expected lifetime.

When triggering one or more of the following quantitative,
qualitative or backstop criteria have been met, the Bank
considers that the credit risk of financial instruments has
increased significantly:

- Quantitative criteria are that internal ratings at the
financial reporting date have been downgraded by more
than a certain series compared with the previous year.

- Qualitative criteria includes significant adverse changes
in the debtor's business or financial situation, industry risk
level, be listed in the watch-list, etc.

- The backstop criteria limit is that the debtor's contract
payment (including principle and interest) are overdue for
more than 30 days.

The definition of the credit-impaired financial assets

In order to determine whether a financial assets is credit-
impaired is consistent with the internal credit risk management
objective. Taking into account both quantitative and
qualitative criteria. When assessing whether the debtor has
suffered credit impairment, the Bank mainly considers the
following factors:
- Significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor.
A breach of contract by the obligor, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, and etc.
- The creditor granting to the obligor, for economic or
- legal reasons relating to the obligor’s financial difficulty,
a concession that the creditor would not otherwise
consider.
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— ETARGESAMSARSHZemMETWNIERTIHHERE;
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— FEAMEREERESAERR RN ARNEENRKELER, £k
BITEEM XS, A ARMNEAMEUEREARELR ZE
AEMBITEE, MABEEER, URBRYEIEMNEFHET &
FNEAME;

— FEAMKERERATANETANEREL ERABREMEHNMR
H, RIBZ BT FWER | BROAXMEES, URBRHNTE,
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- It becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses .

A financial asset becoming credit-impaired may be caused
by the combined effect of several events, but not a single
discrete event.

Parameters for measuring expected credit loss

Depending on whether the credit risk has significantly
increased and whether the asset is credit-impaired, the
Bank measures the impairment provision for different
assets with expected credit loss of 12 months or lifetime,
respectively. The key parameters of expected credit loss
measurement include probability of default(PD), loss given
default(LGD) and exposure at default(EAD). The Bank takes
into account the quantitative analysis of historical statistics
(such as ratings of counterparties, manners of guarantees and
types of collaterals, repayments, etc.) and forward-looking
information in order to establish the models for estimating
PD, LGD and EAD.

Relative definitions are listed as below:

- The probability of default refers to the possibility that
the debtor will not be able to fulfil its obligation of
repayment in the next 12 months or the whole remaining
lifetime. The Bank’s PD is adjusted based on the credit
cycle index Z and forward-looking information to reflect
the default probability of the debtor under the current
macroeconomic environment.

- The loss given default refers to the Bank’s expectation of
the extent of the loss resulting from the default exposure.
Depending on the type of counterparty, the method and
priority of the recourse, and the type of collaterals, the
LGD varies. The loss given default is the percentage of risk
exposure loss when default occurs.

- The exposure at default is the amount that the Bank
should be reimbursed in the next 12 months or throughout
the remaining lifetime when the default occurs.

Forward-looking information

The assessment of significant increases in credit risk and the
calculation of expected credit losses both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of historical data,
the Bank identifies the key macroeconomic indicators that
affect the credit risk and expected credit loss of various
industries and business types.

The impact of these economic indicators on probability of
default and loss given default varies according to different
types of industries and business types. The Bank applies
experts’ judgement in this analysis, according to the result
of experts’ judgement, the Bank predicts these economic
indicators on a quarterly basis and determines the impact of
these economic indicators on the probability of default and
the loss given default by conducting regression analysis.
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1.2 RERETEAY R E S A REER &SR KR D
FHREAERE, TEREMERY R EEREREENRKER
B T :

(1.2) Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and
credit risk mitigation is set out below:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
FER AP RBITRIN Deposits with the Central Bank 6,295,131,421 7156,30343
=ER Precious metals 470,469,280 -
TFRUE LRI Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,834,782,799 5,022,549,834
FHRE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 13970,656,375 9,527,005,249
REEERAT Financial assets held-for-trading 1,472,009,402 2,486,366,862
TEEMEF Derivative financial assets 6,332,656,875 5,576,168,427
INBREEREF~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,289,256,524 1,344,195,000
KRR Fnh s Loans and advances to customers 32,922,090,260 27136,596,787
A Other debt instrument at fair value through other 6970584932 )

comprehensive income

AHHESHA Available-for-sale financial assets - 4,369,225,273
HiEmEr~ Other financial assets 251,382,732 544,512,868
&it Total 73,809,020,600 63,162,923,443
EREEEARNKRO ( BE/N, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 8.2) 10,856,466,603 8,246,046110
BRXERARERD Maximum credit risk exposure 84,689,641727 71,408,969,553
13 XS EHE (1.3) Risk concentration

MESHFEPTFETUSHE, FHEAKSFLEZFHE, HE
RAREEESERES, ki, ARTUMBREEFERSEEM
R, BRIl XeE AR IRRER.

AAREEAENEFRUETARMSEREE ARRRMLTFHN
BRETUEFERE, BSEMER. 72

14 18R

AARRBER SXFHIE AR ITEGREMENERY SR LR,
AR EZHRMEL THEXHIERE, SEHERITEREET
AR ER,

IR EER AT ILMZEE]
— X TFELER, ERUEZAVSREX. RITHER. SUEH
— MFPARERK, ERUAEREE,

150  X#5R17 (hE ) HRAF 2018 FERE

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar
economic characteristics would tend to pose higher credit
risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the level of credit risk
may be varied from each industry or geographical location in
view of their unique economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank’s loans and advances can
be found at Note 6. 7.2.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would
depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties
as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline
on taking collateral including the frequency of collateral
valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

- For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include cash deposits, bank guarantee and properties; and

- For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.



EEEERWSEXE T ENE RO TIHNEFRBEEXLER
BRIRY, FEHITIRKESNTEREFER TS EEERYAT
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15 ERRE

ARAEMERE (RMBRELES ) HERRESTOT:

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor
the market value of the collaterals and follow up with the
borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The
change in market value of the collateral would also be taken
into consideration when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss

provisions.

(1.5) Credit quality

The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding
provisions) is analysed as follows:

BARGHEREE CEAERRE 2iR{E Ait
31-12-2018 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
M & RIFH P RRITIRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,306,043,483 - - 6,306,043,483
=& Precious metals 470,469,280 470,469,280
Due from Banks and other financial
ENER - -
TE U E L FRI nstitutions 1,841,092,170 1,841,092,170
Placements with banks and other financial
B4 - R
HFHRE institutions 13,984,353,417 13,984,353,417
EEERAT Financial assets held-for-trading 1,472,009,402 - - 1,472,009,402
TTEEREF Derivative financial assets 6,332,656,875 - - 6,332,656,875
INBREEMAF Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,291,640,111 - - 3,291,640,1M
EER RN Loans and advances to customers 33,380,672,581 8,228,759 247627580 33,636,528,920
N Other debt instrument at fair value through
% }'L,'q - -
H AR R other comprehensive income 6,970,584,932 6,970,584,932
H&rEF Other financial assets 250,062,732 - 1,320,000 251,382,732
&it Total 74,299,584,983 8,228,759 248947580 74,556,761,322
BREHERBE CEfEREE 2iR{E &t
31122017 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
WM& RIFM P RBITERIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 7169,538,272 - - 7169,538,272
, Due from banks and other financial
ERIE ¢! - -
TFRE LRI irstitutions 5,025,106,629 5,025,106,629
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHRE stitutions 9,530,563,249 - - 9530,563,249
TN = s ) ) ) )
l:% /A %ﬁfﬁl‘l‘;gﬂizzdjﬁ)\ Financial assets at fair value through profit 2,486,366,862 i  2486366,862
LM BEN SRR or loss
FINIRESRAFT Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,344,195,000 - - 1344195000
EH i Loans and advances to customers 27.454,970,958 18,018,820  211,867730 27,684,857,508
AEHESRIET Available-for-sale financial assets 4,369,225273 - - 4369225273
Hih&ghw~ Other financial assets 544.512,868 - - 544,512,868
&it Total 57,924,4791M 18,018,820 211,867,730  58,154,365,661
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
IB:EEN Unsecured loans 6,412,734,720 4,372,966,635
fRIESTK Loans secured by guarantees 6,226,381,664 453,507,095
EiAR N Loans secured by mortgage 15,964,443,994 15,022,419,901
RS = | nanc seciired hv nledsec 4,777112,203 3,906,077,327
Ait Total 33,380,672,581 27,454,970,958

CEHERBENZ MR ER
TH=HHEERR, CEPERBRENEMERERZRKE ST T:

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Aging analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2018

1MBA 14MHEI2498 249 HEI3AA 3INMARE it IFEEERYARME

Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals

TR R tgi:;ﬁ;i:ivances 8,228,759 - - - 8228759 167365,200
31-12-2017

1MBR 14MB812498 249 H2I34A8 3IPMARE it FrFERAY AR NE

Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals

fegRR gy oo and advances 17931837 86,983 - - 18,018,820 350,415,000

to customers

ERENE MR ER
WRAENEERAEZ IR RBRRENEHATE —IH SR
EERRE, BB ERBUTARAERER M E X 04E
AEMIT, MZEBERARBERFAARDHERHR, XEERS
WITEA “REK” . AR H BK” %K

THFAGERE, AAFAHNERERRNKEMNERESRE
BRHBERYMHIARNEIRNT:

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and the impact from the events on the expected
future cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant
loans should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans
are classified as “Substandard’, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired
loans and the fair value of collateral of impaired loans held
by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017
VERERZEN Impaired loans
— R4 - Substandard 186,046,618 136,746,839
— TJE% - Doubtful 61,580,962 75,120,891
— %k - Loss - -
&it Total 247,627,580 211,867,730
BRI R The collateral value of impaired loans 319,800,000 256,264,404

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE
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ZEANEHETRRER
AARATRAVREMEKRERREREAXR, BRI TRAEH
HiK, ISEREHBESREN.

THFRERE, FAARFRRERELS,

2. B XS
EARAGRERZENRINMNMEURERITHEZSENTR, BEERN
RARAMBEREN, |EFTEUARZFEBHNER. ik, &3
HEENEEETHMRITHENEAAHENZEEEK,

ArERHEREEERETENRRERERTHITHN, €848
HAFAGRZRSMPITZRSHENETER. FHRE. Kk
PREL, XEBR., EHRERRERGFHEREAREARNTHR
ETARENASUEXRIERT K, XEFEESRBLISHEAE
EHRBEREBREFEETERER/D, UEREERIERS

AR RTER AN E NG E 77 HREURT I, R OFR,
FEARETREEREEE, REEEHIRBNE SRR TE T4
HIAW R S FER,

AARBEIENSBFRAORER, URFERARENHE, FEH
FERGEURAERENSHEL, BT EENEERITHZX
IDFERAR HE 4P & PRI Do

ARFEITHRITHA SR EEMERRIANMERIE, AT
MRET “ERLEZER" 1 “EAER" KT, xA2ARENR
ERAERFEFRITRENERE ORI, ERARNER
HMEERMEM L BRI R HIAMN YRR, RAREEILR
RAMER 2R PERA—RIMMEEIRB T RRRENRNER
Hlo EZEAHAH, RARETRIE LRRERSERMA.
B AR R RSSO D R LB Sk R,

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in
collateral disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies
to renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order
to maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to
manage customer relationships.

No transactions were conducted by the Bank as at the
balance sheet date.

(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including-policies, controls
and limits approved by the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO). These policies, controls and limits are established
to ensure that the Bank to have sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These include
minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying
the sources and terms of funding as well as maintaining
a portfolio of debt securities with high quality and good
liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying
with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to
prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to
maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued availability
of funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the bank’s core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected cash
flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under both
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
The bank has also employed liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency
situations. Contingency funding plans have been set up
to identify potential liquidity crises by using a series of
warning indicators. Crisis management processes and various
strategies including funding and communication have been
developed to minimise the negative impact of any liquidity
crunch.
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3. AUk

ARE AN T EREEEREMEMCE=mIM O, &2
RAIMZ SIS RIS ENFHAFETIHRE, RARTIH
BEENBiREBERRANE R TFHaRESENEERE, B
F PR AR Z & R TR AR R K 2200,

AREHAREEERLSESITHTERERO, FamHExH
BREEEHRBERARERSTPTERSH]E, FEHE
RITHHREHOICHRER = ARERSNEETNREERER
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FATRRECH AN LA EREN BETHRAR, REENLE
FREESBES T, RENE, EANKE, 57 R6Ls
R, WAL T R AET DR,

ARFERBEARKANEBFRBERAMETAEYMIAZEH KA
BIRITHKF . EEKAEEEREXSBENSAERAMBZZKA
HttmBEREMFANTEAEZSNEmITAENERL T, 5K
FHHHERERRTZISEHIE, GEMNE, LE, FRAE.
BamiNE. INCEEERE, RITKAEERISKPINEM SR
I8, RITKPFHEERBERFRMEEFEZRE,

31 CER XS

FERATAR ARSNGB ENERIARINCLZ ST E RN
EBEREEAE TRETHHENM5 KK,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to minimise the negative impact
of volatility of financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings
and equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market
risk exposure and formulates market risk policies for
approval by the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive
Committee. Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset
Liability Committee and Board Risk Management Committee
on a regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing
etc. In addition, the market risk associated with any new
product/business is required to be identified and addressed
prior to launch.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities
into the trading book or banking book according to the
characteristics of different accounts. Trading book mainly
includes free trading financial instruments and commodity
positions held for the purpose of trading or for avoiding the
risk of other items in the transaction account. The market
risk in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, exchange rates, credit spreads,
commodity prices and foreign exchange volatility, etc.
Banking book includes other financial instruments outside
the trading book. The main risk in the banking book is the risk
of interest rates and credit spreads.

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions are
subject to exchange rate fluctuations.



F2018F12 A31H, ARAMNEXERAKEDHIIROT:

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by

currency is as follows:

31-12-2018
£% AR st ait
usb RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
R Assets:
MERFEMPRIREITIIT Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 908,618,609  5,394,193,399 1,425,390 6,304,237,398
=t Precious metals - 470,469,280 - 470,469,280
FRaE =R In Due from banks and other financial institutions 692,998,538  1,000,674,252 141,110,009 1,834,782,799
KHAS mz‘;‘iﬂgz with banks and other financial 10757664926 2,974,071,498 238919951 13970,656,375
T EEERET Financial Assets held-for-trading 138,237,636 1,333,771,766 - 1,472,009,402
TEEREAF Derivative financial assets 45790112 6,286,866,763 - 6,332,656,875
FINIBRELEE Reverse repurchase financial assets - 3,289,256,524 - 3,289,256,524
B AN Loans and advances to customers 5342135210 26,748,541753 831,413,297  32,922,090,260
A Other debt instrument at fair value through other RP—— ) 6970584932
comprehensive income
Hib&pEr= Other financial assets 13,973,811 236,300,130 1,108,791 251,382,732
EHEAFEIT Total financial assets 17,899,418,842 54,704,730,297 1,213,977,438 73,818126,577
fafs: Liabilities:
E%Z%ﬁmﬁm%m Due to banks and other financial institutions 417,234 571,314,146 - 571,731,380
WANEE ?Iaéem.ents from banks and other financial 15,093,932,262 750,378,333 919,983,679 16,764,294,274
institutions
oS R SR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 1,013,224,623  1,707,270,592 - 2,720,495,215
TEEmMbE Derivative financial liabilities 81,970,145 6,089946,884 - 6,171917,029
Sl Customer deposits 5,805,005,872 31,035,212,200 414,419,960 37,254,638,032
Mot {ESE Debt securities issued - 2,652,640,383 - 2,652,640,383
SEH A & E =k Repurchase agreements - 270,207,863 - 270,207,863
Htgrpifafk Other financial liabilities 149,675,179 513,198,871 35,431,750 698,305,800
ERAEST Total financial liabilities 22,144,225,315 43,590,169,272 1,369,835,389 67,104,229976
ArEfEs~t Net position (4,244,806,473)  11,114,561,025 (155,857,951) 6,713,896,601
FTHESHMTEZNET mi’tt:j;fni:m”ts of derivative financial 257460713790 386420316368 4,869480]63  648750,510,321
BEERiIE Commitments 1904,330,862 5,426,966,065 3,525169,676 10,856,466,603
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F207FE 12 A3 H, ZAAHNEXREFEAGETMIIRNOT:

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2017
ET AR™ Hit ait
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
R Assets:
MERFEMPRIEITEIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1,241,415402  5920,165,672 7957198 769,538,272
FHE M =k I Due from banks and other financial institutions 619,231,755  4,274,563,254 128,754,825 5,022,549,834
wRHEE Flac.emfems with banks and other financial 6215843278  2,941927,659 369234312 9,527,005249
institutions
tiﬁig%g%g%%?x Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,486,366,862 - 2,486,366,862
TTEEMAT~ Derivative financial assets 108,403,957  5467764,470 - 5,576,168,427
INBRESRIE Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,34495,000 - 1,344,195,000
B REAnEEk Loans and advances to customers 5,219,854,662 21,097,540,160 819,201,965 27136,596,787
tHESME Available-for-sale financial assets - 4369225273 - 4,369,225,273
Higehare Other financial assets 44724138 496,596,307 3,192,423 544,512,868
EREFE Total financial assets 13,449,473,192 48,398,344,657 1,328,340,723 63,176,158,572
fafk: Liabilities:
g%%ﬁf@ﬁ%ﬂmm Due to banks and other financial institutions 382,306,070 478,811,093 13,040,196 874,157,359
N Ela(feménts from banks and other financial 16154,032340  2,398,121,879 722,662,785  19274,817,004
institutions
TEEmAE Derivative financial liabilities 67,213,631  5,592,606,184 - 5,659,819,815
S Customer deposits 2,048,416,008 27,773,044,841 451,351,366 30,272,812,215
Hit &k Other financial liabilities 178,470,821 268,175,872 36,460,453 483107146
ErfAEET Total financial liabilities 18,830,438,870 36,510,759,869 1,223,514,800 56,564,713,539
BrEfESsSST Net position (5,380,965,678) 11,887,584,788 104,825,923 6,611,445,033
HESMTEEZNEH m;’ttrij;i}ni?o”m of derivative financial 324,760,717,865 304,471,086,339 408629125 629640433329
fEbeaiE Commitments 1383,590,514  4,253,793,620 2,608,661976 8,246,046,110

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE



UTREHEMEEREHERT, SIHMAGCTCEATELZENE
R R B X L T ] B S -

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a
change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the
Bank is as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017

- A ‘ Xof F5 BT F) 8 25 01 X %56 B 8 2 )
mEar

EEEH Change in Foreign Exchange Rate Impact on profit Impact on profit

AL AR 1% -1% change against RMB 44,006,644 52,761,398

ARG HFAE 1% +1% change against RMB (44,006,644) (52,761,398)

U EHRESHETHEMAGREHSHICERNEENS, EitE
THEMARAEZR, SHARTCENEETRENNFATH
b A

BXRHSHETUTRIE:
() CEHRERESTHMARTTRE BHREE (REM)IC
RMIMEREN 1% ERHIC R IR ;

(2) BEMMICEEHIIEEHHNARDICEREREREZ;
(3) HCEREHORE SR~ RHERRIFE

HTETLRRE, CEEUSHEAEARICL SRS H A ERE
WTEE S BRESTHERARRE,

32 FIRRR
ZHMWA

FATEEEARESTBEEER THTHRRAR, AR
BRI RS B T AR .

EARENSBHZREEERRA 99% EEXE TUE B XEMNE
(VaR -Value at Risk) B9 7 B4, A RN AEMFIZE, CEM
B mINMEE XS B FIER RS T OB T W R H G B HIE R
g,

B VaR EEHETHREHNEEZETR, BEXERENRIEFE—E
PRI, Filn.

— EHXEBELT, IEINXSENAEHRNHTEEENN
HENRIZEE, BETSKNBSEERERBHERLT, 11
X5 B BRI RS KRER;

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against
RMB on the Bank’s profit before tax, given other variables
remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by one per cent change of the closing rate (mid
rate) of the different foreign currencies against RMB as at
the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against

RMB in the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading Book
The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses the
Internal Models Approach to measure and to control trading
market risks.

The Bank adopts a daily VaR(VaR-Value at Risk) to estimate
market risk within a 99 per cent confidence interval using
the historical simulation method for its trading book. The
method assumes that possible future changes of risk factors
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity
prices may be implied by observed historical data.

Although VaR is an significant tool to measure market risk,
there are some restrictions on the assumptions of the model|,
such as:

- In most cases, the hypothesis that warehouse hedging
or sale can be carried out within the observation period
of one trading day is reasonable, however, in the case of
severe liquidity shortage in the market for a long time,
the observation period hypothesis of one trading day may
not be in line with the actual situation;
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—  99% KM EBEREKFEHARRBMEXNKEUIITEESIRNSIR, &
EEANERR, B 1% HISTEESIRBT VaR;

— VaREBELAKHEATHE, HARMZZHRFCTEEENH
FRUBE

— IRHERAERERRERNTREEANEL, F—EERAT
FRETTRETE R, $5RIRBISETR,

— REMNE (VaR) SITEBERKNFEITNEFTZ, @it BN
L% B W ENHRES R MNE (VaR) B2 R RIGIEZ 5 ER AT
i, B EBHMRERNST, KREESEREAIERRE
SHFHESHEPAHETPNER, FEEYNIK KN
B R ERA R CHREE~REERS,

— AR NME (VaR) MEEHAR, FARBEEDMKRIE
S, RHRITEEMNEERRESHTEENNRK, X
LA ST HREERRET RRFERES, U8
R IR K

— AT 2018 412 A 31 HW B XK ME (VaR) AANRT 567 AT
O7ENZANH: ARMS34AT)

RITIK
RAFERRERS AR SR ENEERIERNEE, BEfifmER
EERMHIF T REERS HEENRITHS THF ERE

FERNBEERNETEBRREESHANEFRED, BEEER
ITHE T BN SRR PR HIRIT R AL SN ENIE K,

TARMERSIT IR, EREEMNHRMERESTEENERIT
WRFIERBE O, B FRGRE~REENTHEEHNS
#, WTRFETHF SRR EFNEEESMW, FRGRESR
EFNENHR, THEESHANBZME, 8k TEREE, K
BIF R EEBLIT F R LT NMERRME KX,

AREIRRAWMEF DY E =R FNEEES T EER
TREREEANL , UERRITHE RS B3t F 28 F) 250 K0&HK
HIPRITHE= BRI, R, ZEDNK 8 R TR RERL
TRIREE & S ER K R HATRE R 2t R1T A IR K B T 3 IR R
TR E TR R R

BFME, CERMBRNEELTERZ S A TR RS TR
W EIRAE AR I T B IR AN M

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

- The 99 per cent confidence interval does not reflect the
loss that may arise outside this level. Even in the model
used, there is a one per cent possibility that the actual
loss will exceed VaR;

- VaR is calculated according to the closing benchmark of
the day, which does not reflect the risk that the position
may face on the trading day; and

- Historical data, used as a benchmark for determining the
possible range of future outcomes, may not apply to all
situations, especially exceptions.

- As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses,
the VaR measures are backtested against profit and loss
of the trading book to validate the robustness of the
methodology. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market
volatility. All backtesting exceptions are tabled at the ALCO
with recommended actions and resolutions.

- To complement the VaR measure, the Bank perform
stress and scenario tests to identify the vulnerability to
event riskThese tests serve to provide early warnings of
plausible extreme losses for which proactive management
of market risk is taken.

- As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the daily
VaR of the Bank is RMB5.67 million and RMB5.34 million,
respectively.

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet
Risk Management (BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in
monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using
analysis tools include repricing schedules and sensitivity
analysis. They provide indications of the potential impact of
interest rate changes on interest income and economic value
through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities
to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies
with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater impact in the price-value of interest rate positions
than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method of net
interest income and economic value of net assets regularly
to determine the adequacy of capital in meeting the impact
of extreme interest rate movements on the balance sheet.
Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings
of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.



F018F 12 A30H, xARRITKAESNAENETRAGKRE
FEENHHEBAREREESTWT:

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

31-12-2018
3INAR 3INMAETE 1E58% S5ERME ~itE &it
Within 3 3 months 1to 5 years 5 years Non-interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
AT, Assets:
T4 BIEH iR C2sh and deposit with the 5998,412.914 - - - 305824484  6304,237398
Central Bank
. Due from banks and other
= E=rd - - -
TE R R Ml FR I3 financial institutions 1,221,613,188 1322741 1,222,935929
N Placements with banks and other
RHEES financial institutions 10,671910,843  3194,023,813 - - 104721719 13970,656,375
INBELRAF §;$NwMMwMWml 3,281,412,098 - - - 7844426 3289256524
B R B Loans and advances to customers 25573129818 6,047,602,918 38209509  4]128,037 369,506,466 32,032,576748
Other debt instrument at
HEMENgE fair value through other 2103737940 2789405830  1999,841,390 - 77599772  6970,584,932
comprehensive income
Hitgahsr~s Other financial assets - - - - 64,133,115 64,133,115
ERME~FIT Total financial assets 48,850,216,801  12,031,032,561 2,038,050,899  4128,037 930952723 63,854,381,02]
faf&: Liabilities:
Eﬂ&ﬁ{ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ#’qﬁﬁﬁ Pug to 'banks and other financial 169434195 401,000,000 . _ 1297185 571731380
=HIn institutions
WANAE Placement from banks and other 13 (1059534 3073414743 - - 86,890,297 16764,294,274
§ financial institutions e e e EhETh
R TEER Customer deposits 26253378816 9581199099  1139,584,346 - 280475771 37254,638,032
ST EIMERE T Repurchase agreements 270,000,000 - - - 207,863 270,207,863
Rt =S Debt securities issued 746,146,467 874,187,603 997,323,573 - 34982740 2,652,640,383
Hih £ ik Other financial liabilities - - - - 119,050,206 119,050,206
SEAEST Total financial liabilities 41042949312 13929,800,845 2136907919 - 522904062 57632,562,138
FTHESRER (F) Derivative financial assets(Note) ~ 6,719,845416  2,608,258,632 - - 8408129  9336,512177
_ - Derivative financial
FTESBAE () - -
fTEEmiatk (F) liabilities(Note) 6,657,859983  2,634,802,951 7679310  9300,342,244
FMERR RO Net position 7869252922  (1925312,603)  (98,857,020) 4128037 408777480 6257988816

T ARARRITRPERNIMTESHER /| AGRANEAEHNER
EEMAHBYPAAEREEHITHN
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F217E12A838, xAAFARTHRARZSKABSSHETENE

FRAGZRAREEN BHEPEREREZESTNT:

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of

banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

31-12-2017
3INMAR 3NAEE 1E5&E SHERE TitE &it
Within 3 3 months 1to 5 years 5 years Non-interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
ErE: Assets:
. 4=z Cash and deposit with the Central
& RIFH B RERITERIN Bank 5920,165,672 - - - 1,249,372,600 769,538,272
FERE T Due from banks and other financial 5 g1 a53 615 - - - 576929062 4393782967
institutions
N Placements with banks and other
RHEAESE financial institutions 819,873,224  1,407132,025 - - - 9527005249
FINIRESREF~ Reverse repurchase financial assets  1,344,195,000 - - - - 134495000
EHEH RS Loans and advances to customers 22,272,342,809 4,292,293 340 394,653  4,013434 211,867730 26,780,911,966
Other debt instrument at fair value
HMENEE through other comprehensive 2421673844  1,652,433,330 295,118,099 - - 43697225273
income
Hihgahmr~ Other financial assets - - - - 259,596,401 259,596,401
EHEAFEIT Total financial assets 43,895,104,454 7,351,858,695 295,512,752 4,013,434 2,297,765,793 53,844,255128
ffk: Liabilities:
— 5 = . ) )
Eﬂk&,iﬂﬁmﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁi Due to .banks and other financial 820,370999 } ; - 53786360 874157359
E40i] institutions
HNEE Placement from banks and other 13375316, 5 714515964 - - - 15515239126
financial institutions
S Customer deposits 22,384,666,852 784,832,407 636,980,733 - 66,332,223  30,272,812,215
Hittemtafs Other financial liabilities - - - - 472,036,899 472,036,899
SraEST Total financial liabilities 36,505,761,013 9,399,348,371 636,980,733 - 592155482 47]34,245,599
TTHEEE” () Derivative financial assets (Note) 8,707,301,633 1,565,307,720 410,000,000 - 34,248,032 10,716,857,385
TTEEMRAE () Derivative financial liabilities (Note) 8,752,637,891  1,602,487200 390,000,000 - 32,669,864 10,777,794,955
FE X pEHRO Net position 7344,007183 (2,084,669156)  (321467981) 4,013,434 1707188479  6,649,071959

iE: ARAFRITRPESNMTESHET / AGRANEAEHERE

EENBHIHAREREERITAN

FENS D 162 x#@7 (hE) ARAE 2018 £ERE

Note: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of banking book are analysed

based on the earlier of re-pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.



AARMFHFETRZREEN D, WEEFHERTRZRIHE
EEITREMESRITREMARHEENEL,

UTRAERMEZEEATHERLT, FIRARRENGEEIHNHR
. EttGEEWmERTIR SRR EENET AT,

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net profit, other comprehensive
income after tax and equity is as follows:

31-12-2018 31-12-2017

WEIT Change in interest rate X 4R 2 B S M X R 2 RS2
Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

180 100 N E A +100 basis points 46,227,031 42,331915
FZE D 100 MES - 100 basis points (46,227,031 (42,331915)

U EHRESHETHEMAGEEHSHAEREEE, FXB
SINEE—ENRETL, RBRA—FAEXARNENRGNE
HEMMEARRELTEFNIRANNZE, ETUTRE:

() FEESAARREAARE—F N EHEH S 0R=H
A BHBIR AL S I B BT R BN

(2) Wras i &R UM FITHE;
(3) AFEMAREASHTEMTN;

(4) FEREHOFESRITESR TEMSIMNRE S RERFIN
HMHB.

BTET LidRig, FIFRGESHALRHRFEN LI LERE
WTEE S BRSNS RARE,

4. ARHrE

ARNE, RETHSEEETEHRENAFZSYH, HE—W
BRI EREB —MAGAEXMINE. EXHERZH
% (BIIATESRRZ ST ) FENEZSET, THHERIAQ/RMN
BEZHREIER, AT, ARRAFERETZHIEMETR K
FETMH. Ak, MFZBHEATHATRZEMTE, HUWTAR
ZRESEMET A EHEERXANE, B2, ERAREFERITZ
MESZTAEXARAERELH, HEERE, UARARAZFA
Bl

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure.
It reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the
Bank’s net interest income over a one-year period. The key
assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than
three months or between three months and one year are
assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the respective
time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes;
and

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial
instruments.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ from
above sensitivity analysis.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there
is no available market value for some of the financial assets
and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the discounted
cash flow method or other valuation methods described
below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows,
time period assumption and discount rates used.
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FRAZAERBIZANT:

() UaaMETEBEZEDITALSHREHNEMEAT / MG
(BRETESMAT / SMAGKR) NEEZAHSBIHNIHE
HEARME, MEAHSRZTMN, WEAESRENABEL
RNESSREZSZHANRNBELLANE 2RNES T
EMB 2 KEEE;

(i) TR2ARNEBzEMEMBI-EmMAKE THREE, T
HKENES 2 RN ERS;

(i) AEBRABRYMER TR MURRZTHFIEREH, HARMN
BEUSRTHAERFTEEE, FREAGHERREZTUER
EERRMERATER, BHEEREZ 0 RMRERDL
TR, NIKEERDMESER;

(iv) ERERDEARE@MERBEESFHFE, FPEFRRTLE
ERFBHZEEWPRIGEE BREME ST AR RNME,
AEEHERZERHNARNMEURSHEN W E[HE, HUE
A 5% ERFEREI R R AR B I TERR &

AARWMEARNENTETVAE AL TRH:
(i) WEH: Tt RERMIARZARNTIZIRN;
(i) fEH: TN EERHERREITHEE,

HERBEASAXANEN - RAN, ERREFESFWUER,
XEZZMBHEITRABUBRL AN ERNERE, AQFBRENMGEE
REFEZBIFRANER, FlINEEMNEHEREMERGE
B, BRI EEER.

AAREILT AFMERINESRBRALNENGEE. WREXAR
BAMGE, RETHERMEAGSELEZIMIERNMNENE
WiE, S, MEHRMNE. MASH, REMGEERARTEZHS
ZABRIMEE, HtHAERFHIEEEERNATEERS,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or
quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate
at the time the loans are extended shall be determined
using prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes
in the credit quality of loans within the portfolio are
not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as
impairment provision which shall be deducted from the
carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of fixed deposits are
estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the
fixed deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

()  Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i)  Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter inputs,
assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject to
verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.



ARBFRAEHITLALNERENERZRITH=ZNER:

F—BR: RFATHME

X ERARZERERAFNRENERTHRNEGHEEET
WAMLR R EHmmEEHPREGEILEEARARSER
BN RS

FBXR: MERASHTBETHHURGINMEERA

EFMEEARXRETFEERTE, MANNEZSEHMEETIH
FEENZ, SHMERGEASTMAST. HNENERF—L
WHSE5ELBERMEZHER, WAANZNBERNEM~RE
ERNCIZH, SMLEKR, RERBZH / EREEEXHNITE
f (nEmmAFE. PR, NN, ZXHXEWNHR) , ¥
BEARNMEEZ S FRENSMS R (WEXE X ERE~

) o

FZRX: SEESHIERENEFIMNRANMGERR
XMGEERARZAGETHRENEM ERNEZETANESH,
BRIAARZEREEXNEM™ RN EARNEXNERX.

U EBRREFEDNARRAEFZRAGZ AN ERB—B 2T
HAEN, %W, BTEMNMESSERTRZAERRE, S€#H
IRz AR ER L TEEF T,

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
where the price represents actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial
instruments included in this class are bonds with the marked-
to-market prices actively made available and announced by
China Central Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly foreign exchange forward and
foreign exchange swaps, precious metals forward and swaps,
and OTC derivatives (namely money market deposit and
placement, interest rate swap, FX option, rediscounted
bills) and financial instruments with fair value derived from

counterparty (for structured products arranged on back-to-
back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed on
reasonable assumptions made on market conditions. There is
currently no financial instrument being classified under such
category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide
a consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the
Bank’s assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may
use different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may not be
entirely comparable.
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TRIIRTURANETENERTENLXRNERR:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments measured in fair value:

ARNETEERRBNE

Inputs in fair value measurement

ERTHRN EEANBRHNE EEFAUEBNE &it
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
- ($—B%) (E=ER) (E=ER)
3112-2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
=4 Precious metals - 470,469,280 - 470,469,280
FHMHERET Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,472,009,402 - 1,472,009,402
TEEEF~ Derivative financial assets - 6,332,656,875 - 6,332,656,875
RHBRRIEIR - HEELHME  Loans and advances to customers-gold loan - 885,500,931 - 885,500,931
N Other debt instrument at fair value through
H b {ENFE* - -
Rt A other comprehensive income 6,970,584,932 6,970,584,932
AEHE SRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets - - - _
LA ET Total financial assets - 16,131,221,420 - 16,131,221,420
T H e AR Financial liabilities held-for-tradin - 2,720,495,215 - 2720,495,215
g
Placements from banks and other financial
54 - R R R
FAGE institutions
N Deposits designated at fair value through
ST _INVAVNIN =p Eo _ _ _ -
BEUARMETENTER orofit or loss
TEEmMAaE Derivative financial liabilities - 6,171917,029 - 6,171917,029
ERAESIT Total financial liabilities - 8,892,412,244 - 8,892,412,244
NRMETEERBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
EERTIHRN EEMURANE EEARATURBNE &it
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
Ta- ($—BX) (BZRR) (B=ER)
3112-2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SRR Financial assets held-for-trading - 2,486,366,362 - 2,486,366,862
TEEREFT Derivative financial assets - 5,576,168,427 - 5,576,168,427
RHERMRS - HLME 'l‘::::s and advances to customers-gold - 355,684,822 - 355,684,822
AHHESMA Available-for-sale financial assets - 4,369,225,273 - 4369225273
SRR~ EIT Total financial assets - 12,787,445,384 - 12,787445384
. Placements from banks and other
FANRE fimancial institutions - 3,759,577,878 - 3759577878
e A RIMET BT Ereopfisgrs lieszlgnated at fair value through ) 995287361 ) 995,287361
TEEflE Derivative financial liabilities - 5,659,819,815 - 5,659,819,815
SERAESIT Total financial liabilities - 10,414,685,054 - 10,414,685,054

ATEE, ZRARREUARNEHTENE -BEXRMEZEREH
M G 5 2 BRIk,

EFERIAA, TER, ZARAHNEMERFISMEMAGRHNLLN
BESERHNEKENEFTEXER

166 X#5R{T (hE ) HRAF 2018 FERE

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the other financial
assets and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.
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2. ARFRAT

11. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2018 are as
follows:

(1) Parent company of the Bank;

(2) Subsidiary of the Bank;

(3) Entities under control of the same parent company;
(4) Investors exercise joint control over the Bank;

(5) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;
(6) Joint venutures of the Bank.

(7) Affiliated company of the Bank;

(8) Main individual investors of the Bank or the close family
members;

(9) Key management personnel of the Bank or parent
company, and the close family members;

(10) Other companies controlled or jointly controlled by the
Bank's major investors, key management personnel or close

family members;

(1) Annuity established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

B A 514 R =g i R BN B
Name Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
KERITHRR A IRITR &R 5 Fhnig 704 {Z#iTh 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 7.014 Billion 100%
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. TRFERNERARAEXRKZSZNHEMKETT

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the year are as follows

BIZFARERNAR

Company under the common control of parent company

&R A S5 1R pE iz ERFE A EEREFEA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative

KERIT ( BRAEL ) ARAR RITR Rk S ORI HEH ORABTHAESE 20 2T EER

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.  Banking and Financial Service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong
LR INE L _ o _

RIERET (RE ) BRLH REREHES #E 84 4k 2486 (27T

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited

Banking and Financial Service

Tan Choon Hin

Bangkok Thailand THB 24.86 Billion

KERST (EREL ) ARAT RARSHERS Bl AL Hemik EEW;:'% 2388471 L sai Vore
PT Bank UOB Indonisia Banking and Financial Service Jakarta Indonesia IDR 273588 471 Million
- FRE.RY., AEME N _
T BLERAT FRPTR SR RRRER ag e ART 2259 1Z5% o
UOB Property China Co., Ltd. Fea! estate development, operating, Shanghai China RMB 2.259 Billion s
easing and management
. , N BAEE, BERAEE,
i upe s 3 N\ F] N — — s

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co,, Ltd

Consulting and investment
management

Shanghai China USD 15.55 Million Seah Kian Wee

KERF=EEBRAT BEEE Hrnig #TH 6,300 71T Thio Boon Kiat

UOB Asset Management Ltd. Investment management Singapore SGD 63,000,000
) IAS— YR IC IC

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. #Iﬂl,b‘ B =@ 44 T 650 ﬁ'TE Rayson Li Kin Hung
Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million

ZEAREAZIMEIAT

Company under the significant influence of the parent company

&R A S5 1R pE iz EM A EERERA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative

BEFELWEREFEG ()
BRAT

InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

FARHREERAR

AREEAR, BEAQFANES.

168

A ERFARS
Business Management
Consulting Service

BERSREEANR,

KERT (PE ) ARAF 2018 FERE

HE L= ET 150 AT ERE
Beijing China USD 1.5 million Cao Ying Xue

key management personnel

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and
senior management.



ZERARRBEEARERZMEAE

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s key management

&R A S5 A EMBA EERRA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
b (&) EEERRR SEEEAE HE E %L 3700 AT RIRE
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 37 Million Neo Soon Hup
REENFZBEMTFARERA A B FE HE XiE ARM 103127t FRsE<r
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 1.03 Billion Tan Kian Siew
ASER. fWEER
M) AT o A e . — —
fﬁhﬁg (LiF) BH EEEEBEAE] ?ZJ\Efiglﬂ ) ) thE i 25T 650 FHIT ®H—#3
eng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting, Corporate N el
! Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd management consulting, Investment
management consulting
—— &S & E 25 = M . - — .
B ESARAR iontitidnls e (61 ERS0AE  REE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. Xiamen China USD 8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong

pharmaceutical products

R A FRAH BT Fhnig #T 2647173066 T EHIAME
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 264,173,166 Wee Cho Yaw
I . . = B HE. 25, HENEE . — —
HEEM (R ) KRERLF R - HE B EIT 2400 AT ‘
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. Real estate development, operating, leaSIngChengdu China USD 24 Million Lee Ngai Hon
and management
iR E LA RAT BHPEFEREE i i ARFBEZE | g oo
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation ~ Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion € €
MBZGIMRIER, BFE. AFEE.
Bl e HE . AR, B
fEER (X2 ) EREGRAA Manufacturing of new construction thE Xig AR 2406 1zt  #HIELW
UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. materials, sale, lease and management Tianjin China RMB 240.6 Million Lim Hock San
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities
EERRELHRAR BHFFEREE E L ARTB7OZE | oo
Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation  Shanghai China RMB 719 Million € €
3% - N 3 s A= 3 s 0 Al ST . _ _ .
it Shangha Lote Maagement Lore| mansgemens mesmentconting TE B ETSHT  RIEA
' Shanghai China USD 50,000 Neo Soon Hup

Co., Ltd.

and corporate management consulting
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4. XAREXBAZEERS (4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

R Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE GEEXGREALLG] R HEEXZSREALLG]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

HEER ( RXiE ) KRAERLATE UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 56,538,557 017 60,000,000 0.22
LiERBRELFRAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 32,470,416 010 20,850,274 0.08
it Total 89,008973 027 80,850,274 030
FER IR =R Due from and placement with Banks 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE GEIEZ S RELLG RE HREIEXZZREALLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERAR United Overseas Bank Limited 227,486,146 144 484,092,213 333
KERIT ( BRAT ) HRAT United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 665,704 - 517,566 -

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

LR T - AS— _ _ _
KERIT (RE ) FRAF Company Limited. 93121
&it Total 228,244,971 144 484,609,779 333
Due to and placements from Banks
o 12- 12-

TR and other financial institutions 31-12-2018 31-12-2017

R£E HAEEZSHRTLG K8 HEEZZRHULG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 15,496,227923 8939  19,626,327,280 97.41

- United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

-y INF] _ .
KERIT (RE ) BRAH Company Limited 252,125 20922

&it Total 15,496,480,048 8939  19,626,348,202 9741
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R TE SR Customer deposits 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE HEEZSRELLH RE HREXSREALG]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LB E W ERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd 505,017,859 136  609150,489 2.01
LigtEFHBEWHRAF UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 346,130,276 093 307,052,392 1.01
REBIRAEE (L5 ) ARAR ESBL\tljnt”re Management (Shanghai) 5,5 3315, 061 238972746 079
FEEH (RE) ERERAT é’gglftr:jd (Chengdu) Development 17 43 35 034 58925275 019
EHLWERAR Haw Par Corporation Limited 102,797136 028 98587527 033
- N v | 3 — Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
ST S\ SErEAs N
ZAFF (LF) BEEEFRAT Management Co., Ltd. 10,205,312 0.03 5,691,714 0.02
i\l (E17) BEARAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 9,495,032 0.03 1,083/156 -
s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
¥ TL >0 /\
KEE ( L) RAEEHRAF Management Co, Ltd. 6,865,431 002 8088365 0.03
HEER (X2 ) EBERAT UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 5,846,943 0.02 5,644,254 0.02
EBlITRREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 2,476,826 0.01 5241967 0.02
Sk e A A S — A )
@ in F e W EREW (4£57) HRZA Innoven Enterprise Management 1966770 001 3,081,094 0.01
Gl Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
Kt BB R T A G RAT 'Ll'tladnjln UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., 672,560 ) 1183669 )
LiERBELFRAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 1504 - 1547 -
XBEEBEAR Key Management Personnel 24,133,656 006 19,526,797 0.06
&it Total 1,371,946,092 3.70 1,362,230,992 449
RYF 2 Interest receivables 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE AHREEZZRELLS R HEEZZRELLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
HEER (X ) KBERAT  UICjinTravel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. - . 572,594 0.24
KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited - - 173,039 0.07
LR EWHRAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. - - 30,262 0.01
&it Total - - 775,895 032
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MAFFIR Interest payables 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE LHREEZSHRELG KA SERZSRELLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KIERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited - - 38,805,310 13.00
LigtEFHBEWHRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. - - 3,613,960 1.21
LB E L ERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. - - 2305042 077
EHLWFRAF Haw Par Corporation Limited - - 395,572 013
REBRAEE (L) GRAF gSBsznt“re Management (Shanghai) - - 390279 013
HEER (RiE) KBERAT  UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. - - 29911 0.01
FEEM (HH) RRARAT 80 (Chengdy) Development Co. : - 20883 001
Bl IERERERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. - - 3,846 )
s N =  Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
¥ L >e A /\ - - -
KEE ( L) RAEEERAR Management Co, Ltd. 1,006
ZKEFE (LiF) BEEEARZA Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
= - - 583 -
Gl Management Co., Ltd.
£l (E17) BEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited - - 129 }
R FEEMF=FFEZBIR. T Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. - - 127 -
HIEEAWER SN (L= ) HBR InnoVen Enterprise Management i i 89 )
NI Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
4= = United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
4 AN B B _
KERIT (FE) BRAT o e 2
XEEEAR Key Management Personnel - - 85,643 0.03
ait Total - - 45,652,082 15.29
R aRIT — H{ A UgEr  Receivables- other receivables 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE LEEZFZREILLG) RE HEEZZREALLG]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LigtegrE W HR/AT  UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 12,892,048 579 12,892,048 4.09
KEFFEHEFRAT  UOB Asset Management Ltd. 1974154 0.89 - .
KEERITHERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 1,812,454 0.81 1,914,124 0.61
&it Total 16,678,656 7.49 14,806,172 470
BI{FE0T - B RI{FEk  Payables - other liabilities 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE EEEZZHRHLLH RE HEEZZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAR United Overseas Bank Limited 31387,014 449 36,601,109 19.82
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ZHEERE Financial assets held-for-trading

31-12-2018

31-12-2017

RE HREXZZREALLG R HEEZZRELLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KRERITHRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 138,237,636 939 - -
ZHEERGER Financial liabilities held-for-trading 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
R HEEZFRELLG) RE HEEZZREALLS]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KRERITHRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 2,720,495,215 100.00 - -
FIEYN Interest income 2018 2017
€ HREEXZEEHLA &8 HREELZFEEALLH]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITHERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 11,018,288 0.49 4,763,635 0.29
ﬁﬂ/lﬁ'\"_%ﬁﬁ (X&) &EEUICJinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 2,915,487 013 3,085,478 0.19
PR A
LiFRBENABRAT  Shanghaijin jun Realty Co., Ltd. 1394,905 0.06 612,676 0.04
EiEBIEWARAT  ShanghaiJin Peng Realty Co,, Ltd. - - 4113778 0.25
&it Total 15,328,680 0.68 12,574,967 0.77
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MEZH Interest expense 2018 2017
€M HREEZZEHLLH €M HEEZZEELLG)
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 413,633,827 32.86 242,521,764 2913
LM E L ERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 25,097,788 199 4,975,627 0.60
LBEHELFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 5,974,665 047 5,236,147 0.63
5 s . UOB Venture Management
i L0 N JAR—
MEBIRFERE ( L) FRAH (shanghai) Co, Ltd. 4131518 033 4253640 0.51
EHLWFRAF Haw Par Corporation Limited 1,445,672 on 587,295 0.07
FEEM (HE) RRERAH ?gglftr:jd (Chengdu) Development 3175 010 413,617 0.05
HEER (R ) RRERAFH UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 99,338 0.01 100,061 0.01
s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai)
5 s AN
KHE (£ ) RATEARAT Investment Management Co., Ltd. 85932 0.0 78,759 001
®i\r (B ) BIEFRATR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 44,433 - 20,936 -
ZKEF (LE) BEEE Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel i i
BRAE Management Co., Ltd. 25802 13440
BlIIEEAFRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co.,, Ltd. 9702 - 15,907 -
HEESWEEEE (JLR) InnoVen Enterprise Management 4086 i 865 i
BRAHE Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. '
RPEUFDFHFFRARAT [0 JOLXiwang Real Estate 2575 . 5855 .
L United Overseas Bank (Thai)
KERIT (RE ) BRRE ‘ o 1378 - 227 -
Public Company Limited
LEREELFRAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 226 - 347 -
XEEEAR Key Management Personnel 333457 0.03 310,560 0.04
&it Total 452,207,519 3591 258,535,047 31.05
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FEHERBEEBN Fee and commission income 2018 2017
8 AEEZZEHILE &M SREEXZZEHL

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

KERITHRAA United Overseas Bank Limited 21,768,348 .54 2915362 194
KERFEEGRAF UOB Asset Management Ltd. 6,970,727 369 2693158 179
ElERELERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. 250,547 013 16,866 0.01
LERBRELERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 75,472 0.04 76226 0.05

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

KERIT (RE ) FRAF 10,529 001 7963 0.01
Company Limited

il (E7) BEGRAF Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 3994 - 7472 B
LiEEHBELFRAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 3,331 - 2204 -
Rt FHBEREMFTFLZEGRAT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2163 - 4956 B

Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management

ZAFH (LE) BEEEEARAA 1226 - 1,002 -
Seas ks - = InnoVen Enterprise Management
rasTE I\ - -
@EFELERER (IL5R) BRAF Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 1015 263
R AEE ( 1) BREAS (L:J(?BL\t/jnture Management (Shanghai) 51 . 1 .
FEEM (RE) ZRERATHE Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 290 - 62 -
LM E L ARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. - - 75536 0.05
HEER (X2 ) RRERAHE UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. - - 53019 0.04
ait Total 29,088,154 1541 5,854,103 3.89
FEHEAESTH Fee and commission expense 2018 2017
&8 SHEEZZEHLG &8 LREEZZEHLG]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITHERAA United Overseas Bank Limited 7,249,275 1242 47,551 on
KRBT (ENERET ) -
PT Bank UOB Indonisia 149,260 0.26 - -
BRAHE
&it Total 7398,535 12,68 475551 013
‘R Investment Income 2018 2017
&8 SREEZZEHLG &8 LREEZZEHLG]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 32,754,206 23.81 - -
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WEREESE General and administrative expenses 2018 2017

S SEEXSEHLG] € SHREXZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
BEEBARZFE IT support

- KEBITERAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 37,411,868 375 34,727973 397

BEEEERRE%E Rental and service fee
- EEEHELERAR -UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 39,931,714 4,01 36,605,665 419
- KERITERAR -United Overseas Bank Limited 893,303 0.09 885,015 010
-\ (B ) BEEBRZAT  -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 296,133 0.03 115,874 0.01
&it Total 78,533,018 7.88 72,334,527 827
F &R Software development 2018 2017
€8 SEEXSZEHLG] M HEEZZEHLLG)
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 18,802,582 7618 12,128,439 53.09
ZIEA % Fiduciary activities 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
ERFe LHEEZHRELLH) ERAE LHEXZBREILH
Entrusted deposits Contribution (%) Entrusted deposits Contribution (%)
B EREZHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 11,040,000 044 11,040,000 046
AT S By P iR Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE AREZZRELLH R HREXZRELE]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LR B W AHRAT  ShanghaiJin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 242,581,342 81 254,149,726 10.56
fg%ig (Xi#) R UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 28,000,000 0.94 28,000,000 116
&it Total 270,581,342 9.05 282,149,726 n72
fTE&MTIASY Derivatives 31-12-2018 31-12-2017
RE GHEEZZRELLH) RE AEEZBREULH]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 14,550,745,495 224 33,139,208,426 5.26
B BT 5, BARZNEXRBEBARHEEMNOT: Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as

follows:

2018 2017
BRHFLEREMEHEHF  Employee salaries and other short-term incentives 82,922,707 63,626,561
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AARERFFINLUFEEESREZTHERWL S, FEREK
EHMKREKRZ S,

T=. BFEARRBERER

BEAMSHRRMERH AL, AR EFEEMEMTERERA
BHEXAFABERARER,

= thi¥RE
EFURMBNRTERRE, UHEAERLIRER,
T, MEHRZHE

AN ESMRIMZRATEES T 2019 £ 3 B 29 BRI E,

Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as
follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the

annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity
established by the Bank.

12. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to
be disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

13. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year's presentation.

14. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29 March 2019.
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